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CHAIR WHITE: . . . (gavel). . . This meeting of the Budget and Finance Committee will come to
order. I'd like to welcome our Vice-Chair, Riki Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Good morning. And welcome back our Council Chair, Gladys Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much. Lazarus returns.
CHAIR WHITE: And Member Stacy Crivello.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Good morning. Elle Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Good morning. Don Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Good morning, Chair.
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CHAIR WHITE: Aloha. Don Guzman.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: And Mike Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Aloha and good morning, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Good morning. And excused for today is Bob Carroll. Also joining us this
morning is Committee Staff Analysts, Jordan Molina, Chancy Hopper and
Michele Yoshimura and Committee Secretary, Yvette Bouthillier. And joining us down in
front on the left side is Sandy Baz, Budget Director, and Jeffrey Ueoka, our trustee Corp
Counsel.
MR. UEOKA: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Good morning. So with that, Members, we've got a significant amount of
testimony this morning so we'll move ahead with that. And our first testifier is Lyn McNeff
followed by David Goode.

.BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY...
MS. McNEFF: Good morning. I have some pictures for you. Can we
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Staff will take it.
MS. McNEFF: I'm Lyn McNeff. I'm the CEO of Maui Economic Opportunity and I want to thank
you for your continual support for our programs. By helping us, you help the community.
So we realize that you, what you do makes us able to serve the community, so thank you.
I'm here this morning to talk about the busses that we had requested. They were, they are,
the two 1999 busses. They are mechanically sound. They have 109,000 and 119,000 miles
on 'em. The pictures will show you that they are not structurally safe. The corrosion on the
buses is unsafe and we use them for youth trans and large party transportation where they
don't need ADA accessibility. As you can see, they are not nice looking. As, we transport
our youth in this and when we do, it doesn't say very much about how we care about our
youth. We service our vehicles every 4,000 miles so there's nothing mechanically wrong,
it's just the corrosion where we are. And when we move, that will be improved. And we
have secured funds for a bus wash system where that will also help our busses be maintained
but we have not received any new buses from the County since 2008. So we are getting, our
resources are being taxed on corrosion mostly because we do good maintenance. So we're
unable to meet the needs of the youth trans currently. The needs are so high and we are
taking two trips to get the youth trans'd to their centers or to their activity. And that makes,
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that impacts the youth because they can't get to their activity and the youth service providers
are unable to start the services or if they do then those that arrive late don't receive the same
kind of services. And so we would like to ask that you restore it. If you would like to do
fiberglass buses, I have secured the funds that would be $152,000 per bus rather than
$125,000 per bus for a fiberglass body that would last much longer. So I'd appreciate it if
you restore it so we can look nice out there. It doesn't look very nice for us to travel around
in these kind of buses. So thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Members, any questions for the testifier? Mr. Couch followed by Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And thank you, Ms. McNeff, for being
here. Yeah, looking at these pictures, it's pretty obvious that there's some issues. Have you
looked at, you know, doing some bodywork?
MS. McNEFF: Yes, we looked at bodywork for one of our
smaller, the white --

series, which is a much

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Uh-huh.
MS. McNEFF: --and that's a 116,000 per side and once you get in, once you get in you don't know
what you're going to find. So, yes, we did look at bodywork.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. 116,000?
MS. McNEFF: Per side.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Wow. I think Jordan wants to go into a new business. Thanks.
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yes, thank you very much, Chair. And thank you, Lyn, for being
here this morning. I have seen these buses and I've been rather appalled when I see them
because I know MEO has always tried really hard to maintain their fleet really, really well
and prolong the life of their vehicles. But as much as I hate to look at them, I'm kinda
concerned about, you said they were mechanically sound but do we have trouble with
breakdowns where they have to be off the road and how do you handle that?
MS. McNEFF: Well we do and you see the rust around the windows. If the windows fall off, that's
not very safe. And we did have a Paratransit bus, it was 2001 where the door fell off when
we were transporting. So, you know, yes, fell off while we're transporting clients. So
structurally, things corrode, I know Roberts has the same problem with their buses 'cause
they're close to the ocean also. And so, you know, mechanically they're fine but structurally
there is a safety issue.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: The other question is, if you were to order these buses and you
would have approval to do that as of July 1s `, when would you see replacements? I know
putting a bus together is a project.
MS. McNEFF: At least a year.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: At least a year?
MS. McNEFF: Uh-huh. That's why we came out now and asked. We really could use four but
we're trying to be prudent with the funds asking.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I know big buses are really expensive. But thank you very much.
MS. McNEFF: You're welcome.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Any other questions for the testifier? Ms. McNeff, you mentioned that you're
unable to pick up the kids in one trip. So it sounds like these are more for, more new and
additional rather than replacements. What will, if we buy these new buses, are you
suggesting that the two old ones will stay in circulation?
MS. McNEFF: They'll stay in circulation as long as we can keep them safe and provide the... yes,
the volume of the youth, we have smaller busses that we have to take `em on, 25 passenger
versus these are 45 to 50 passenger. So one trip to the youth center or to the youth activity
versus making two trips.
CHAIR WHITE: And the bodywork that you mentioned on one of the other buses, was there
structural damage that was needing to be addressed or was there ...
MS. McNEFF: It's corrosion, just like on most of the busses right off the salt air there.
CHAIR WHITE: And have you gone to another possible provider to see if the cost was the same?
MS. McNEFF: Yes, there aren't too many people that do bodywork on large vehicles on Maui.
CHAIR WHITE: Have you gone to ask what it would cost to provide a redo of the two buses that
you're talking about?
MS. McNEFF: No, but I know that it would be far more than $116,000 per side, yes. Because that's
white ones.
the small
CHAIR WHITE: It's kinda hard to imagine, but okay, thank you very much. Any other questions?
Seeing none --5-
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MS. McNEFF: Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: --thank you for coming today. And David Goode will be followed by
Rowena Andaya.
MR. GOODE: Good morning, Chair, and members of the Committee. David Goode here,
Department of Public Works, Director.
As you noted, Deputy Director
Rowena Dagdag-Andaya will be testifying after me. You'll also probably be hearing from
our Highways Division folks and probably some folks on Molokai. I'm going to be
testifying today on the Molokai baseyards, try to get that back into the budget. As I testified
previously, this facility is essentially ready to go. It is a facility that will be around 50 plus
years and we see it as certainly an opportunity for a type of project that could be bonded if
you so choose because of its longevity and its critical need within the community there on
Molokai. It is ready to go. This Council, previous Councils had funded the acquisition of the
land. That was completed and the partials were consolidated. Another Council then
appropriated the funds for design. That's been completed. We also previously funded the
Phase I construction, which as I mentioned in previous testimony, we've halted due to some
concerns with the contract amount and request for change orders and felt it was, in our best
estimation, prudent to cancel that contract and go out to bid on Phases I and II as Phase II is
now ready to be designed as well. Excuse me, not designed but constructed. So that will
allow us the opportunity to bid everything one time and put in professional construction
management and get this facility built. It is ready to go. Additionally, this would certainly
be an economic stimulus to the island that can't be ignored. Recently we had the Chilean
earthquake and small tsunami scare. Of course, as it often happens, these things happen right
at pau hana time. We called our baseyards and said anybody, you know, that's got
equipment possibly that needs to get moved, please move it. The only place we incurred
overtime cost was in Molokai because it's in the tsunami zone. It's in the flood zone. It's on
State land where they've asked us to vacate for many years. If you were to see the facility,
you might be shocked. I think the garage itself is held together with termites holding hands
and petrified wood. I don't know how in the world they even maintain vehicles when it
rains. The baseyard itself is a series of trailers and sheds. We share it with the dog pound,
which has had loose dogs attack our guys. I mean, in all fairness, this is a facility that's
ready to go. Hopefully you can find some funds in this budget to make it work. So I'm just
going to focus on that, Chair, from the Director's perspective and I hope you folks can make
it work and I'm available for questions.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, Members, any questions for the Director?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Victorino.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah and thank you. And thank you, David, for being here.
So let's say worst case scenario somehow, somewhere, we don't find the money and you
push it off for a year, what kind of expenses would we then incur beyond all the other items
you've referred like when we have tsunamis and moving equipment and other. And then the
State, I guess, the other question begs to be asked, the State has been asking us to move, if
we wait another year, construction, two or three, what would the State say to that? It's a
two-part question. What would cost us to wait? And the second part is, what will the State
say if we say, oh we're gonna hold it up another year or two or three?
MR. GOODE: Well Mr. Victorino, maybe I'll start with the second question. I really don't know
what the State would say.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MR. GOODE: They certainly have the right to say we asked you to leave and you haven't left.
Whether they'd kick us or not, I don't know. But there will be added costs. Certainly
construction costs are rising. We're seeing that as the construction industry picks up. The
union contracts have increases in costs almost on an annual basis. If bond funds are chosen
to be a source of funds here, all indications from everything I've ever seen is that rates are
going to increase. So it's rare, in my estimation, to have a project that's really is ready to go
and not go because you know you're going to incur more costs on the construction side
moving forward.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And on top of that, I guess the last caveat would be the
inconvenience and as well as the challenge of the inefficient baseyard. Like you said,
termites are holding 'em up. If the termites decide to leave town then we may not have
anything standing. So I know, I've been there and it's, it's in pretty bad shape and that's
putting it in a very mild manner. So thank you, Mr. Goode. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Other questions, Members? Mr. Goode, there's a current allotment of, or
remaining allotment of $3.6 million for this project and which will be available once the
contract is disencumbered, right?
MR. GOODE: You know, I think I'm not the best person to answer that.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
MR. GOODE: I think maybe Mr. Baz could address that better.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. And can you share with the Committee what the size of the administration
building is that we're constructing for 6 folks or 16 employees that work on Molokai?
MR. GOODE: You know, I don't have the exact square footages here. I know it's an ample-sized
building to have everybody convene in the mornings and afternoons and get their
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assignments. I know it's also set up to essentially double as an emergency operating center,
which currently the island of Molokai doesn't have. And for all intents and purposes, we
along with the Fire Department end up coordinating those types of activities. And it's also
an ample size that should staffing grow, that we can grow into the building and not have to
be, try to find some, you know, cockroach solutions to adding on to. So I think in our
estimation, it serves a multitude of purposes and by building it all at one time, you know,
today's dollars, I think we'll save money in the long run.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Any other questions, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes, Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. Looking back into our budget book. So total
buildout costs is over 10 mil on this project? Is that what is showing as in appropriations?
Do you know the total?
MR. GOODE: I don't have it in front of me.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh.
MR. GOODE: We had previously bought land, alright, so that would be part of the equation, and we
previously had design funds. We've done some construction activity, which we've halted.
And that activity will accrue to the next contract and I think this appropriation was 7.5.
Yeah -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Uh-huh.
MR. GOODE: --Mr. Baz is shaking his head, so, or nodding, so, he's confirming. So the total could
be approaching that but it's a multiple staged -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right.
MR. GOODE: --process.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Mr. Goode, for being here. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: And, you know, if you add the two together, it's in the neighborhood of a little
over 11 million and, so, okay, thank you very much.
MR. GOODE: Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Oh, Ms. --
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yes.
CHAIR WHITE: --Crivello, did you want
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: And I don't know if the question should be to you or Mr. Goode
knows it. So based on Mr. White's total of 11 million, would you, are, is it safe to say that
about 3 million of that was already expended for the land and design, the land purchase and
the design of the project?
MR. GOODE: If that's the numbers, yeah, then that would be correct. I don't have the exact
numbers in front of me.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, I don't believe that number includes the land purchase because the amount
that's still in the bond or assigned to it is 3.6 and that would not include the land as far as
MR. GOODE: Oh, yeah, if we're counting that money, that's double counting then and that's
counting the construction twice. So that would . . .(inaudible)...
CHAIR WHITE: So a little over 11 million for construction only.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay. Thank you.
MR. GOODE: But our total construction cost is around seven, seven and a half.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Seven.
MR. GOODE: So I think it's double counting, not that it's previously been appropriated, which will
lapse, and then a new seven and a half.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Any further questions, Members? Thank you, Mr. Goode.
MR. GOODE: Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: And Rowena Andaya will be followed by Craig Swift.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Good morning, Chair, and Committee members, aloha. My name is
Rowena Dagdag-Andaya. I'm the Deputy Director of Public Works and as Dave had
mentioned, we do have members of our staff here today to testify on behalf of some items on
the proposed budget. But I'm here today to talk about two particular items. One of which is
the Wailuku Municipal parking lot and we had put that item into our CEP budget because of
the numerous calls and requests for resurfacing that started from last year when we started
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the FY '14 budget. A lot of members from the public asked why didn't you put it in FY '14
and we told them well we had some other priorities but we'll make that a priority in FY '15.
The pavement surface is uneven and striping is also fading, which is one of the reasons why
we wanted to get this project started. There may be an opportunity to also increase the
number of the stalls. I don't know for sure but that's something that we probably want to
take a look at as well, provide more parking spaces for merchants as wells as members of the
public who shop and work in Wailuku area. And the other item that I wanted to speak on
behalf of is the proposed KIVA Replacement Project and we noticed that the funding for the
overall project has been reduced. Now, we haven't had a chance to talk with Jacob Verkerke
or the rest of the ITS staff working on this project, on how this, how the reduction affects
moving forward. But as one of the major users of KIVA, the Department of Public Works,
we had hoped that funding of the project be restored to its original levels. As the, as KIVA
users, our Department is looking forward to something that's a little bit more modern, or
actually, a lot more modern than one that we have now. We are looking for a system that
will enable us to do electronic plan review, something easy to access and be able to share
data among the departments as well as the public and be able to provide good customer
service. Overall, the KIVA Replacement Project is important, not only to just our
department but to many of the departments within the County and also to the public, and we
hope that you would consider restoring the funding back to its original levels.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Uh-huh.
CHAIR WHITE: Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you for coming this
morning. And Craig Swift will be followed by Keith Regan. And following Mr. Regan's
testimony, we will move to the District Offices.
MR. SWIFT: Good morning, Committee Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Good morning.
MR. SWIFT: Committee members, Council members, good morning. I want to thank you for
allowing me another opportunity to testify. My name's Craig Swift. I'm the Director of
MEO's Business Development Center and another opportunity to testify on behalf of MEO's
Business Development Center. And what I'm requesting is a 3 percent increase for the
Program and I know this is proposed for other nonprofits and thought it would be appropriate
certainly for the Community Development Program that is Business Development Center.
And I know some previous testimony on the numbers but I also, in addition to the 3 percent,
would like, you know, again requesting the Molokai Loan Fund Manager position from
part-time to fulitime, which would be a $15,000 request, budget request. The community,
which I know the Council Committee Chair supports very strongly, is community economic
development and through past support with County funds, which are taxpayer funds, it's the
leveraging aspect of the Program that I think also needs to be talked about in terms of what
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does the Program's dollars do in terms of leverage . . .(inaudible) ... And there's three areas
that we're able to receive funds, private funds, and the private funds are a good example, best
example is that of Agape fund on Lanai. And on Lanai alone there's been nine businesses
that have received over 200,000 in loans and created and retain 23 fulltime jobs. There's
corporate funds, corporate funds, Bank of Hawaii has provided loan funds through the
Community Reinvestment Act. And then finally, we also have Federal funds. The Federal
funds are from the USDA and that's in the form of an intermediary relending program. So
all these funds together are nearly $8 million. So that type of leverage is what the Program is
set up to do and continue to do and hopefully continue with your support. And I thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Mr. Swift. Members, questions for the testifier? Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair, and thank you, Mr. Swift, for being here.
What grant do, what department do you get the grant from?
MR. SWIFT: The, on a...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: The MEO.
MR. SWIFT: Oh, OED.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: OED?
MR. SWIFT: Yeah, Office of Economic Development.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Is that the Micro Enterprise Program?
MR. SWIFT: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. So that's where you're requesting a 3 percent?
MR. SWIFT: Yes, thank you, uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Just out of curiosity, did you approach the Mayor for that
'cause he didn't submit it as part of his budget either?
MR. SWIFT: The OED was requested of that and as Tina Rasmussen had said that that request had
come in after we had made the request for these particular funds, she had submitted the
budget.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MR. SWIFT: Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Alright, thanks.
MR. SWIFT: Uh-huh.
CHAIR WHITE: Any other questions, Members? Seeing none, thank you for coming this morning,
Mr. Swift.
MR. SWIFT: Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: And Keith Regan is up next, then we'll go to Molokai.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Good morning.
CHAIR WHITE: One more testifier then we'll come to Molokai.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Hello?
CHAIR WHITE: Jeff, is your aunty calling again?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I think that maybe it's on mute.
CHAIR WHITE: I think she hung up. I don't know how that happens but we had somebody
calling
MR. REGAN: The awkward moment at the podium.
CHAIR WHITE: District Office, could you report in please?
MS. LONO: Good morning, Chair. This is Dawn in Hana.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Denise, are you there? Ella, are you there?
MS. ALCON: Ella's here.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Ella's here.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Denise?
MS. FERNANDEZ: Denise is here.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, thank you. We just had another alien call so. . . (inaudible)...
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: God is watching.
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CHAIR WHITE: Okay, Mr. Regan, I hope that we won't get interrupted with that, but please
proceed.
MR. REGAN: Thank you, sir. Aloha and good morning, Chair White, members of the Budget and
Finance Committee. My name is Keith Regan, Managing Director for the County of Maui.
Honorable Council members, I'm here this morning delivering a message on behalf of the
Honorable Mayor, Alan Arakawa, who would have been here this morning but unfortunately
had another previous commitment and was not able to attend. The, he asked me to deliver
this message to you. The budget can be cut and should be cut in order to avoid property tax
increases, but not in areas where it adversely affects essential County services. If staff from
the Driver's License and Motor Vehicle Division is cut, wait times for the public will
increase. If positions from our landfill operations are cut, trash pickup and landfill hours of
operations will be negatively affected. When funding for Fire and Police stations and
equipment is cut, public safety is jeopardized. We are humbly asking that reconsideration be
given to the funding of critical infrastructure, replacement, repairs and maintenance. If we
neglect our County assets, the impacts to our community will be dire. There are a number of
proposals in the Chair's budget proposal that should be reconsidered, such as setting aside
$4.04 million in anticipation of an increase in the Federal Excise tax on high cost healthcare,
which is the Affordable Care Act penalty, a tax which does not kick in until 2018. The
increase in the County self-insurance fund is another area where it went from the 8 million
that we proposed to now 12 million. It's unclear to us why this additional $4 million is
necessary at this time. There were also, there was also a proposal to add $1.9 million to the
emergency fund on top of the $3 million already proposed without any explanation or
justification for the increase. The proposal of new programs such as Haiku-Makawao-Paia
Economic Development and Cultural Program, about 120,000, also should be reviewed.
There have been no discussions or details regarding this Program that we're aware of. So the
question begs, how can deliberation on these new programs occur if there are no details,
guidelines or performance measurements to be considered along with this proposal? These
are just four cash items totaling more than $10 million in questionable spending that could be
used for more critical purposes such as public safety. The Chair's proposed budget cuts
negatively affect too many essential public services. In addition, we've identified over
$8 million in bond proposals that lack details, direction, and clarity, making them unlikely to
be implemented over the course of the next fiscal year. We believe these bond funds could
be more appropriately used for projects and equipment that are ready to go and will have an
immediate and beneficial impact on the community. Upon reviewing the budget presentation
by Chair White, he points out some very valid issues. The economy on the neighbor islands
has not recovered as quickly as we had hoped. However, we believe that the best way to
stimulate the economy is for government to implement projects that will be needed. The best
time to do this is while construction costs and interest rates are low. This will allow us to
save money in the long run while putting money into the economy when it is most needed.
Throughout this process, we have been working in collaboration with the Council, attending
hearings -MS. YOSHIMURA: Three minutes.
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MR. REGAN: --responding to letters and e-mails and providing information to help in the
decision-making process. We urge the Council to reconsider what has been discussed in the
past month and the direction that the Council and the community have supported over the
past several years and work with our Administration to lessen the tax burden of our citizens
and continue to improve County services that we provide. I want to thank you for allowing
me to be here this morning and having this opportunity to address you. Thank you very
much, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Mr. Regan. Questions for the testifier?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Mr....
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Would Mr. Regan have that testimony in writing submitted to
us so that we can review specifically what he's and the Mayor has been requesting?
MR. REGAN: We can submit that, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Any other questions? Seeing none, thank you very much.
MR. REGAN: Thank you, sir.
CHAIR WHITE: Members, we're going to recess to, before we go to Molokai to make sure that
we've got all of our communication lines clear. . . .(gavel).
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

9:36 a.m.
9:39 a.m.

CHAIR WHITE: ...(gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting will come back to
order. Members, we've re-secured contact with, evidently it's Lanai that's having problem
with their phone. But we Will now go to Hana to check and see if you have any testifiers.
Dawn?
MS. LONO: Good morning, Chair. This is Dawn Lono at the Hana Office and there is no one
waiting to testify.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you very much. Denise on Lanai?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Phone is down.
-14-
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CHAIR WHITE: Oh, it's down again? Okay. Members, the District Offices have been advised that
once we take the testifiers on Molokai, we will be disconnecting and they're to e-mail Staff if
they have any testifiers arrive, then we'll go back to them if they do. So with that we'll go on
to Molokai. And, Ella, you have three testifiers, and we will take all three. So please
introduce your first testifier.
MS. ALCON: My first testifier is Steve Arce.
MR. ARCE: Good morning, Chair, and Council. My name is Steven Arce and I am an employee of
the County of Maui in the Public Works Department on Molokai -CHAIR WHITE: Good morning.
MR. ARCE: --Highways Division. I have been with the County for 41 years. I have been the
Molokai District Supervisor for 28 years. I'm testifying in support of the funding for our
Molokai baseyard. There is a great need for a new baseyard for our operations. Our present
facility is located in a special management location, which is also in the flood zone area. An
evacuation is required for each tsunami warning and/or threat that comes to us. Our repair
shop is very old and unrepairable and is currently not large enough for our present equipment
to be repaired in. Our mechanics have to work outdoors on the pavement, in the hot sun, or
on the wet ground because the roof is too low and the repair bays of the shop are too small.
Our electrical system in the shop is old. It has been upgraded to try to suit our equipment but
just barely passes the minimum OSHA requirements/regulations. We have two mobile trailer
offices that are secondhand from Maui that are used as garage office and office for the
Highways Maintenance supervisor. These trailers are old and are infested with termites and
dry rot. We have spent a good portion of our monies trying to maintain them for the past
20 years. I think it's time we have a new baseyard that will improve our operations and
maintenance for our personnel. The new baseyard would enhance our operations by a
hundred percent and the safety factor will also be improved for our employees, thus
improving our productively while serving the Molokai public and community. Our
community depends a lot on the Public Works Department crew and staff for services such as
refuse, flood control, Civil Defense, brush fires, flooding on highways, road maintenance and
disaster response. I thank you for your time and consideration on this.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Mr. Arce. Members, any questions for Mr. Arce? Seeing none, thank
you very much. And, Ella, could you please introduce the next testifier?
MS. ALCON: The next testifier is Isaac Kan Hai.
MR. KAN HAl: Good morning, Chair Council.
CHAIR WHITE: Good morning.
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MR. KAN HAT: I'm Isaac Kan Hai, position, Highway Maintenance Supervisor, Public Works on
Molokai. Moved there in 1990 from Maui, the Veteran's Cemetery caretaker and moved up
to my current position. The baseyard that we currently are in was transformed from another
area in order to build our State building. We have moved to an area, opposite area, to what
locals refer to as the dust bowl, giving the idea of the dust condition we face daily. The
office that I'm currently in is a trailer that they talking about the termites falling on me.
Anyway, for 20 years, on a daily basis, I lose battle with the termite dropping and mildew
and moss in a little air condition in my window unit. We get called out for Civil Service
during tsunami warning threats, storm floods, the current baseyard itself is located in a flood
zone. Every time there is a tsunami threat, we must remove the vehicles, equipment and our
tools and et ceteras that basically in a time window, takes us about four hours to get
everything removed to higher ground in the location of, in the event of an emergency. In my
closing, Mr. Chair and Council, I ask, please rethink eliminating our new baseyard from the
budget because our employees and community could benefit from it. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Isaac. Is there any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
very much. Ella, the next testifier.
MS. ALCON: Our next testifier is Roger Apuna.
MR. APUNA: Aloha and good morning, Chair and Council members.
CHAIR WHITE: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Aloha.
MR. APUNA: My name is Roger Apuna. I'm employed as a Automotive Repair Supervisor I for
the Public Works Molokai garage. I'm here to testify on behalf of our new baseyard, which
includes the mechanic shop. We are in dire need of a new shop. My biggest concern is
safety for my mechanics and any other County employees. Our current shop is very old.
Over 90 percent of the work materials is termite infested. The wood structure is not stable
during high winds. During rainy season, it also becomes a safety hazard. The depth of the
and the vehicles, the equipment that our
shop is very short so when it rains,
mechanics are working on, becomes wet and dangerous. When it rains, some of our
electrical outlets become exposed to water. Our shop, which is a maintenance shed, is shared
with the DOT Highways, Molokai. They store two vehicles in the shed. The property is
owned by the State. They're expand, expanding their existing plans. If any of you Council
members are aware of the State's timetable on the expansion on this property, please keep
that in mind and share this information with the others regarding the deadline that the County
is supposed to turn over this property, leaving our shop and baseyard nowhere to go. Our
mechanics work 50 percent out in the open and under the roof because of the size of our
shop. That makes them exposed to rain, heat and windy conditions. This is all safety and
health hazards to our mechanics. By having a new shop and the proper facilities and
- 16 -
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environment, our mechanics can be more productive and work safe from the elements and
the hazards we face now. Mahalo and thank you for allowing me to testify this day.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you very much, Roger. And, you know, I think it's important to make it
clear that the Chair's proposal still supports a relocation and there's still about $3.6 million in
the budget to provide for a new shop or something of that sort. We're simply asking for
phasing of the project, using the lapsed bond funds that can be made available by
disencumbering the current contract. So it's not that we're not willing to move forward and
not willing to have you move to the new location, it's simply doing it in a phased fashion.
But thank you very much for your testimony.
MR. APUNA: You're welcome.
CHAIR WHITE: Members, any questions for Mr. Apuna? Seeing none, thank you Molokai. And it
seems we've been having troubles with our phone system, we're going to turn it off. So
please e--mail Staff if you have testifiers arrive just to notify us that we need to come back to
you. Thank you. Okay, back to testifiers here in the Chambers. The next testifier is
Brian Hashiro and he will be followed by Eric Yamashige.
MR. HASHIRO: Good morning, Chair, and Members.
CHAIR WHITE: Good morning.
MR. HASHIRO: My name is Brian Hashiro. I'm the Chief of Field Operations and Maintenance
for Public Works Highways Division. I have four items to talk about and I'm gonna have to
make it really quick since I only got three minutes. The first one is to support the Molokai
baseyard. You heard from my staff. We are in dire need of a new facility and one thing I'd
like to comment about is our new facility is designed to withstand hurricane-force winds. It's
going to be the only baseyard in my, all of my six districts that would withstand a hurricane.
The rest of my five districts would not withstand a hurricane. So it's very important for us.
The second topic I'd like to talk about is about the cutting of my admin operations cost. We
sent you a list of potential retirees and people that's going to be leaving our Division within
the next five years. About 20 percent of our staff is going to be leaving us and we need the
monies in the operations fund to provide for training and for bringing people over from other
islands to Maui to get some of the training. A lot of our staff are operationally very
competent, administratively, they suck. So we need to provide them the training and ability
to learn more and to be able to step up into the next level. We've tried recruiting from
outside. Their salary requirements are super high. We can't afford what the outside public
can provide to us. So we kinda like limited to promote from within. The third thing, and the
third and fourth thing is kinda tied together. It's paving/preservation. What we submitted to
you is like the bare minimum for us to provide a paving crew and a slurry seal crew and the
equipment to go along with it. And the fourth item is that Makawao equipment storage yard.
That's also to support the paving and preservation crew to house all the expensive equipment
that we buying and also to prevent environmental fines for having leaking oil drop into our
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baseyard. We've been cited before about our
our old
equipment that
used to drip oil onto the ground. EPA came out and cited us for that and had us, you know,
basically put some kind of dike around it and store it to make sure it doesn't leak and escape
into the environment. That's primarily it. Thank you for all. I appreciate your support and
I'm open to questions.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, thank you, Mr. Hashiro. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you very much.
MR. HASHIRO: Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Next testifier is Eric Yamashige who will be followed by Dave Taylor.
MR. YAMASHIGE: Good morning, Mr., sorry. Good morning, Mr. Chair -CHAIR WHITE: Good morning.
MR. YAMASHIGE: --Members. My name is Eric Yamashige. I am the Highways Superintendent.
Nice to see you all again and thank you for this opportunity. I want to mention, or I just,
three things. First of all is our Special Maintenance Fund. It's a general fund and the
garages, as you know, are moving from Highway funded to General funded because we do
serve more than just Highway vehicles and equipment. A reduction in that fund will be felt
by everyone. The overtime that we have in the garages are limited but are used to maintain
an aging fleet, including refuse collection equipment, which is a critical service. Fuel keeps
rolling in and out. Molokai has had to ration and a reduction in the fuel budget and an
increase in the reimbursement budget is really a double negative, which we experienced last
year. Our Veteran's Cemetery on Molokai allows weekend burials because there is no
refrigeration. So Molokai Veteran's Cemetery does require some overtime funding. Okay.
Number two is something Brian already mentioned on the Highway's Administration budget.
It includes bringing our Lanai and Molokai supervisors and staff over to Maui for group
meetings as well as advancement training. Reducing that ability would add more isolation to
our neighbor islands. And finally, Pavement Preservation. Pavement Preservation is a
long-term project with long-term benefits but we do see immediate results. Because we have
not been able to staff our Pavement Preservation Program, it has been very demanding on our
districts. They've been having to do really two jobs for this past year. Finally, our
Engineering Division offers many projects for the paving community and with their continual
support, we'll be maintaining our roads. But thank you very much for this time and...
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Eric. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
for coming this morning.
MR. YAMASHIGE: Thanks.
CHAIR WHITE: Our next testifier is Dave Taylor followed by Mike Ratte.
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MR. TAYLOR: Good morning, Chair White, members of the Budget Committee. My name is
Dave Taylor. I'm the Director of the Department of Water Supply, If I was as smart as
Public Works, I would have brought four people but instead I'm just going to try fit in all my
issues in my three minutes. We've reviewed Chair White's budget proposal and I wanted to
share some thoughts. I have five major points. Just in general, we don't see any critical
failures happening and no noticeable impact to the public in the next year based on
implementation of this budget. However it does not match the long-term goals and
projections that we've been sharing with you in the Water Resources Committee. I'll go
through where some of the shifts are. First positions, we've asked for two pipefitters in this
leak squad we talked about when we were here last week. We have a growing system and an
aging system. So pipefitters are something that we're going to need more of. These are the
guys that go and do repairs. Also, source development. Everybody knows we're short of
source. Finding and fixing leaks is equivalent to source development. So our plan was to
add two pipefitters to be this leak squad that, which is equivalent to developing source. As
they run out of work to do at some point in the future, we would need them for additional
pipefitters anyway. So we think this is a type of employee expansion the public supports
because it increases efficiency, develop source, gets us ready for what the next phase is going
to be. That's why they're not called leak detection people, they're pipefitters, they're very,
they can do anything. We have a lot of pipefitters. Second, rates. I think this was handed
out yesterday in Budget, which is the Chair's proposal for changing rates. First, the Kula Ag
Park is identified as a separate category. With the City and County of Honolulu, Board of
Water Supply does our billing. It's too late to add a category to the automated billing
system. All we can do is change the numbers. If we add a category for the Kula Ag Park, we
would have to do it manually, which we could do, but we're trying from a staffing
perspective, we didn't really up staff when we went from bi-monthly to monthly billing so
we're trying to keep it automated. So we would really appreciate if we could just keep the
categories the same and just change any numbers. Second, I think there might be an error in
what was handed out. In the Ag rates, it only changes the first two tiers, not the third. I think
it was intended in the Chair's PowerPoint to change the third tier to a dollar, but in this paper
I got, it doesn't have any change for the third tier. The first two tiers. The first two tiers in
Ag rates are meant to be the same as the first two tiers in General and Residential saying that
the first two tiers, it's assuming that's for people's houses. So I would also recommend
keeping that, keeping the first two tiers the same as we keep Residential and Other. As far as
the third tier, that's what you can play with. By lowering it, we've talked a lot about the
water shortage bill, which is our sort of incentive/disincentive for people to use water
carefully. This goes in the opposite direction of that. Not only does it reduce revenue by
about a half million dollars but it sends a message to the Ag user saying it's okay to use more
water, it's okay in times of drought.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Three minutes.
MR. TAYLOR: We can do this.. .I'll finish up. We can do this but just remember, as we're giving
out meters--I'm not going to say we're gonna, you know, stop giving out Upcountry meters-- 19-
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but we're going to have to take this into account and probably give out less meters because
we'll need to save more for Ag 'cause the message we're sending through rates is that, you
know, they should have more water, which is okay, it's just a change in what we've been
talking about. Third, the budget moves $1.7 million of cash CEP to bond. This is also fine,
but it means that in the future, rates will go up more than projected to pay that additional debt
service. Fourth, it moves $1.4 million from Operations to this new Program I'll talk about in
a minute and that's essentially the electricity buffer in case oil prices and drought require
more pumping. So it increases the chances we may have to come back to the Council for
emergency fund in case we run out of money. And fifth, this new Program uses the savings
and those other things to create this Pipe Replacement Program.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Four minutes
MR. TAYLOR: And I'll be happy to finish up at some later time, Mr. Chair.

CHAIR WHITE: Okay, thank you. Members.. .wait, I'm sure you'll have questions. Mr.. .uh, Mr.,
Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much, Chair. Don't run away. What did you want
to say about the Pipe Replacement? I think it's critical.
MR. TAYLOR: Okay, the Pipe Replacement Program uses the savings to create a $10 million or a
$10.6 million Pipe Replacement Program, which is intended, when people come in, to help
fund their improvements. We looked at the things that are on our plate right now. We've got
12 applicants, all Upcountry in this case, where their total costs for these 12 is $2.8 million.
So if you can imagine a hundred Upcountry people plus the rest of the County, this Program
could be hundreds of millions of dollars. So I just want to be clear. I know the details have
to be worked out in Water Resources Committee. This may not be a $10 million program.
This could be a several hundred million dollar program. And it's also unclear in the budget
whether or not the bond fund for this is supposed to come from Water or from General Fund.
So I just wanted to point out that there's some, we're not clear about the intention of that
$8 million.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yeah, thank you very much, Mr. Taylor. When you say that
12 people would cost us, what was it, 2.8 mil?
MR. TAYLOR: Twelve applicants -COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yeah.
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MR. TAYLOR: --who are looking at an, expansions of between 115 and 2,800 feet --

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Right.
MR. TAYLOR: --have a total cost of $2.8 million. Under the current ordinance, our share of
reimbursement is 50 percent or 75 percent, that you're all familiar with, comes out to
$1.6 million. If we paid the whole thing, it would be $2.8 million -COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Okay.
MR. TAYLOR: --for 12.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: That's what I looking for because I do know that we don't reimburse
the whole thing.
MR. TAYLOR: Right. So if the intention of this is to reimburse the whole thing and expand it, you

know, to other people, I just want to point out that it could be as big or as small as the
Council wishes based on the criteria.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Okay. Thank you very much.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, you know, based upon what you've given us and I hope
you can give us copies of that so that we can mull over or mill over, excuse me, what you're
referring to. What is the Upcountry water meter list now? Just using that, I don't need to
know about the rest of the County, just how many people are, more or less, on the Upcountry
water meter list?
MR. TAYLOR: There are, remember each applicant could be asking for many, many meters but
there's a couple thousand applicants.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Just the applicants?
MR. TAYLOR: And the volume of water is equal to about maybe 60 or 80 percent the existing
volume of water.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right. Okay, so about 2,000?
MR. TAYLOR: Something like that.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Two thousand, okay. So if 12 at like $3 million, right, that's
what you just said, 12 at just around $3 million?
MR. TAYLOR: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And if you're doing the math and you somewhere around
$500 million you would need to get everybody, if you were to do everybody, about
$500 million, more or less?
MR. TAYLOR: I would imagine that if you went through everybody, you're going to do the one
guy where another guy comes in in the middle and doesn't need anything. So I would
imagine it would be less than that for Upcountry.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MR. TAYLOR: But our rough estimate is still a few hundred million dollars just for Upcountry.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah and that would just be Upcountry and this is
encompassing the entire County, Molokai and the rest of the County is inclusive of this,
right?
MR. TAYLOR: It would be up to, I think this is a placeholder value that would be up to, in your
Committee, to work out who would qualify, whether it's geography, with or without the
general, within the General Plan area or the Urban Growth Boundaries, based on income,
etcetera, et cetera. I think that would be up to this Body to work out what, who this was
intended for.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, okay. Daunting task but I'm not, you know, I don't
want, again, Mr. Chair, I don't want expectations being raised what, this is the answer 'cause
yesterday that was one of the calls I got from a number of people, oh does this mean we're
going to get our water meter, and I kept telling them no, this does not change things, it's just
a matter of us finding the method. And I can tell you right now, $10 million just based upon
those numbers not going to carry us very far, as far as any area is concerned. So I'm
concerned--let me finish 'cause it's my Committee's going get it so I wanna make sure
people know that I don't want expectations raised and then people gonna think they gonna
get water meters and we don't. A lot of work has to be done on this and $10 million is not
much money to place as a holder for such a daunting task and that's what I'm afraid of.
We'll discuss it further at an appropriate time. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, there's no question that a lot, there's a lot of cost involved, but one of the
other things that we've discussed with Mr. Taylor and others is whether or not it is
appropriate to have the same, have the levels of flow requirements that we have in rural areas
for fire flow and so some of this cost may come down based on simply adjusting fire flow
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requirements in rural areas. And if that's the case then somebody who's got to put in a
$3.8 million infrastructure upgrade just to build his house is-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: --wait, hold on -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, okay. Now you getting
CHAIR WHITE: --they're going to be, they may be looking at something that's significantly lower.
Again, this is a placeholder to get, to address the issue that we've all heard that when I want
to build my house I'm told--and this is not just Upcountry, this is everywhere in the County-I've gotta put in an upgrade to the County infrastructure, because of fire flow in my
neighborhood, I've gotta put something in that's gonna serve all the people in my
neighborhood, but I've gotta foot the cost. So this is simply, the amount that we've put aside
is about $10 million. It will go further if we reduce the fire flow standards. That's
something that Mr. Hokama has in his Committee and we'll take a serious look at that. But
you're right, you know, the costs is going to be dependent on I believe largely on whether or
not we can appropriately adjust the fire flow standards so. Further questions?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Couch followed by Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Taylor, for your comments. Question
I have is that if the Ag rates were changed--I believe the budget talks about a $500 million
loss in revenue, I'm sorry, $500,000 loss in revenue--is that about what you estimate would
be if we changed, you know, running the numbers and changing the rates? It seems like it's
kind of a low number to me.
MR. TAYLOR: Mr. Chair, first I'd ask for your direction. I've cleared my schedule all day. I can
come back as a resource at another time -CHAIR WHITE: We
MR. TAYLOR: --if you don't -CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
MR. TAYLOR: --want to do this now.
CHAIR WHITE: We'll have all of you, you know, at some point and for all the departments to have
their say and not just in testimony.
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MR. TAYLOR: Oh, okay.
CHAIR WHITE: So the Chair's interest is to go through, make, you know, a couple of passes so we
can narrow down what the real issues are that we, you know, we still have some concerns
over and at that point, we'll have the Departments come in and help us get additional
information to make the final decisions. And we'll.. .you're going to be back, don't worry
about that.
MR. TAYLOR: I assumed, that's why I don't want to, I know there's a lot of testifiers today.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I'll wait till then.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, thank you. And thank you, Mr. Taylor.
MR.

TAYLOR: Thank you.

CHAIR WHITE: Our next testifier is Mike Ratte followed by Will Spence.
MR. RATTE: Thank you, Mr. Chair and Councilmembers, for allowing me this opportunity to
testify before you today. My name is Mike Ratte. I'm the Acting Division Chief for Solid
Waste Division and I have worked in Public Works and Environmental Management for the
past 22 years in engineering and management roles. Today I'll just provide brief information
regarding our proposed budget and focusing mostly on Solid Waste Division where the
majority of our Department's budget changes are seen. Brief history, in the past, Solid Waste
Division goals used to be simpler. We used to be able to collect trash at the curb, haul it to
the landfill and cover it. Over the years, increased amounts of regulations, permits,
regulatory compliance, engineering, over 35 diversion programs and grants basically have
tasked the Solid Waste Division beyond sustainable levels. This is unfortunately proven by
our troubling compliance record as of late. Our Division team, several of 'em here today,
have drafted a quantifiable budget that meets the goals and measures that we outlined in this
budget to address that lack of compliance and the costly impact of that. Also presented
recently was our Division's five-year plan in Member Cochran's Committee to outline our
responsible management plan. Please note, however, that any reductions in our FY '15
budget will definitely require these goals and measures to be reduced, reverting back to
existing levels. So we need what we're asking for to meet those goals and measures that we
outlined for you. Unapproved budgets over the years have increased our reductions in
non-regulatory areas. Should this trend continue and budget expansions be cut again, we will
be forced to continue cutting recycling programs, diversionary programs and non-regulatory
compliant programs unfortunately. It's not what we want to do, it's what we would be forced
to do to focus on regulatory compliance. Prioritization has to be placed on that over
non-regulatory. The monies paid for non-compliance in the last eight years alone has been
over $41/2 million and that's about 560,000 per year. Our proposed budget expansion is far
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less than this amount and will maintain both operations as well as all of our current recycling
and diversion programs, meet community needs, and save money. Our budget is a win-win
plan for the community and for the County. Our major FY '15 expansions are as follows.
We have proposed a new Sustainability Division. We need some operations positions and
we need to shore up our Engineering Section. The new Sustainability Division will address
environmental concerns beyond the Department's current abilities. The new Division is
made up of current Solid Waste Division staff and a few E/Ps to address the voter-approved
Charter amendment. This thought, thought has been put into this plan and will incorporate
our recycling section, separating them out from the Refuse and Landfill budget, allowing
their monies to be used for recycling rather than being robbed for operational needs. Our
operations positions, we've got five of them cut about six years back. That reduction in staff
has proved costly. We lack supervision in Molokai, Hana and Lanai, where our Supervisors
have been forced to act as operators since those five positions were cut. We need those
positions reinstated. We need to empower our supervisors to do their jobs and we also need
to meet our State permit requirements for minimum staffing, which we do not meet presently.
With no dedicated operators, you guys probably got some calls recently. We have had
closures at the landfills when staffing levels have not been achieved. We just can't afford to
leave those landfills open whenever there's non-compliance or safety issues. I don't want to
have to make that call to somebody's spouse that says that their husband or wife has been
injured because we lacked enough on a staff at the working face to -MS. YOSHIMURA: Four minutes.
MR. RATTE: --keep it safe. We need our operators and attendants back. That's our priority.
CHAIR WHITE: Any questions for the testifier?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Baisa.

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much, Chair. And thank you for being here. As you
know, today is the first volley of the opportunity to react to Chair's budget. And so we were,
we're just beginning the bargaining process. If we couldn't give you back everything, that
you had to choose, which positions would you want most and for what sites?
MR. RATTE: I think in general between our operator positions being reinstated, I hope that the
Council appreciates that those positions were initially in our budget five years back and prior.
So I don't look at those as expansions, I look at those as reinstating positions that we had in
past. Given that, our Engineering Section, we're asking for one single expansion position
and we have taken the advice of Council and relocated another position from within the
Division. So that engineering position is critical for us to have and the transfer. I would
have a hard time prioritizing either of those but reinstating the operators for sure would be
first and foremost, engineering second.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Okay.
MR. RATTE: If I may add -COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yes, sure.
MR. RATTE: --Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Sure.
MR. RATTE: In our Engineering Section, we do have over 20 CIP projects, over 40 permits and
over 50 ongoing operations engineering projects. So we presently have two engineers in the
Division. Given that amount of work, with two engineers, you know, pardon me for saying,
but, you know, that is grossly understaffed. So yes we need the operator positions but giving
us one more engineering position to shore up that Engineering Section is just as critical for
long-term planning and staying ahead of the curve instead of fighting fires as the Division
has been forced to do.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much. You know, this is always difficult and so it's
good to know if choices have to be made, what those are. Thank you.
MR. RATTE: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. Any other questions for Mr. Ratte? Mr. Ratte, the Chair's proposal is
based on the Chair's concern that we are increasing staff throughout the County without
taking a proper long look at where we really need to provide our resources. The Chair's
proposal doesn't necessarily say that we don't believe that your requests are appropriate.
The Chair's concern is that we are in a position where we have grown County positions far
faster than the positions that are growing in the private sector. And as a result of that, it's the
Chair's position that we need to focus on reallocating personnel and this positions, as you
will recall, the Mayor was stating that he was going to reduce employment in the County by
7 percent through attrition. Through attrition, we should be able to reallocate positions. So if
the, I believe your need is a real one and I think you've done a lot of research but at the same
time, I believe it's incumbent on the Administration to look for positions that are not as
critical and move them to those that are. The other concern that is reflected in the Chair's
proposal is that we have Anaergia coming down the road and that will require, from what the
presentation was to us in the [EM Committee that that will significantly reduce the need for
staffing at the landfill. Now whether that's correct or not, I don't know, but it's difficult for
us to feel compelled to increase staffing in the face of significant decreases that may be
coming down the line. So again I hope you can understand the Chair's concerns and, you
know, our focus as we're putting this together, the Staff and I, was that, you know, we really
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need to make sure that we're very, very respectful of the taxpayers' monies since we have
been pulling in significantly more from the private sector, the residents and businesses who
are hurting a lot more than the County is hurt. So anyway, I just wanted to share that with
you.
MR. RATTE: Yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: And, you know, you provided us with a absolutely outstanding report and I think
many of us very much agree to what your concerns are.
MR. RATTE: If I could add just a brief, just touching upon the fiscal concerns that you just
mentioned. Reinstating our five operations positions and approving of that engineer position
that we're requesting will cost monies. It will cost about $350,000 per year including the
overhead in fringe. However, the non-compliance costs that I mentioned earlier, the
41/2 million that's been for the last 8 years, I don't expect that to change in the next two. That
cost is 550,000 a year. That's what we pay on average. So this budget, reinstating these
operating positions, and giving us that engineer will save us an estimated $250,000 a year
given this plan, given the five-year plan and the resources we're asking for in the budget, so.
CHAIR WHITE: I understand that.
MR. RATTE: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: I'm just asking that you and the others in the Administration go look for where we
can trim a few employees and not, not live bodies, but positions.
MR. RATTE: Understood. I think our focus with my last statement was that we would appreciate
trimming non-compliance and -CHAIR WHITE: No, we have no-MR. RATTE: --safety concerns -CHAIR WHITE: --we totally -MR. RATTE: --concerns -CHAIR WHITE: --understand -MR. RATTE: --and -CHAIR WHITE: --and your -MR. RATTE: --that's hopefully --27-
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CHAIR WHITE: --and your
MR. RATTE: --does the job.
CHAIR WHITE: --outline was very good.
MR. RATTE: Excellent.
CHAIR WHITE: Thanks for -MR. RATTE: Alright, thank you very much.
CHAIR WHITE: --putting that together. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair? Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes, Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And thank you, Mr. Ratte, but, Chair, this is more of a question
for you. Again, as with Mr. Taylor, perhaps if we can get Department here further on in
our -CHAIR WHITE: Oh, yeah, no, -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --deliberations.
CHAIR WHITE: --Mr. Ratte will -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Mr. Ratte or -CHAIR WHITE: --we'll be happy -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --whoever you -CHAIR WHITE: --to have him for
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --folks choose from the Department to be here for further details
and questions rather than drag out our testimony portion today.
CHAIR WHITE: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you.
WMA
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CHAIR WHITE: Okay, yeah, we will be -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: --we'll be calling them all back as needed. Thank you very much.
MR. RATTE: Thank you, Chair. Thank you, Council members.
CHAIR WHITE: Next testifier is Will Spence and he will be followed by Michele McLean.
MR. SPENCE: Good morning, Chair. Good morning, Budget Committee members. I'm sorry, I'm
fighting a little bit of cold. So I hope I don't wander around too much. I wanted to touch on
at least three things in the proposed budget. As proposed, the budget is proposed to be cut,
Planning Department's budget is proposed to be cut $282,000 plus an expansion position.
First I'll touch on the expansion position. This is for a clerical person, probably the lowest,
you know, paid person within that office and it's for Zoning and Enforcement. Right now
there are 18 people total in that Division with one clerical. It means this one clerical is
staffing the Planning Program Administrator, four planners, four inspectors, six to be soon,
we're hopeful of filling those positions soon, four plan checkers, two zoning clerks. This
person not only does all of the letters and all that stuff, she's the receptionist as well. So
she's doing double duty. This is a long-time coming that there be one additional clerical
person within that Division. To me that's a very minor thing. The second one, we talked a
little bit earlier about the Form-based Code project. I think something that we're all
criticized about is, particularly the Planning Department, is, you know, what do we do with
all these great projects that are in our, say our Maui Island Plan that we're supposed to
implement? Now it's one thing to respond to the applications that come in, it's actually
something else to go do something with the plans when it says go revise the Zoning Code, go
revise the this or the that. This Form-based Code, I checked through just the Maui Island
Plan, not only, not even the community plans. This one project would absolutely take care of
14 separate items within the Maui Island Plan that the Planning Department is supposed to
do. It would also touch on 10 additional items, if not completely, partially. So up to
24 different things that this one project that we're proposing to do, would take care of. Also
want to bring up the KIVA Replacement Project. I know it's centered in Information and
Technology but it affects so many different departments in the County. This, the program we
have is a dinosaur. It's, I know Mr. Regan used the term Lotus 1-2-3 for, I was going to use
stole my fire but those of us who are familiar with
that in my testimony and he's
staring at a amber or green monochrome screen, you know, looking at Lotus 1-2-3. That's
exactly the way KIVA is. It's not only a tool internally, this is a, this is one of the primary
portals for the public to gain public information, be able to go in and see, you know, when
we ask, people ask where's my permit, you know what's the status? KIVA is horrible for
people being able to look that up. A replacement of that would give much more complete
information and I would encourage that project to be, it's a great service to the public, not
just to the line agencies. Last thing and I'll be done. I would encourage computer
replacement. I know my own computer that sits on my desk --29-
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MS. YOSHIMURA: Four minutes.
MR. SPENCE: --okay, I have to reboot it at least once a day if I'm, and mine's one of the more
modern computers within the office. We have people in the office with 10-year-old
computers. Mine, if I'm doing more than a browser, Excel and e-mail, it's pretty much
maxed out. So, it's, I think, I can't speak for other departments, but ours definitely needs
computer replacement. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Members, questions for the testifier? Again, the Chair's proposal provides for
funding, not at the same level, for KIVA. And again, it's a question of how much money we
need to set aside for this next fiscal year because it's our understanding this is a process that
will take a couple of years -MR. SPENCE: Yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: --to complete. So again, we'll get into those details as we get into further review.
MR. SPENCE: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. Any questions, any other questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you very much. Michele McLean is next and she'll be followed by Mark Walker.
MS. McLEAN: Good morning, Chair White and Council Chair Baisa, and Committee members.
I'm Michele McLean, the Deputy Planning Director. I'll pick up where Will left off.
Looking at the proposed reduction to the Planning Department budget, if you take away the
Form-based Code project that Will mentioned, that was proposed for $150,000, and you take
away our salaries, and you take away our rent, and the Sea Grant project, the certified local,
excuse me, certified local government project, that leaves our Department with about
$500,000 for operating, regular operating expenses. The proposed additional cut on top of
that would be 132,500. So from $500,000, we'd be looking at where we're going to cut more
than 130,000. And there are a couple of areas where that would come from and I just want to
explain what those cuts might mean. Three areas where we have, when we budget, we
anticipate what our costs are going to be and then we have a little bit of cushion because
some of those costs you really can't nail down at the beginning of the fiscal year. Those
include advertising because we don't know how many public hearings we're gonna have
during the course of the year and we have publication requirements for ads for public notices.
Our travel budget is also somewhat unknown because we don't know how many, we know
we have our regular Lanai and Molokai meetings but we also have other Boards and
Commissions that travel to those islands. We don't know how many Statewide task forces
and conferences and meetings it would be very beneficial for us to attend. And we also don't
know how many extra meetings we might have to have on Lanai and Molokai. Coming up in
FY '15, we know we're going to be starting the Molokai Community Plan. We have an idea
of how many meetings that's going to take but it could require more, not only with the CPAC
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but also with the Planning Commission. So if our $500,000 budget has to be reduced by
130,000, we might be looking at having to have some travel limitations. That's going to be
difficult for us. The other area where we often have some cushion is in Professional
Services. For Professional Services, that's when we pay for Hearings Officers when we have
interventions and contested cases before our Boards and Commissions. At the beginning of
the fiscal year, we don't know how many of those are going to take place. If we have extra
meetings and also for contested cases, we often hire a court reporter. Again, we don't know
at the beginning of the year how many of those we might have. And also we take on smaller
projects during the course of the year where we might have to hire a consultant. So again
those are the things that we would look at really being squeezed if we had to take roughly
500,000 and reduce it by 130,000. There's one other thing that I did want to testify about
and I believe you received written testimony from the Maui Redevelopment Agency asking
for funding for two projects.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Three minutes.
MS. McLEAN: One is the Tao Square project where some partial funding was included. They're
asking for additional funding for that and also for the Clean and Safe Program in Wailuku
Town. We're very supportive of both of those and I believe members of the MRA will be
testifying tomorrow on those. That's all I have for you. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you very much. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you -MS. McLEAN: Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: --for coming this morning. Our next testifier is Mark Walker and he'll be
followed by Jeff Murray. And Jeff Murray is the last person who has signed up for testimony
this morning. So if there's anyone else in the Chambers who would like to provide
testimony, please sign up out in the lobby. Thank you. Please proceed.
MR. WALKER: Good morning, Chair White, Committee members. Mark Walker, Deputy
Director, Department of Finance. When I appeared before this Committee a few weeks ago,
I indicated that we believe strongly that the proposed 2015 Budget from the Finance
Department was fair and reasonable and that it was geared at improving services and
operating efficiencies. Aside from the mandatory wage increases, our proposed budget
increase was under 3 percent. As currently proposed, the Chair's budget, absent the wage
increases, will reduce the Finance Department budget by close to 10 percent over what was
approved in 2014. We need the tools to provide the services at the level expected by the
public. You know, with all due respect, we requested a hammer and it appears we're getting
a screwdriver. The Finance Department will be providing written testimony to the
Committee. However I'd like to touch on a few of the budget line items that concern us. In
the Accounts Program, deletion of the Grant Manager expansion request, which has been
recommended by our external auditors in past single audits, seem to me that during Budget
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deliberations, that the Committee, on some level, supported implementing the staffing of this
position. Also the elimination of the request for $120,000 for professional services in the
Accounts Program, the Accounts section has been working for two plus years on paperless
workflow form design and training and have spent in excess of 100,000 on this initiative.
They are in the middle of the process of going paperless. Following through with this effort
requires the final phases of scanning and file archiving systems, which will increase
efficiencies and obviously reduce cost. In the Financial Services Program, DMVL
specifically, the elimination of the expansion request for three service representatives for the
satellite offices. In keeping with our continuing effort to provide DMVL services to the
public where they live and work, in physical year '14, we requested six service
representatives positions for the satellite offices. At that time, the Council approved three
positions. I guess the analogy that I can draw is, a light bulb goes out in the room and we
request a six-foot ladder so we can reach the ceiling and change the bulb. We're get a threefoot ladder. We're attempting to get the other three feet on our ladder so we can change the
light bulb. The room is still dark. Two other line items, which we'll address in the memo to
the Committee, are the reduction in other services of 76,000 and in janitorial services of a
little over 20,000. Lastly, the Treasury Program. We have requested 74,000 in premium
paid account for the increased time requirements to process the revised Circuit Breaker
ordinance. As I noted in my testimony to this Committee a few weeks ago, a budget
ordinance was approved for providing $86,000 in additional -MS. YOSHIMURA: Three minutes.
MR. WALKER: --funding for the implementation of the new Circuit Breaker. This funding is still
needed for 2015. I understand that this Committee has to make tough decisions. Please
, hoping to get half
know that the Finance Department did not submit a budget
of it. We didn't play that game. We submitted a reasonable, well thought out budget for the
things we needed to do to continue to provide good service to our customers and operating
efficiencies where they could be obtained. I respectfully request that you revisit our
proposed budget and reconsider the requests we have made previously. Thank you very
much.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Mr. Walker. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you -MR. WALKER: Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: --very much. And our final testifier is Jeff Murray unless there's somebody else
that has signed up for testimony. And if you haven't, please do so now. Before you start,
Mr. Murray, Staff, have we received any notification from District Offices regarding
testifiers?
MS. YOSHIMURA: No, Mr. Chair.
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CHAIR WHITE: Okay, thank you. Please proceed.
MR. MURRAY: Aloha and good morning, Chair, and Council members, Staff. I have 11 copies of
some items that I want to speak about, if I may pass this out. I have some pictures of some
vehicles. I also have our Fleet Management and Auxiliary Fleet Management Program. I
know three minutes is really short to talk about
CHAIR WHITE: You'll be back, don't worry.
MR. MURRAY: Okay, so I want to thank Mr. Taylor for opening that door 'cause I really
appreciate that. I think we need a day or two maybe.
CHAIR WHITE: Well, just to be clear.
MR. MURRAY: Okay.
. you can stop the three minutes ... but this Committee, not just under
CHAIR WHITE: And we're—you
me, but under previous Chairs, has always brought the departments back in once we narrow
the issues. You know, we want to hear your concerns and your thoughts. So just for the
Members to be comfortable, everyone that we have concerns with, we will be having you
back later in the week.
MR. MURRAY: Alright, thank you, Chair. We really appreciate that 'cause the amount of items
here wouldn't allow me enough time to go over it. Before I start on our Department, I'd like
to ask for support for the Molokai baseyard. They are our partners within that community
and I think it's a great project that you seriously need to look into. Also the KIVA project.
That also helps our inspection as far as working with the other work groups within the
County. We want for you to take a look at the vehicle requisitions. We haven't had any
since 2009 and I want you to take a look at the policy that we have in place for 13 years now.
We do that for many reasons, liability being one and also for us to manage the ability to
replace and stagger our assets. In one of the items, they talk, on the Auxiliary Fleet
Management, the auto allowance. I brought that to you for our executive staff to turn their
vehicles over to the areas that are in need. So if that auto allowance is not looked at
seriously, then we have to ask for three more SUVs, which we didn't put in the budget
because we had to choose either the SUVs or the allowance itself. So 30,000 versus 210,000.
So we're trying to be proactive as far as that goes. Also if you look on Page 50, our bond
request for our ladder truck as well as the Pukoo Fire Station Engine. We'd like some
consideration in that area, as well as Page 46, the CIP, we asked for $500,000 to maintain our
stations. It became nothing. So something in that area would be really good to maintain our
stations. We also asked that some of the vacant positions be reconsidered. Some we are
working, diligently, right now as we speak, to fill those positions. So please seriously take a
look at that. And our vehicles. Again, our utility vehicles, if you look at that one set of
pictures that I have for you, that is Utility 7. That has been down since February of 2013. I
came in last year for this vehicle and others are -- 33 -
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MS. YOSHIMURA: Three minutes.
MR. MURRAY: --like that. So I would like to spend some time going over our requests as needed,
so I'll be on standby for you. Thank you for the opportunity and I appreciate that. Thank
you.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chief Murray. Just for clarification, the picture is of what vehicle?
MR. MURRAY: That is Utility 7 in Hana.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
MR. MURRAY: So that has been down since February of 2013. We are utilizing a 1995, in excess
of 232,000 miles, to achieve that necessity in that district.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you very much,
Mr. Murray.
MR. MURRAY: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: And we appreciate you being on-call. Members, we have one more testifier who
has signed up. And our next testifier is J0 Anne Winer.
MS. WINER: Good morning, Budget chair White and Budget Committee members. My name is
Jo-Anne Winer. I'm Director of Transportation. We respectfully ask that you revisit the
following items and consider restoration of the funds that were included in our proposal. On
Page 37 of the Chair's proposed budget, our Transportation Services were cut by a total of
$95,000, leaving us only $15,000 needed to provide schedules for our riders, purchase
cameras and hard drives when equipment goes down, which is a safety issue, replace signs
for bus stops, purchase fare boxes, 'cause sometimes we have to purchase new ones when we
get additional vehicles and just the schedules alone cost a minimum of $24,000 per year. By
having our CIP budget for bus shelters cut by one half to $700,000, we will have to cease
construction for at least a two-year period at, you know, of our shelters. We have a price
that's been negotiated with the existing vender and he's holding his prices level. So if we
have to defer this, it would be very difficult for us to continue that project. We have issues
with giving no increase to the commuter services and also for the fixed route services. We
did ask for 5 percent, but because of all the requirements under PTA, this is very difficult to
manage with no increase. We are also working with Roberts to improve the technology on
our buses to improve rider safety, allow smart phone tracking, which is a big issue for a lot of
our riders. And Roberts is working to keep pace with technology improvements for the
benefit of our ridership and so I think they're going a little bit above and beyond the call of
what our contract requires so we're just asking that you reconsider that at least at 3 percent,
which is what has been a restoration in some other areas. By cutting the school bus
-34-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 29, 2014

replacement for MEO, which you've already heard from Ms. McNeff, they cannot maintain
the needed safety improvements that newer buses would provide and they should also be able
to transport youth in structurally sound vehicles. While the Committee stated that we could
come back for MPO matching funds, it's sometimes very difficult to come back and then also
find the money for the project that you're doing at that time. So we're required to move
forward with the MPO by both the FTA and the Federal Highways Administration. And so if
we have no money in that category, it's difficult for us to become compliant. So I would
respectfully ask that you consider at least as a good faith placeholder, putting $100,000 in
that particular category.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Three minutes.
MS. WINER: And I just wind up by saying that we have increased our Fiscal Year budget by less
than ½ of a percent and yet our Department received a cut in the proposed operating budget
of more than 6 percent. So with the additional revenue that was generated in our fare box,
which is now $2.8 million, and our ridership continuing to grow, it's going to exceed
$2.5 million per year, we just ask that you consider restoration of this. And one final thing,
Mr. Chair, that, I believe there was an error in the commuter. I think the figures were
transposed because if the commuter--I think it was 74,500--it should be 47,500 if it's going
down by the amount of the increase. So if you could please check that.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. We'll certainly do that. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, Ms. Winer, what do you anticipate the revenues to be? You said the ridership is,
you're forecasting that ridership is going to continue to grow. What do you, my recollection
is that you budgeted a flat level of revenue, so that's not quite consistent with the statement
that it's going to grow.
MS. WINER: We're looking at 2.5 million minimum riders but the reason that we put in no growth
in ridership was in anticipation of what might happen with regards to fares, because last year
when the fares did increase, even though we increased revenues by 1 million, the ridership
dipped for about a six-month period and then now it started come back up. So we didn't
want to be overzealous in projecting what our ridership was going to be, but if there's no
change in the fares, it has been consistently growing.
CHAIR WHITE: So what do you anticipate the growth in fares, I mean the growth in your revenues
to be with the existing fares and just the growth that you're seeing in ridership?
MS. WINER: I would say we may, because those fares go into the Highway fund, it really doesn't-how should I put this--we don't put the fares into our operating budget.
CHAIR WHITE: No, I understand that. But I'm
MS. WINER: I would venture to say a minimum of 2.5 million in fare revenues but just based on
what we're looking at now, I mean, it could be as much as $3 million, depends on who is
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CHAIR WHITE: Are you talking about the total revenues or the
MS. WINER: Just the fare box. Just the fare box. We get other revenues.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, what I'm asking, I may not be making myself clear. What I'm trying to
establish is, you just mentioned that the revenues have increased by a million dollars based
on the fares that we established last year.
MS. WINER: Right.
CHAIR WHITE: And you also stated that the ridership is growing -MS. WINER: Yes.
CHAIR WHITE: --after taking a little bit of a hit.
MS. WINER: Right.
CHAIR WHITE: So what I'm trying to understand is how much you anticipate the revenues will
grow for all services that we're providing with the existing rates and the growth that you see
in the ridership?
MS. WINER: Okay, well, keep in mind that I'm looking at ridership in all categories. There is no
revenue generated from Human Services transportation at all. So that's where, you know, I
can have growth in ridership but right now what's happening is, because paratransit has been
taken over by MEO, some of that cost shifting is falling on the Human Services side and
that's why I think you've provided them also with the 3 percent increase. So it's really hard
for me to say because that Paratransit is actually, you know, in large part contributing to
some of the growth. When I give you an overall ridership figure, that includes Commuter,
Fixed Route, Paratransit and Human Services.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. All I'm asking for is a projected change in revenue.
MS. WINER: I would have to say that it's probably, at minimum, maybe a 2 percent to 3 percent
because I would have to look at some of that increase in ridership being on the Human
Services side as well as fare generating.
CHAIR WHITE: No, I understand that.
MS. WINER: You could probably say 2, 21/2 to 3 percent.
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CHAIR WHITE: You just said that the change of rates it's grown by a million dollars over what the
previous year was and you said that the ridership is growing. I'm assuming you're talking
about the regular transit as well as the other. So what is the growth in the regular transit?
MS. WINER: In regular transit I believe, prior to the fare increase, we were looking at 2.8 million
riders per year. So if we get back up to that level in this next fiscal year for fixed route and
commuter, I would say probably we would approach the 2.8 million in that category.
CHAIR WHITE: And so what is the revenue?
MS. WINER: It depends -CHAIR WHITE: Are you saying
MS. WINER: --if they buy monthly passes. It depends if it's single fares because, keep in mind,
these are boardings.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay Mr. Baz says he can help. So Mr. Baz.
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Okay, so first, what she's explaining with the million dollars is
for Fiscal Year '13, we had budgeted approximately $1.9 million in public transit fare
revenue. For Fiscal Year '14, we budgeted $2.6 million so that was a $700,000 increase in
the budgeted revenue. The actual fare revenue for Fiscal Year '13 was $2,692,257, so
exceeded the budget by a little bit. So far the first six months of the year, we see $1,358,000
in public transit fare revenue. So at half a year, that's a little, that's 50.3 percent of the
$2.6 million budgeted, so we increased the fare revenue to $2.7 million. So that's, you'll see
$100,000 increase in this year once, what she's explaining is that once the ridership catches
back up to the fares, then the, we should see a little bit of an increase in the actual revenue.
CHAIR WHITE: That's all I was asking.
MR. BAZ: Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. Members, any other questions for Ms. Winer? Seeing none, thank
you very much.
MS. WINER: Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: And we have one more testifier, Walter Pacheco.
MR. PACHECO: Good morning, Chair, Members. I'm Walter Pacheco. I'm the Communications
Coordinator for the Maui Police Department and I'm here to talk a little bit today about a
position that we're requesting, which is a clerk for the shop to take care of, help assist in the
administrative duties for us at the shop. It's, seems like a very small thing. It's one body,
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one clerical position. But the radio shop at the Maui Police Department handles the public
safety radio system Countywide for the Police Department, Fire, Public Works and several
other agencies in addition to supporting interoperable communications with some of our
State and Federal partners as well. The system is rather complex. It spans four islands. It
comprises, at the end of our current project, it'll go up to 17 sites and approximately
2,000 users. Each of those users, of radio, is individually tracked and managed on this
system and this goes across all departments. All of that falls to the Police Department's radio
shop to manage and administer that. In addition, part of the radio project is the expansion
and growth of additional sites. So we're taking care of the capital projects involved in
expanding, fixing, making better. In addition to just the radio system, the radio shop also
supports the infrastructure in place. All of the RF infrastructure, a lot of people think of
infrastructure, fiber, no problem, that gets us everywhere. Fiber does not get us everywhere.
Our rural Counties are connected back through the microwave infrastructure that is in place
to support the radio system. So our system also supports basic County communications as
well. The work currently being done with Captain Amaral, who will be retiring soon, and
my shop, which comprises three people, including myself, and one vacant position, the
support that we have administratively, Captain Amaral does a lot. We do a lot ourselves and
we're going to be very, they'll be a large vacuum created with his absence, with his
administrative abilities and his attention to detail and I need some assistance in being able to
continue this and to be able to effectively support the communications needs for the first
responders in the County. That's pretty much what I have. If you folks have any questions
about the shop or the position that we're asking for...
CHAIR WHITE: Members, any questions for Mr. Pacheco? Seeing none, well, I think I've said it
enough but you have one vacant position in your shop. Is that a position that could be
utilized for this, for purposes of this?
MR. PACHECO: The position that's vacant is a Radio Technician. It's a skilled worker in the radio
field able to work on sites and equipment to keep the system operational and moving
forward. We have difficulty in attracting and hiring trained and qualified people. It's a very
specific set of skills and schools are generally not cranking these people out. We were
fortunate enough to hire one very recently out of New Jersey, and the gentleman has come on
board and has been doing great work for us, and we're looking for the one more. This is the
hands on, nuts and bolts, taking care of things. Currently I have a working Supervisor Radio
Tech II who's handling the large portion of the administrative tasks that we're doing as well.
This position will allow him to take on more technical roles. The position that's vacant is
still very needed in its technical nature, beyond what a administrative person would be able
to help us with. We had another position, which was taken away in the last budget shortage,
where all positions that were vacant were abolished. Primarily because it's difficult to attract
and hire skilled people in, with the radio skill set. So, if at all possible, we would like to hold
that because we do need the one more technician.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, thank you. Other questions? Seeing none, thank you very much.
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MR. PACHECO: Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: And Staff has verified that there are no other testifiers in the District Offices. Is
there anyone in the Chambers that would like to provide testimony this morning? Seeing
none, Members, Chair would like to close public testimony without objection.
COUNCILMEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
.END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY...

CHAIR WHITE: And with that we will take our morning recess. Thank you for sticking it out with
us. I thought it was good to get through all the testimony first before taking a break. So
we'll take a recess until ten minutes after 11:00. . . . (gavel).
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

ITEM BF-1:

10:52 a.m.
11:14 a.m.

PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR 2015 BUDGET FOR THE
COUNTY OF MAUI (CC 14-31 AND CC 14-82)

EXHIBIT "1" MATRIX
CHAIR WHITE: . . . (gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee will reconvene. And,
Members, we will be skipping over the revenue portion of the budget and just simply go to
the first of the operating departments, which starts with the Office of the County Clerk.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So Page 3, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Oh, actually...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: 3 of 72, yeah?
CHAIR WHITE: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: So, Members, the changes there are to reduce Advertisement by $10,000, reduce
Professional Services by 75, Contractual Services by 35, reduce Codification expenses by
6,000, reduce Professional Services by 205,000, reduce Meal Allowance by 3,000 and reduce
Special Elections expense by 20,000. So any questions or concerns on that?
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COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Chair, I'm sorry I missed that, the first couple numbers.
CHAIR WHITE: I'm sorry, the first is to reduce Advertisement by 10,000.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Right, 10,000, yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: And, Members, basically the basis for the reductions or adjustments in each of the
departments is if there were one-time requests or appropriations in 2014 that we could
identify and there was a much lower level of expenditure in a previous year, we generally
will adjust to the earlier numbers plus a little bit. We also, in checking, we checked to see
what was actually expended in each category and if the expenditure was continually lower
than what was adopted in 2014, we adjusted that to what the prior level of expenditure was as
well.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: So, Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: So did you take back expenditures as far as goes back to the last
election, 2012, because this is election year?
CHAIR WHITE: Some of the items that were increased in the Clerk's budget were due to this being
an election year. And so we agree with some of those cuts but, again, as we went through
and looked at what the actual expenditures had been in the previous election year, we made
some adjustments for that.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes, Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much, Chair. I'm going to expose my naiveté but
by any chance, have these cuts been discussed with the Clerk?
CHAIR WHITE: Not the final cuts. We did discuss but I'll give you an example. The $205,000 is,
under Professional Services, the amount in last year's budget was $150,000 and they have
$240,000 available in that fund. So they requested 150, they still have 240, and their largest,
their previous expense during the last election was 138. So our feeling is that these are
contractual services for the election-type machinery and setups. So our feeling is they had
the ability to encumber these $240,000 this year and they won't need them again, and they'll
still have a significant amount of money left over. So -COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: --that was the rationale behind that.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: I was just wondering, you know, whether they had tried to justify
these numbers. Thank you very much.
CHAIR WHITE: Right. And, you know, I didn't take all the notes in my book. The Staff has got
very good notes on -COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: I'm sure.
CHAIR WHITE: --why we've made these adjustments. And basically each of these adjustments is
based on the criteria that I just outlined.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And this, just asking about what procedure
we're going through. Is this where we give the consensus or are you just going to tell us your
justifications on this first pass?
CHAIR WHITE: I think we'll just go through justifications. You know, I think this, what we've
recommended or what the Chair's recommendation is, is a fairly significant adjustment but
it's all based on the Chair's feeling that there are, it's unfair for us to charge taxes in the
degree to which we allow departments just to sit on buckets of money. And I don't, you
know, I don't feel that that's appropriate, and also by allowing departments to have buckets
of money sitting around in case, it doesn't make them spend the money that they have as
wisely as it might, as they might otherwise do. So any other specific questions on the Office
of County Clerk? If you'd like, the Staff can provide notes as to, again, the Special Elections
Expense of 20,000. We just simply cut the expansion request because we felt, 20,000 not
that big a difference and so we still will have $250,000 available for a special election if
necessary. The Professional Services of 75,000, Michele, do you recall what that was?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: It was in the book. You know, some of the election people
that they bring in.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes.
MS. YOSHIMURA: The response that we got from the Clerk's office was that they had completed
certain projects this year -CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh.
MS. YOSHIMURA: --and there wasn't a real clear plan for next year.
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CHAIR WHITE: Okay, thank you. Okay, any questions on any of the other items, Members?
Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. My only concern is that compared to last
year's adopted, they're actually being cut 138, 137,000, 39,000, sorry.
CHAIR WHITE: On which one? There are two Professional Services.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I'm sorry. Not at all, I mean in the total. In the total, if you look at
the Council adopted FY 2014 and then...
CHAIR WHITE: Are you looking at the details?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Negative. I'm looking at Page 3
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, you need to be looking at the details sheets. Because, to give you an
example, in Professional Services, the one that we cut by 75,000, in 2012, there was zero
expenditure.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Uh-huh.
CHAIR WHITE: Oh, wait a second, I'm on the wrong line. Yeah, there's zero expenditure in 2012.
There's $151,000 in 2013. They requested 150,000 for a special project and the project is
pretty much done. So they suggested a reduction of 50,000 to leave them $100,000 and we
felt that was unjustified. And so we provided them a $25,000 amount, which is $24,850
more than they spent in the previous two years. So again, the Chair's focus is simply to go
through and find where there's money that doesn't look like it's gonna get used.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Uh-huh.
CHAIR WHITE: And again we'll have the Departments have their chance to explain where they're
coming from.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, that wasn't the question I had, but that's okay.
CHAIR WHITE: Well, no, you were on the other Professional Services.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I was not. I was on the total amount on Page 3 of 72, the total -CHAIR WHITE: Okay, I'm not going to -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --not the appropriated.
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CHAIR WHITE: --I'm not going to work off of the program budget because the details and these
notes are from the detail budget.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: See, the challenge that we have is that the program budget doesn't match the
details. They don't roll up. The details don't roll up into the program budget and you can't
identify where the costs are just by looking at the program budget. So I need to ask you guys
to refer to the details. Otherwise, you're going to get lost and we're not going to get through
this as quickly as we need to. Okay, any other questions on the Clerk's office? Do you need
an explanation of Contractual Services? Michele, do you have your notes on Contractual
Services reduction of 35,000?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair, the Fiscal Year '14 appropriation has not been encumbered or
expended to date.
CHAIR WHITE: That's right. Thank you. I just saw my notes there. Yeah, so zero has been
expended from this account and so we've cut the entire amount. And the prior two years,
there was nothing spent out of that account.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I just have a general question to your statement in regards to,
look at the details and not the program budget because the numbers don't match. Is that just
due to at the time of printing, at the time everything was presented, numbers are changing on
a daily basis and now we're working off -CHAIR WHITE: No, I think -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --current...
CHAIR WHITE: --no, the Chair's concern is that the totals match. But you can't look at a line in
the program budget and make any specific line in the details match up to it because they
draw from different places and different sections of the details. So it's just a lot crisper and
easier to go through the details.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Okay, so we've hit pretty much the entire, or not the entire, but we have
just a couple of small items on that. Advertising, I believe was similarly underspent.
They've spent about 24,000, maybe 29,000 year-to-date out of 50, and their annual spend
previously in the election year was 34,800, so we've given them 40,000, which is about a
12 percent increase in that line. On the Codification expenses
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I'm sorry, Chair. Question on the, this was the Advertisement.
CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: So you're saying 35,000, and they're requesting 35,000, and
you're taking off 10 from that?
CHAIR WHITE: No, on Page 3-6 of the details -COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Oh, okay.
CHAIR WHITE: --there's an expense of 50,000. They've spent $29,300 so far. The previous
election year, they spent 34,800 and we're giving them this $10,000 adjustment, I'm sorry,
not 10, yeah $10,000 adjustment, takes them to 50,000, I'm sorry, takes them from 50 to
40,000, which is still about 12 percent more than they've spent during the last election year.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: But that's, okay. But no consideration into rising costs?
CHAIR WHITE: Twelve percent is a pretty good rise in cost.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: So, and then the one that we haven't covered is the Codification Expenses. And
the previous two years, they've spent 6,500, and they are requesting 12,000, we cut it back to
6,000. Okay. Okay, any further questions? Are there objections to any of the cuts?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, Mr. Chair, didn't you say we just going to review?
CHAIR WHITE: Oh I'm just, I'm just, you know
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: I don't wanna have to come back if you guys are comfortable with the
explanation. Anyway, we'll just-COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: --go through -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: --I'll explain. Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Chair, Chair, if I might.
CHAIR WHITE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I think how we're going to solve this is, at some point, I'd like to see
the Clerk here and say I'm okay, I can manage. I think that's why we're afraid of.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, that's fine.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah, we need to hear both sides.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Office of County Council. We have increased Salaries and Wages for
part-time employees. Basically that's pretty much a shift out of what is now operating
expense, they're hired through a temp, and we felt that it was appropriate to bring them, since
they're already doing the work, to bring them into the normal way of paying people. We've
reduced Small Equipment. Yeah, here again. . . Michele, can you pull up the information on
reduce Small Equipment?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, my notes say that the amount has already been, we've already purchased a
bunch of the equipment.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Correct. The Fiscal Year 2014 is 11,000. They were asking for an increase of
10,000 to purchase computer monitors and batteries and it was understood by the Committee
that it was, or by the Chair, that the expenditure has already been made.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, that was, yeah, my notes are reflective of that. And reduce Contractual
Services. We had $150,000 spent, allocated for this past year and I didn't note the spent, the
amount spent to date but we--what was the amount spent to date? We'll get that in a second.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair, the expended to date is 99,752. They have an available balance of
$110,000 for Fiscal Year '14.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. So our feeling was that by adding, providing them $100,000, but we
deducted the 23,259, leaving them $100,000 since they had a significant amount of funds left
that they could utilize this year and encumber some of the services that that line
accommodates. And then the next line, the negative 85, is simply balancing out the $85,000
above. Reduce Professional Services. Basically we reduced that because the, there is a
current $209,000 balance and that is what the normal spend rate is for that account and we
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didn't feel that it was appropriate for us to move into closed captioning at this time, which is
the majority of the amount of the increase request. So that amount has been adjusted down
to, I believe the request is 314 so with the 291,000 balance, actually my notes say that there
is a $501,000 balance, is that correct?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair, there's a prior year encumbrance of $393,000 and actual
expenditures to date is 100,000. With the current encumbrance of $292,000 and a balance
available of $209,000 and this is for the Akaku contract.
CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh.
MS. YOSHIMURA: What we've been doing is budgeting $60,000 for closed captioning for the past
three years, which the Council hasn't, which we haven't implemented. And so the Office of
Council Services will be looking at shifting that money to cover the Akaku contract -CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
MS. YOSHIMURA: --or the regular broadcasting contract.
CHAIR WHITE: What?
MS. YOSHIMURA: The normal broadcasting contract.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. So, Members, the Chair's feeling is we have that 209,000 balance. This is
similar to the case that you'll find in other departments where they have enough in their
balance today to encumber the full year's contract and will do so before the end of the fiscal
year. So we've allotted an additional $50,000 to go into that account. Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, I thought you were done with your comments.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, I am, far enough along.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Just to, when you say that there's 209, was it 209 encumbered for
this, that hasn't been spent yet this year?
CHAIR WHITE: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Is it a situation where at the end of the, you know, in the beginning
of June they get a bill from Akaku saying okay you owe us 209,000 now and we're going to
spend it at the end of the year?
CHAIR WHITE: Well, it's the entire amount of the contract for the year. So the way it looks to us
is that that amount if being encumbered very late, like we see with many of the vehicle
purchases.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Uh-huh.
CHAIR WHITE: It's simply held off. So our feeling is that we don't need to spend the money this
year. We can come back and increase it again in Fiscal '16 because we have enough money
available now to encumber the contract for next year.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay and we're reducing Airfare. This print, to date, was 32,000, so we have
reduced the amount requested. To put it in perspective, for Fiscal 2012 and '13, the amount
of Airfare expenditure was about $40,000, was adopted for 2014, it was 91,000, we've only
spent 32,000 so rather than providing a request of, the requested 110,000, we've reduced that
to 65, which is, which should accommodate a significant amount of additional travel over
what was spent this year.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes, Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: I have a question. When we report what has been spent to date, does
that include anything that's accrued but not paid?
CHAIR WHITE: That's a good question. Mr.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: 'Cause it could be a significant amount, particularly in travel. You
know how much we travelled recently.
CHAIR WHITE: That's a good question. Maybe Mr. Baz can answer that.
MR. BAZ: I can answer generally. Normally, if it's a contract, we've encumbered the contract. So
you'll see that amount as encumbered and that's the encumbered amount that's a part of that.
Then you'll see actual expenditures once we pay out that contract. For travel, those usually
get put onto the pCard and so we won't see that expenditure until the bill comes in, unless
it's done by a purchase order ahead of time and put into the system. But generally those are
done after the fact.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Mr. Chair, if I might pursue it?
CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: You said by purchase order. So when we do the purchase order to
travel, it's already encumbered?
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MR. BAZ: Theoretically, yes. A purchase order is an encumbrance as well.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: So it would be only like you going now?
MR. BAZ: Yeah, correct. If it's like immediate and the pCard's done, then, yeah, that won't be
affected until we get the bill.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, then the next, the Per Diem Non-Reportable, we reduced that by 21,000.
The allocation for this fiscal year was 91,000, we've spent 38. So once again, the Chair's
recommendation is that we reduce the allocation to 75,000, which is still a significant
increase over 2012 and 2013 to accommodate the increased travel that the Chair wants all of
us to do and have available for training purposes and for us to spend more time at the
Legislature. It's the Chair's feeling is that still accommodates all the expansion without,
again, leaving money in an account that's not going to get spent. We've reduced the Excess
Mileage Reimbursement. And previous two years, the expenditure's been 25,000 and
27,000, the request was for 40, and we have adjusted it to 30, which is still a 10 percent
increase over 2013. And the reduction of Registration Fees and Training of $6,400. I don't,
my notes don't include the spent amount, but in previous years we've spent 5,400 and 7,400,
the request was for eighteen, I'm sorry, 18,000. So we've reduced that to 12,000, which still
provides an increase of about 60 percent over the two previous years. Computer Software is
the next at 34,000. Do you have the amount spent there, Michele? And, you know, the
other, the Chair's perspective on our budget and the County Clerk's budget is that these are
the ones that come somewhat under Council's control and if we are, through this budget
process, going to be asking for sacrifices from other departments to let loose of cash that they
have not been using over the years, then the Chair's feeling is it's incumbent upon us to do
the same thing with our own budget.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes.
MS. YOSHIMURA: On Computer Software, the year-to-date expended is 14,600, leaving a balance
available of 32,600.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, so what has been spent so far this year is about $4,000 over the
expenditures for 2012 and 2013. We allocated 47,000 for this fiscal year, we've spent 14 and
the Chair's feeling is that we can live with 15 for this upcoming year. So the reduction
reflects that change. Reduce Audit Services. That's an account that we have available in
case audits are necessary to conduct. We've had it over the years as high as 400,000. The
recommendation was to reduce it to 265. The Chair's feeling is that now that we have the
County Auditor's Office, that it's logical for us to reduce the amount that we are holding for
audit purposes to $200,000. Under, let's see the next one is, well the next one's pretty small.
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The amount for the VoIP switch was removed simply due to considerations that we want to
make sure that the Council's system is simply not available for others to tap into and we may
be required to provide our own system. And for the County Auditor, we have increased
Professional Services by 100,000 to allow them, for additional ability to bring in auditors
with specific specialties that they may need. And any, before we move on, any questions on
the Council changes? Okay. Corporation Counsel. Just two adjustments there. This, on
Professional Services on Page 2-7, the expenditures over the last two years were 36,000 and
20,400. The request was for 80,000 this year and my notes show a $13,000 spend. Michele?
I'm a little concerned because I can't tell whether it's a one or a six.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes, Mr.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: As long as we have Corp Counsel here, can we ask them if they're
okay with that?
CHAIR WHITE: I wouldn't want Mr. Ueoka to have much impact on our budget process. And I
think he would probably agree that he wouldn't like to be put on the spot. But thank you for
putting him on the spot anyway. Mr. Baz, maybe you can look it up and see what the amount
spent was on 905018 6132. Oh, I'm sorry, Michele's got it.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair? Sorry, I was offline for a while. It was, expended $2,625, current
encumbrance is $60,755, leaving an available balance of 18,120.
CHAIR WHITE: My recollection was that was a, that was for the purchase of the Case Management
Program and that they need, they need money for the maintenance and so we, because that
was a one-time purchase, we've reduced it to the $50,000 level, which is more than adequate
to cover the on-going support for that system. Is that correct?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Yes, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. And then Claim Settlements and Judgments, we reduced by 22,000 and the
reason for that is that over the last two years they've spent 44,600 and 23,700 and so the
reduction reflects putting that back down to an amount that's still well in excess of the
average they've spent. Any questions for Corporation Counsel? Seeing none, move on to
Department of Environmental Management. And basically, the majority of these
adjustments are reflective of not establishing the new department at this time. We want to
postpone that, and so the recommendation is to move the various positions back to where
they were and move the various costs back to where they were previously found. And
additionally, we were deleting a couple of vacant positions there. Am I missing anything,
Staff? Okay. Any questions, Members, on the items on Page 4? Okay, moving on. The
next change is on Page 6, under Solid Waste Program. As Mr. Ratte pointed out this
morning, we reduced, we deleted the expansion position and our reasons are the ones I stated
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earlier in the day during testimony. We deleted Computer Equipment, which I believe was
for that expansion. Actually all the deletions are connected to the deletion of the expansion
position there. Then under Solid Waste on Page 7, we've deleted expansion positions
through these five different positions on various landfill operations. And again, the Chair's
concern is that we, with the significant increases in wages and salaries, which amount to over
$100,000 million over the next four years, resulting in an added cost to the County in its final
year of 40, I believe around $41 million with no increase in staffing that we need to be very,
very careful with respect to adding positions. As the Chair mentioned to Mr. Ratte, I think
many of these positions are probably legitimate requests, but I think it's incumbent upon us
to establish a firm understanding with the Administration that we can't just simply be adding
positions, especially with Anaergia coming in, we don't know what the need is going to be
and there's likely to be a significant reduction at that point. So the Chair questions whether
we need to have expansion at this point and, certainly, if the expansion is justified, then it's
incumbent upon the Administration to help us find where we can make a reduction to offset
the increase. We've deleted Safety Supplies and, basically, in the amounts like we've done
on others, where we felt that it was not, the amount in the budget was in excess of what they
have been spending, we've made those adjustments. We have, where it says, move Solid
Waste equipment from Countywide Equipment Bond, those are now being taking care of
with cash and instead of doing an equipment bond so that 1.9 million 86 thousand is the total
amount of items from the equipment bond that we are, that the Chair supports replacing. So
it's mostly automated trash removal and equipment for the various landfill operations
outlined on the equipment bond. The next item 117,900 is simply moving the Recycling
Specialist back to where they were before. And the next is moving Recycling Coordinator
from Environmental Protection Sustainability, we're moving that position back as well, move
all operational costs from Environmental Protection back to, back to Solid Waste. And
reducing Contractual Services for the Convenience Center, and then moving, the next one is,
excuse, a move of Community Work Day Program from Environmental Protection and
Sustainability Program back to Solid Waste. So is there anything that Staff feels I need to
provide further clarification on? Members, questions? You guys must be ready to go to
lunch.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: What made you think that?
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, moving into...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair, real quick.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Sorry.
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Cochran.

-50-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 29, 2014

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: The last one, Community Work Day, moving it back. So that's
defunding Community Work Day -CHAIR WHITE: Is it what?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --overall?
CHAIR WHITE: No. Actually I don't recall, it's, they missed -UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: No, it's still here.
CHAIR WHITE: --it wasn't in the budget or something.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: It's just coming out of a different.. .in relation to the, okay. It's
just coming out of a different
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, we're just -MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: --we're just moving the source of the funding.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair? I believe, I believe that what you did was, moved it from the Environmental
Management, the new Division that was created where the money was originally
appropriated, into the Solid Waste Operations Program fund.
CHAIR WHITE: Right. Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: So we're not, we're not changing the level of funding for them. Okay, any further
questions on Environmental Management?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: The Contractual -CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Crivello.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --Services that we're reducing of 200,000, is that in existence?
Would you
CHAIR WHITE: No, that was the proposed -- 51 -
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: For the other location.
CHAIR WHITE: --implementation of a convenience -COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: --center at the Central Maui Landfill.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And, I'm sorry, what was the reasoning for that?
CHAIR WHITE: With the Anaergia coming in, the Chair's feeling is that it's not necessary for us to
do that at this time. The Anaergia may have another way of handling it and the Chair feels
that this may be a nice thing to do but I'm not sure the value of all the recyclables that are
being pulled out of this. So, you know, if we're paying somebody to provide that service, I'd
like to understand better the value of the recyclable materials that they're able to turn around
and sell.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: So, okay, moving into Department of Finance.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Wait, sorry, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: I'm sorry. Go ahead, Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Can you clarify that last statement? You just said you wanna,
so the Metals Recycling Convenience Center, how much it would bring in and then in turn,
what it would produce monetarily?
CHAIR WHITE: Currently all these materials are put into bins, and you're more familiar with this
than I am, so please help me out. But the Chair's feeling is that these materials are being
dropped off in a not so organized fashion. They're all ending up getting recycled or most of
'em are getting recycled. And what this service does is it simply organizes it but at a cost of
$200,000 to the County. And they still end up with the same recyclable stream, so, or
possibly a greater recyclable stream. Anyway, the main reason is that we're, because we're
moving towards Anaergia, I'm, you know, I'm hesitant to get into new contracts for services
that are simply going to be eliminated.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Yeah, I mean I see it as added service to the people who
go to the landfill --52-
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CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --at this time, are being turned away because there, we cannot
accept certain items, but this entity that put in the RFP to do the services would be able to.
They'd hire their own staff and so on but, anyhow, but I understand your comment in regards
to Anaergia the new company who has a dirty MRF and basically everything will just be -CHAIR WHITE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --tossed into one bin, so to speak, to, you know, for their
production. So, yeah, we'll need to discuss this a little further.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, that's fine.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: So, Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes, Ms. Crivello.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: At the same time, can we get information as what sort of time
frame you looking at for Anaergia.
CHAIR WHITE: For what?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Time frame of implementation for Anaergia to become a
reality.
CHAIR WHITE: What we, what I believe we heard was somewhere in the neighborhood of three
years. So, anyway, these all can be discussed and we'll have the, have Mr. Ginoza come
down. Department of Finance, we're deleting the expansion position Clerk II for full-time
status. Basically that's just a, we're deleting a.2 EJP. Gasoline and Oil, we adjusted to what
we felt was an appropriate amount. Same thing with Repairs and Maintenance and computer
equipment was reduced. Members, it's 12 o'clock so let's take our lunch break at this point
and we'll come back and finish up later on. We're in recess. . . .(gavel). ..

RECESS:
RECONVENE:

12:01 p.m.
1:30 p.m.
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CHAIR WHITE: . . . (gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee will come back to order. And
we will continue our review of Exhibit "1". And, Members, we are on the top of Page 8 and
in the Department of Finance.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Bottom of 7?
CHAIR WHITE: Pardon?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Did we do the bottom of 7 yet?
CHAIR WHITE: I thought we did.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So we did 7? No?
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, we did 7.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We did the bottom of 7. That's when you, you know
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Just before the recess?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, just before the recess.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, Members, on the top of Page 8, we deleted the vacant position for
Pre-Audit Clerk and deleted the expansion position for the Grant Manager and we reduced
premium pay and reduced Professional Services by $120,000. And our feeling was.. .and let
me just find that. Accounts Program. . . yeah, our feeling there was that this is a Program
that's been ongoing for a while and we felt that the level of budget there was sufficient to
continue the kind of work that they were requesting the money for, so we deleted the
expansion request there. Into the Financial Services, we deleted the expansion positions for
Service Representatives and the main reason is to be consistent with our refusal to expand the
number of positions, but another reason is that the three Service Representatives that we gave
them last year have still not yet been deployed into the District Offices, and so I think it's
premature to add three more without seeing what the impact is that we can achieve with the
three that we approved last year. Gas and Diesel, I won't go into, basically the same
rationale that we used in other areas. And the Janitorial Services. Michele, can you look that
up? My recollection was that that was, that 20,000 reduction was that, because the amount
had not been spent. Or maybe, in looking at it, the, there was a zero spend in 2012 and again
in 2013. And I believe what we found, that of the 40,000 that had been allotted for last year,
or this fiscal year, they had not used anywhere near that amount. And I believe the deletion
at the bottom, the deletion of the Office Furniture and Other Equipment, may have been for
the expansion positions.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair, on the Janitorial Services, it's on Page 624 of the Budget Details,
currently there is no expenditure or no encumbrance for Fiscal Year 2014.
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CHAIR WHITE: Okay, so it was zero, not 20,000, so we're actually being very generous there.
And we left Computer Services alone. Okay, down to the bottom, the reduction in premium
pay. In an earlier communication, the amount of, the reason given for this was to cover
overtime, an expense of the Circuit Breaker, but in an earlier transmittal, the allotment for
overtime was closer to 20,000 and Chair felt that there was enough in the remainder of the
budget that that was an unnecessary expansion request.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Chair, Chair, I'm sorry. Can you repeat that last sentence, what
you said?
CHAIR WHITE: With respect to the Circuit Breaker?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yes.
CHAIR WHITE: We had gotten an earlier request for a budget amendment, which we provided the
funding for but the budget amendment detail and my recollection was that the amount of
overtime due to the Circuit Breaker was somewhere between 12 and 15,000.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: That overtime was due to the recent amendment to the Circuit
Breaker?
CHAIR WHITE: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: And a note from the Staff says we. . .okay, so we don't need to go through
Countywide Costs 'cause those are all numbers that are going to be adjusted over the next
couple of days as we identify exactly what's transferring from fund to fund. Mr. Baz is
helping us with those calculations. So we go to Fire on Page 10. And as we have with
others, we've deleted the expansion positions. We also deleted the Internal Affairs Officer
that was provided, I believe last year or the year before, and has not been filled. And we
deleted expansion position for an Information/Communications Systems Manager and we
have reduced premium pay--you'll see reduced premium pay throughout--and the reason for
the reduction in premium pay is that we feel that through a change in scheduling, instead of
scheduling a 24/7 Hazmat Team, that could be, the staffing could be reduced there to make
more people available to cover shifts on regular time rather than being done on overtime.
We also feel that the staffing per company at five, from our understanding, is set at five, so if
somebody calls in sick, they still have the coverage. But what that does is if they call in
somebody to cover at five, that's overtime. And the staffing at five reduces our capacity to
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cover shifts at the staffing level of four and drives up the overtime, and now that we have
rank-for-rank recall and the bureau opportunity pay coming into play, these all increase
significantly the cost of our Fire Department's salaries and wages. And Staff is working on
doing a comparison between the years so that you can see the significant increase in the pay
driven by both the across the board increases, the step increases, the rank-for-rank recall, the
reimplementation of the bureau opportunity pay, and we had one request for standby pay as
well that the Chair has removed. And, you know, the Chair's concern with the Fire expense
expanding is that--as I mentioned to you during earlier discussions--the State of Hawaii has
the highest percentage of career fire departments in the Country and 87 percent of fire
departments throughout the nation are either all volunteer or mostly volunteer. Hawaii has
91 percent career fire departments and 9 percent volunteer and all the volunteer fire
companies are on the Big Island. And we distributed the website showing their equipment
and their companies and they're, you know, they're very proud of what they do, they're very
proud of their equipment. They're operating with things that are 20 years old and older and
they perform an absolutely wonderful task for the communities in which they operate. And
the Chair's not suggesting that we go to the extent of creating volunteer fire departments, but
we need to recognize that this is a rapidly growing cost and the next closest state to Hawaii is
Florida, where they have only 50 percent or 50.5 percent career fire departments. Even in
California and Massachusetts, very heavily unionized states, there's only 44 and 41 percent
volunteer, I mean, I'm sorry, 41 and 44 percent of the departments are unionized, I mean, I'm
sorry, are career firefighters. So the Chair's interest is simply to reduce our overhead, our
overall costs, by simply asking them to reschedule down to staffing of four as opposed to
staffing each station with five. We've asked for a cost savings if that were to be
implemented. And, you know, we'll have a long discussion about that, I'm sure. But the
Chair's interest is to get a better understanding of what changes we may be able to make so
that we can put at least a couple of brakes on what I consider a train that's moving too far,
too fast, and is costing us significant increases. And just to put it into perspective, the
amount that we are being asked to increase our premium pay by, this year is over
$21/2 million. That's equal to more than 12 percent of what we give to all the nonprofits. I
don't want to be in a position couple years down the road where we're having to trim back
the nonprofits because we're, we're simply allowing folks that are very important to us but
there are, continuing to get higher and higher compensation at a rate of increase that's far, far
in excess of the increases that we see in other areas. I've shared with you that the increases
for the folks that are involved in the rank-to-rank or rank-for-rank recall are in the
neighborhood of $18,600 just, that is their increase for just this year. In some of the higher
categories, the increases are in excess of $23,000 just this year, and those increases will
continue to compound as they, as they go through the remainder of the contract. So the
Chair's position is that we need to cut back the premium pay and ask them to change the way
they schedule the departments. And that's, in essence, the, a good part of the rationale for
the changes that we're making, or changes that we're recommending, I should say. You'll
see that we have, let's see, where were we? We've reduced premium pay in Administration
by $55,000 and, again, that premium pay is the bureau opportunity benefit pay. That is a
level of payment that is unique to the Fire Department and it's been explained to us that the
reason for that bureau opportunity pay is because they're not eligible for overtime, and in
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order to get people to go into Administration, they need the equivalent or something similar
to the overtime payment. The Chair's concern is that we have, over the years, scheduled it in
such a way that overtime is necessary and it becomes something that they all get used to. I
think it's certainly something that we have a responsibility to try to reduce a bit. We've
reduced Professional Services to the tune of 42,000. We've reduced Miscellaneous Other
Costs by 25. Would any of you like an explanation on either one of those two? Okay,
moving along. We've, we have a proviso there that $50,000 shall be for the Maui All
Hazards Incident Management Team. We're deleting the Auto Allowance of $30,400,
reducing Freight and Hauling by 12, deleting the 4Wheel Drive SUV for the Ocean Safety
Battalion Chief and the 2Wheel Drive Utility Truck for Fire Services and deleting the Weis
Draft Commander and that's basically because we have other ways of doing that at this point.
They have the tank, not the tank, but the, I guess it's kinda like a swimming pool, at their
headquarters, and they use trucks to do it elsewhere. And we have deleted the Large Vehicle
Lift. Moving into the Training Program. We have reduced a step level for a vacant position,
Fire Fighter III (Medical Specialist), reduced a step level for a vacant position, Fire Fighter
III. We've removed the Standby Pay, which is tied to the Premium, and the Standby Pay has
not been in place for the last several years, and I don't know whether it was in place prior to
that. We've reduced the premium pay, as we've done in other areas. We've reduced Medical
and Safety Supplies only by the amount that we spent for boots. Remember last year we
authorized replacement of three pairs of boots. Those expenditures have been made and the
Medical Safety Supply request remained at the level where we could have, they could have
bought all the boots once again. So we've reduced it just by the amount reflective of the
boots. We've reduced Professional Services based on the criteria that we've utilized in other
areas. We've reduced Registration/Training Fees. We should probably go and take a little
closer look at some of these because I think it's instructive to do so. Michele, can you look
up the reduction in Registration/Training fees -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: 714.
CHAIR WHITE: --911255, if you can refresh my memory as to the rationale?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes, Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Looking at Page 7-14 is where it looks like it is. It shows that the
training in FY '12 is 2,900 and FY '13 is 1,500 and then '14 adopted is 4,500 [sic]. So that
looks like why that got cut.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes.
MS. YOSHIMURA: We have a current expenditure for Fiscal '14 at $315.
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CHAIR WHITE: Okay, yeah. Is that the page that you were looking at, Mr. Couch, top of
Page 7-14?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah. Yeah, we had prior year expenditures of 29, then 15, and then a request for
45,000, and they've spent $315 so far. So we've, that reduction that's shown takes the
request from 45,000 down to 5,000, which is still more than they've spent in the last three
years. I want to go through a couple of these because I want Members to understand that
when we, where we made cuts, we've actually left amounts that are in excess, in most cases,
of prior year expenditures and the overall change in the budget reflects that. Okay, then
Medical and Safety Supplies is the same again. Air/Transportation, we've reduced. Do you
have that one, Michele?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair, on Page 7-15, 911420.
CHAIR WHITE: Oh, there we are. Yeah, yeah.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Airfare/Transportation, the current expenditure is at 21,390, leaving a balance
of 38,610.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Thank you. Yeah, so we've, we're giving them $40,000 budget, where in
2012 they spent 36,000, and 2013 they spent 17, and they've only, and they've spent roughly
21 so far, so if you annualize that, they will likely utilize about 30,000, and so we've given
them $10,000 over that amount. And to put that in perspective, in the, on 7-15, Registration
Training Fees, there was a $50,000 request and we left that at 50,000 because there was a
spend rate of about 42,000, so we felt there was no need to change that. So where the spend
was adequate, we left it alone. On the SCBA, S-C-B-A, Bottles, we reduced that to 40,000
because they said that the normal rate of replacement would be about 33 per year, not 50, so
we've, we met them half way and made it 40 bottles as opposed to 50. And we've reduced
the Personal Protective Equipment so that the, we'll be looking at doing this each year rather
than buying the whole thing. . .oh, wait, we took out the.. .no, I'm looking at the wrong line. I
think we, did we remove that entirely?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Yes. Personal Protective Equipment was removed. It's for recruit turnouts
and, I guess, in line with you eliminating the vacant and expansion positions.
CHAIR WHITE: Oh, that's right, okay. Thank you. Yeah. So we did eliminate that. And we
deleted the 4Wheel Drive Crew Cab. In Fire/Rescue Operations, we've reduced vacant
position salaries, we've deleted the expansion positions for Molokai, and we've deleted a
vacant Battalion Chief position. And, again, the reason for some of these deletions is that, if
we're going to be paying rank-for-rank recall for all these, the high-level fire fighters, then
through rescheduling, we can reduce the number that we need. So the Chair's feeling is that
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those are reasonable adjustments. I'm sure we'll hear differently from the Department. And
the big one is the reduction in premium pay, which I've already explained. It's $2.8 million
in the Fire/Rescue Operations. Medical and Safety Supplies is, again, the boots appropriation
from last year. That's all that we've removed from there. We've reduced the meal
allowance for expansion positions. Basically, the next several are for expansion positions
and we've deleted the amount for Repairs and Maintenance to repaint the headquarters in
Kahului, and we've reduced the Helicopter line by 168,000. And I believe that was, again,
based on what we had spent this year.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Chair? Excuse me.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, Ms. Crivello.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: So the Helicopter reduction, are you saying that it was
carryover money and that's why there's this 168,000 reduction?
CHAIR WHITE: No, it wasn't carryover monies. It was just that they had not utilized the entire
amount. We still gave 'em more than they used this year.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: But what was the, what's the balance that you're looking at?
CHAIR WHITE: I'm gonna have to ask Michele to take a look at that. Can you look that
up, Michelle?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair -CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --while she's looking that up. Just a clarification on the create line
item.
CHAIR WHITE: Where are you looking?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Same line, reduce Helicopter Services and then create line item.
CHAIR WHITE: Oh, we're creating a line item for the Helicopter Service. And that simply means
that the funds can only be used for Helicopter Service.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair, on the helicopter service, the current -CHAIR WHITE: Speak a little more into your mic.
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MS. YOSHIMURA: --sorry, the current expenditure or encumbrance is 665,000. I think in Fiscal
Year 2013 as well they had $250,000 Carryover/Savings for the Helicopter and came back
for a budget amendment to disburse those funds to other accounts.
CHAIR WHITE: Further questions?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Not now.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: We have deleted the 4Wheel Drive Crew Cabs, Lahaina, Molokai and Lanai and
Hana. We've deleted the Emergency Generator for Lanai and deleted the Personal Protection
expansion, for the expansion positions in Molokai. We've deleted the Vessel and Marine
Equipment for Hana and the 4Wheel Drive Crew Cab for Kahului and the, I believe, this
20Kw Emergency generator was also for Kahului.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Just out of curiosity. These generators, are they going to be without,
are they going to be okay without them?
CHAIR WHITE: I believe they have generators now and I don't, I'm assuming this is a
replacement.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Okay, I'm just concerned. We don't want them to be without
generators if something happens.
CHAIR WHITE: Staff, do you recall whether the generators were replacements or--actually it
should be on the details.
MS. YOSHIMURA: This one is for the Napili Fire Station and it's a replacement.
CHAIR WHITE: Pardon?
MS. YOSHIMURA: It's a replacement.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. And I'm sure the Chief will be ready to explain how old it is at this point.
And I don't know whether there is one, the one for Lanai, I don't recall whether that was a
replacement or a new. Mr. Hokama.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That one is, came from me, upon my inspection of the station,
Chairman. There is a current emergency generator. The problem is, it's not dependable that
when we need it, they can start it. Because if you went and saw it, you would know why I
would support it because, for me, it's the whole island. But I'll let the Chief explain it and
see how the rest of the Members feel. But I know the condition of that.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, thank you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, I wouldn't call it a backup generator myself right now.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay and then for the Fire Prevention Bureau, we reduced salary for FD-0143,
deletion of the "red circle" status, we transferred Fire Fighter IV and Fire Fighter, well, two
Fire Fighter positions to the Revolving Fund, which had been moved out of the Revolving
Fund by the Administration's proposal, and we have also reduced premium pay there and
adjusted Medical and Safety Supplies for the boot purchase amount from last year. And then
Ocean Safety, we've deleted the Clerk III position, deleted the vacant position of Ocean
Safety Chief of Operations since we're going to have a battalion chief in charge there now
and that seems to obviate the fact that we can eliminate the chief of operations since the
battalion chief will be that individual. We've deleted the 4x2 Compact extended cab
pick-ups and we deleted the Rescue Jet Skis, and I think it's appropriate that these come back
in when the Fire Department takes over that operation next year. And as we have stated,
we've moved the Ocean Safety Program back to the Parks Department from the Fire
Department. Any questions on Fire? Okay, then moving on to Department of Housing and
Human Concerns. We've reduced the Contractual Services by $75,000 in the Housing
Program and my notes show that of the 120,000, well you can see on Page 8-12, in 2012 we
spent 43,000, in 2013 we spent $244 and for 2014, 120,000 was requested and the
year-to-date expenditure is 25,000 with a balance remaining of 101,000, and so we have
adjusted the 120 for this coming year to 45, which is the total of the expense year-to-date.
Actually it's over the expense year-to-date and the current encumbrance in the fund. Moving
to Grants and disbursements for affordable rental housing program, we deleted the proposed
increase of 12,000 to return it to the prior balance of 849,000. For the First Time
Homebuyer's Program, we deleted the entire amount of 250,000, and I believe most of the
Members concurred with that. The grant for Hale Mahaolu for homeowners and housing
counseling program, we've reduced the increase, oh wait, we've eliminated the
recommended increase from the Administration but we've given them the 3 percent increase
that we've given nonprofits across the board. Then dropping down to
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes, Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It appears that you just reduced it $15,000. It was last year,
according to our thing is, it was, but I may be mistaken. I still have it as 50,000 from last
year.
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MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair, it's on Page 8-13 of the budget details, Fiscal '14, 35,000.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, I see it, thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, you got me on that one, I thought, I could've sworn it was 35. Okay, then
moving down to Human Concerns Program, increase Immigrant Services Assistant for Lanai
from ½ an E/P to 3/4 of an E/P, delete Professional Services in the amount of $20,000 and
reduce the Grant Subsidy for that Program by 38,000 and--Michele, can you provide us the
detail on the reduction on the Grant Subsidy? I think there was one, another one that was
not, not spent. I believe it was the one on the top of Page 824, the amount was 63,000 and
there was $17,000 encumbered and 46,000 available. So a cut of 38 still leaves them with
significantly more money than they've expended in the, as, on the average of the last three
years. And Professional Services, $20,000 reduction. They had $20,500 and no expenses
year-to-date, so we removed the entire amount. Then the Grants for early childhood. We've
increased all the nonprofits that are line itemed by 3 percent and we've adjusted, those that
received a larger increase, we've adjusted those by taking out the proposed increase and
replacing it with our 3 percent increase, so I won't go through all of those. Any questions on
the first, we have also reduced the, we've taken out the Hale Mahaolu Personal Care Program
for 103,000. That's the one that was testified about yesterday. And we've reduced the
Heritage Hall allocation, or the request, from 1.1 million to 750,000. And the Homeless
Programs. Basically, we've left the homeless, all the program, as Ms. Ridao referred to them
as the discretionary pots that they have access to, like the Homeless Programs. We didn't
provide the increase there because they have the ability to decide how best to spend those
funds. So at this point we didn't, we took out some of the proposed increases and left the
larger pots of money for a later decision. Hui Laulima [Ohana] received 3 percent increase,
as did Hui Malama. We provided a proviso to the Water Cameron Center that matching
funds are received and that funds will be used for Capital Improvement only.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Just a clarification on that. That the 500,000 fund, not including
the matching funds, 'cause we really can't proviso the matching funds, right?
CHAIR WHITE: Well, I'm sure, they stated they will be getting State funds and other funds, so.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Uh-huh.
CHAIR WHITE: We're just saying
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That our 500,000 can only.. . yeah, gotcha.
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CHAIR WHITE: So, all that requires them to do is find 500,000 other dollars. And if it's not
properly stated, we can certainly adjust that. The Lanai Health Center, same 3 percent
increase. Maui Day Care, we reduced the proposed increase, or deleted the proposed
increase, and replaced it with the 3 percent. We deleted Maui Crime Stoppers. Generally,
we deleted new grant requests. Maui Food Bank and the Enlace Program got the 3 percent
increase. Same thing for Maui Support Services. Maui Farm, we took down, and then
moved back up with the 3 percent increase. Mental Health Association, same thing,
Salvation Army and Special Olympics. And we've provided the proviso for Special
Olympics to allow for participation from Molokai. And we removed the University of
Hawaii Maui College Cooperative Education Program. And we removed most of the State
programs, I believe, since they're not willing to help us with the TAT that we generate, by
sharing a little bit more of the, what Maui generates. Just to put it in perspective, Maui
generates approximately $115 million in TAT every year and we get back about, well now
we will be getting back, if the Governor signs the bill, we'll be getting back 23, a little over
23 million. We get back the smallest percentage of any county. So we didn't even go into
this last push at the Legislature, asking for the fair, a fairer distribution. All we wanted was
an increase for everybody based on the same distribution. So, in effect, Maui's taking a little
more of a hit than the others because we're generating so much more of the TAT than the
other two neighbor islands.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes, Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Chair, somewhere in your prolific pile of spreadsheets, you must
have this. I remember when we were lobbying at the Legislature, it was mentioned several
times, well you guys, you know, don't do anything. And I know that somewhere it was
computed, more or less, 'cause, you know, we not keeping meticulous count, how much
money Maui pays for the State services. Do we have that somewhere? If we don't, we might
want to start really paying attention because they gonna ask us again next year and I don't
think that that's fair. You know, we spend a lot of money on State programs.
CHAIR WHITE: I don't know that we've got that list generated. I think it would be all the parks
that the schools use as their playgrounds.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: So much.
CHAIR WHITE: And War Memorial, we really do a lot. We provide a lot of services. Of course,
that doesn't diminish the fact that they provide a lot of services too.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Right, right. And we've always considered it a partnership.
CHAIR WHITE: Right.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: But then, you know, when we asked for the money, they didn't
recognize all that we were doing, so I think it would bear keeping track of, so we're ready
next time.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thanks.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, to put it in perspective, the State, by capping, or by increasing the TAT and
establishing the cap, basically harvested about $270 million just from the four counties over a
two-year period. It's just, for them to do that at our expense is possibly the largest money
grab that we've seen in a long time. But, and, you know, once they grab it, they don't let go.
And, so, we're very happy that we got something. But anyway, it is a little, a little
frustrating. Anyway, Maui County Council of Boy Scouts of America, we've provided the
$250,000 amount to help them finish off their new dining hail. We have provided $500,000,
which is not the total requested. I believe the CDBG request was 866,000. We've provided
500,000, which we believe is an amount that will allow them to maintain the level of funding
that has been promised them, that if we didn't provide this money, they may stand to lose,
and I don't know exactly what that total is. We have added funding to Maui Economic
Opportunity for a Planning and Coordinating Council Coordinator in the amount of 80,000.
We have provided the Coalition for a Drug Free Lanai and Ohana Makamae the 3 percent
increase and we've added a proviso to the Substance Abuse Program, that 21,000 shall be for
Maui and Family Support Services for the Teen Voices Program. We have adjusted the, or
deleted the proposed increase for the Youth Alcohol Education Awareness Program. We've
provided the 3 percent increase to Best Buddies, Big Brothers and Big
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Excuse me, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: You mentioned you deleted the proposed increase of the Youth
Alcohol Education Awareness Programs?
CHAIR WHITE: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Any reason? I was just curious 'cause you gave 3 percent to others.
CHAIR WHITE: These are the funds where there are a number, like five or six providers under one
umbrella. So we felt that the, because it's totally discretionary in the department, they can
move, if they feel that some are more needy than others, they can move that around and they
can make that decision, you know, without our input.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you.
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CHAIR WHITE: That was the rationale. Whether you guys agree with it or not is totally up to you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Don't ask.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, on Page 18, Hawaiian Kamalii. Again we've done the same thing, it's kind
of a wash there. We have deleted entirely the Imagination Library. I don't think anyone of
your positions, your papers supported that. Boys and Girls Club, been told again that the
Lahaina Tutoring Project does not go through the Boys and Girls Club of Maui, so we will
have to identify the proper nonprofit to handle that. The MEO allocation for Youth Services,
we've reduced the proposed, or deleted the proposed increase, and implemented the 3 percent
increase. Maui Family Support Services, we've increased the 21,000 by 3 percent. We have
increased Project Graduation by the same amount as well as the Hana Youth Center, the
Kihei Youth Center. For the Lanai Youth Center, we reduced the $1.5 million amount for a
new facility, and we're putting in the Planning and Design amount of 250,000, and we're
giving them the 3 percent increase on their base number. That increases it to 153,000. With
the Molokai Community Service Council, or Molokai Youth Center, we've given them the
3 percent increase along with Paia, and the Boys and Girls Clubs of Maui for Central, Haiku,
Lahaina and Makawao. And then you see the amount for the Lanai Center Facility for
Planning and Design, this is just simply balancing out the reduction up above.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Just a quick comment. I want to thank you for your consideration and I
can inform you and the Committee members that I did have a conversation with our
executive director of the Lanai Youth Center. She understands your proposal that we are in
no way trying to, we're just phasing the project a little differently.
CHAIR WHITE: Right.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: But that, you know, initial Planning and Design monies will be there,
and that the intent is for the consultants to work with the Youth Center people to build
something that the community and our youth really want. So they know what's going on,
they understand the financial situation with the needs, and I can tell you that we are very
much appreciative of you putting this Design monies in the upcoming budget. So thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. And you'll note that where we have projects that are going to cost us
cash, like this and the KIVA project, we're trying to phase it in such a way that we don't, we
don't set aside more money than we're going to be able to spend this year. With the Animal
Management Program, on, well, better if you turn to the, well on the bottom of Page 19, it
shows a deletion but actually we're just simply changing the way it's put together. So we're
providing the same level of funding plus a 3 percent increase. The first item is Maui Humane
Society for Animal Sheltering and that amount is 877,250, provided that 10,000 shall be for
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the Lanai Animal Rescue Center and that 79,567 shall be for the Molokai Humane Society
for spay and neuter operations, and then with the 3 percent increase, it takes the total up to
903,568. The next, so we basically split the Sheltering and the Animal Enforcement Program
so that we can identify what's being spent in each. And the amounts set aside for the Animal
Enforcement can't be spent on the Sheltering side because Enforcement is a very critical part.
So the Animal Enforcement Program is 472,224 with the 3 percent increase that we've
applied elsewhere, so the net appropriation is 486,391.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. Just, you know, you have Animal Enforcement
Program, a generic category there.
CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Wouldn't you thank that the Animal Sheltering Program would be
a generic category as well so that if there is a RFP that somebody, you know, the Department
can do an RFP and award it to whomever? Otherwise, it definitely will go to...
CHAIR WHITE: Well, the Chair's feeling is that Maui Humane Society is probably the best one
to-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Sure.
CHAIR WHITE: --do both programs at this time but, I'm, you know, I'm open to providing a little
more flexibility to the Administration -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: --if that's appropriate.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, regarding the Sheltering component, I may be wrong, I
haven't reviewed State Statutes for a while, but I'm sure Mr. Ueoka can verify, but I believe
under State Statutes, the statutes regarding the Sheltering is assigned to humane societies
throughout the counties, by State statute. And so I don't think we have as much flexibility as
maybe Mr. Couch would like, hope for or would like, because of the parameters set by State
law. And I'm sure Mr. Ueoka can double check the statute, but that's my understanding of
how the States had originally set up the program, which was basically only for dogs, the
S.
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sheltering of dogs, and that it's also under the Animal Protection and Cruelty Act, under the
statute. So if you can check on that for us, Mr. Ueoka, that would be appreciated.
CHAIR WHITE: Go ahead, if you have the answer.
MR. UEOKA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Yeah, Mr. Hokama, HRS 143-15 talks about any county may
contract with any society or organization forum for the prevention of cruelty to animals or
similar dog protective organization for the seizure and impounding of all unlicensed dogs and
for the maintenance of a shelter or pound for unlicensed dogs, lost, strayed, and homeless
dogs, and for the destruction or other disposition of seized dogs not redeemed as provided by
this Chapter. So kinda tying that together, I know we're separating 'em here, between the
shelter and animal enforcement, but I wanna say Animal Enforcement would probably be the
only entity that would be allowed to seize and impound the animals, so I'm not quite sure
how all of this will work. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Chair? Oh, I'm sorry, go right ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Go ahead.
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Crivello.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: So to Mr. Ueoka. Is this a combination? I see the separation
more for the funding instead of the actual administration. So what you've just read is it, well,
just go under one entity, the REP? The provision of this service is not necessarily meant that
it's separated.
MR. UEOKA: I guess I'm not sure how they would work separately. if two different organizations
got, if one got the Animal Sheltering Program contract, grant, whatever we're calling it, and
if one got the Animal Enforcement contract, I'm sure something could be figured out, but it
would probably be challenging at the beginning.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: But the mandate is for us to provide that, those services, right?
The animal shelter as well as animal management?
MR. UEOKA: Well, I guess
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: And Enforcement.
MR. UEOKA: It's, what I just read isn't necessarily a mandate, it's, we do have that responsibility
just under, you know, that's a County responsibility, but this one just allows the County to
contract for the shelter and the seizing and impounding, it allows us to contract out with a
humane society type organization, and I believe there's a separate section of the HRS that
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allows us to appoint animal control officers, or the Mayor to appoint animal control officers,
I believe.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Oh. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Question arises, what about the cats? The law kept saying dogs,
dogs, dogs, and we know they do a lot of cats.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Ueoka, that's yours.
MR. UEOKA: The State law allows us to, it is, like Mr. Hokama mentioned, focused on dogs and I
believe, over the years, it's, the Humane Society has expanded to cats but, yeah, I'm not sure.
I'm pretty sure we're allowed to do it for cats also but I'm not sure where the, it's not
authorized in this specific section of the HRS.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: I just found it interesting. Instead, they don't talk about animals,
they talk about dogs. I guess it's really an old law, and at that time, it was dogs. I don't
remember cats being an issue before. This is something new.
CHAIR WHITE: Well, I don't remember people reporting cat attacks.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: No.
CHAIR WHITE: So the enforcement issue is dogs.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA:
problems, yeah.

Except that we got cats all over the place causing all kind of

CHAIR WHITE: No, no, and I think it's appropriate that they've stepped in to help out.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Oh, absolutely, absolutely. But I found it interesting.
CHAIR WHITE: Staff just mentioned that maybe why the office building and the kennels were built
with County funding and the cat structure at the Humane Society was built with private
funding. I don't know if that's due to that separation or not.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Well, you know, as the discussion was going on with all of the
testifiers, it was very interesting to me to see the point that they kept making about separating
the costs and that they didn't particularly feel that they should be spending the money they
raised to run the programs, that we should pay for all the expenses and that the money raised
should go for add-ons or, you know, things that they feel would enhance the program. So I
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think there seems to be a clear difference between what is expected by us and what they feel
they should do.
CHAIR WHITE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: I think that something to be discussed, and, which brings me to my
last question is, there was a lot of talk during testimony about a study, and I asked Ms. Ridao,
and put that on my list. What happened? We decided we don't want a study? I don't like
studies either, but she just want to have one.
CHAIR WHITE: You know, the Chair's feeling is that we need to give the Maui Humane Society
time to figure out where they're going because they're in the midst of a management
changeover -COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Right.
CHAIR WHITE: --and I'm hoping that that's going to provide a different focus and different level
of energy and I'm, quite honestly, looking forward to it and I think that we should give them
the same funding with the increases that we're giving the others. And my sense is that it's
adequate and there are, we may need a proviso, the funding, in a way that we're not allowing
them to use County vehicles and County payroll and County gas to run their cremation
business or their early quarantine release business. But those are the kinds of things that I
think we have a responsibility to take a look at. But because they are generating significant
amounts of revenue with those programs and I don't believe those are clearly reported to us.
So, but those sources of revenue are what makes the Chair fairly comfortable that with the
3 percent increase and new management, we should be in pretty good shape.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: The whole business of them deriving income is not unusual because
we all know many, many, nonprofits have profit-making ventures, in fact, MEO, did at one
point. And it's, the question is their nonprofit status. You have to be careful to keep the
unrelated business income separate because of taxation. But I think it's very innovative for a
nonprofit to try to do that if the money goes to further the mission, why not?
CHAIR WHITE: The Chair doesn't have a problem with that either.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: The problem the Chair has is with the use of, or basically the co-mingling of
funds -COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Correct. They should be, not be comingled.
CHAIR WHITE: --between the nonprofit assets that we're providing for their use.
S.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Correct. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh. So, yeah, I totally support them doing it, just in the proper way. Then
the remainder of the page, we just split out, once again, the SNIP money and the monies for
the Valley Isle Animal Rescue, and we've deleted the $100,000 amount for the Feral Animal
Program.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: You were kinda giving reasons why things, I was just curious on
why this one.
CHAIR WHITE: Just, they were included in the Maui Humane Society. They were rolled up into
Maui Humane Society in the Mayor's proposal, and so the Chair's simply returning them to
the same status that we provided in our budget last year.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: The Feral Animals?
CHAIR WHITE: Oh, I'm sorry. I thought you were talking about SPCA and Valley Isle.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, Feral Animal.
CHAIR WHITE: No specific program and until we get a specific program, I don't think there's a
reason to provide those funds. Okay, moving into Information Technology.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Liquor.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Liquor.
CHAIR WHITE: Oh, I'm sorry. I turned one extra page. When we reviewed Liquor, there was a
significant number of positions that have not been filled for many, many years and I believe
there are positions--refresh my memory, Staff--but I believe there are positions dating back to
2005 and 2006. We came very close to eliminating, I believe, four of those positions or
recommending that four be eliminated last year. The Department said please don't do that,
so we didn't. None of those positions have been filled, and so the Chair's feeling is that the
number of deletions here is, it looks substantial, but it's positions that have been vacant for
quite some time and therefore I'd question the actual need. And the reason we were looking
at reducing or eliminating those positions last year is that the ratio of licensees to our
inspectors is significantly lower here. On Oahu, it's in the neighborhood of, I believe, 45,
and we're significantly lower than that. We've also adjusted the Other Services, Professional
Services, Airfare, the Per Diems and Registration/Training fees using the same criteria and
analysis that we've used on other, on all of our other line items. Mr. Couch.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair, and yeah, this is long overdue. I'm
surprised you didn't cut even more 'cause they said they had a $750,000 surplus last year and
you only cut essentially 300 from their budget. I just, a comment.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. Other questions, Members, on Liquor? Department of Management.
The first item on lower part of Page 21 is.. .oh I'm sorry, wait a minute ... oh, yeah, and the
reduction in positions also reduces the overhead charge that is paid by the Liquor Department
to the County. Department of Management, we have moved the Energy Program Specialist
from Environmental Protection and Sustainability back to where he was, and we've reduced
Professional Services by 160,000 and. . . Staff, could you look up the, my notes show -MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: --27,000 in 2012, 16, or no, a negative 16,000, 2013, and this is where the GPS
and other items are housed, GPS, the Motor Pool, Software, et cetera. . .but in taking a closer
look at it, we felt that there could be an additional reduction, and I believe we took it down to
130 from 290. So I'm sure there'll be lots of discussion on that as well. And then County
Facilities Security, we reduced the Miscellaneous Other Costs. And, actually, we just
eliminated the continuation request and I don't recall what the number was for that. Do you
remember the rationale for that, Michele?
MS. YOSHIMURA: That was the continuation cost, $15,000.
CHAIR WHITE: I'm sorry, could you speak up a little?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Sorry. That was the request for an increase of $15,000.
CHAIR WHITE: I know that. I'm just trying to recall what the basis of our deletion was of that
continuation request.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair, I think it was just to keep it in line with spending from Fiscal '12
and '13.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Okay, next page, we're going to be getting into Information Technology
Services. That's probably going to be a long discussion so we'll take our mid-afternoon
break. So be in recess until 3 o'clock. . . .(gavel).
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

2:48 p.m.
3:10 p.m.

CHAIR WHITE: . . .(gavel). . . Budget and Finance Committee will come back to order and we'll
continue with the review of Information Technology Services Program. And as I pointed out
in my PowerPoint presentation yesterday, what Maui County spends on MIS is at least
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double what we're spending on the other two neighbor island counties. And so these cuts are
simply not at all to be considered as us not being supportive of the Information Technology
Services Program but simply that we need to possibly take a look at some reductions to bring
us, not in any way in line with what they're doing, because I think we do want to be better
and do more than our sister neighbor island counties. But, with that, Members, we have
deleted a vacant position, Computer System Support Tech II, and another one for
Information Systems Analyst V. We've also deleted the expansion positions that were
requested. We've reduced Professional Services. You'll note on Page 1,014 of the details
that prior to us doing the Gartner Study in 2013, we were spending about $84,000. We did
the Gartner Study in 2013 so that became 431,000, and then last year we adopted funds for
the KIVA Replacement Study in the amount of 325,000. We don't see any proposal for
another large study, so we have adjusted the request down from 325, which was what was
utilized last year, and we are providing $100,000 amount for Professional Services, which is
still about maybe, not 20 percent but, yeah, it's about 20 percent over what we spent in 2012.
We've reduced R & M Contracts. And, Michele, can you pull up what was spent in R & M
Services/Contracts?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair, to date on R & M Contracts, it's $1,127,949, an encumbrance of
114,576, leaving an available balance of 237,399, 339, sorry.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, so we have adjusted that by just $40,000, which we think is a responsible
amount. That's $40,000 of expansion but it's on a base of almost $1.5 million, 1.45, so that
will leave them with a balance of 1 million 405, which is the same amount that was allotted
this year. In the two previous years, we spent 780,000 and 908,000, so the amount we're
allotting is about $600,000 over the average of the two previous years. So, to say that we are
not supporting, or supportive if IT, would be hard to justify there. The next item is Rentals.
We reduced the 38,281 amount, I believe because there was no expenditure. Yeah, because
they moved their offices, and there's no longer any rental charge there. And the next item
was Computer Software, we reduced that by 175,000 and maybe you can--do you have the
details as to
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair, on Computer Software, there was a prior year encumbrance of
$135,000, a year-to-date expenditure of $222,300 and a balance available of $287,444.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. so we have a balance available of 287 and because that's a significant
amount of what was allocated for this year, we felt it was appropriate to reduce that to
200,000 this year, which is $175,000 lower when, and they have $287,000 left to spend this
year or encumber this year. So we felt that was a fair reduction. We've reduced Computer
Equipment for all the expansion positions and we reduced the Desktop Replacement by
700,000 from 1 million. I believe we gave them, my recollection is we gave them 1.3 million
last year and the balance remaining in that account is 700,000, and so they've got 700,000
left to spend, so we've reduced that to 300,000. We also requested a list of, noting how
many computers have been replaced in the last four years and I don't believe we've received
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that yet. Reducing Life Cycle Hardware Replacement Upgrade. They requested 310.. .Staff,
do you recall what they requested for those types of replacements last year?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair, for Fiscal Year '14 and their Computer Equipment Index Code
7031, there was a budget that was approved of $1.13 million and it's not specific as to what
type of equipment it was, but there is an available balance of $703,000, and I guess that
would be for the different Desktop Replacements and all other hardware that they had
requested.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, so that would include the, that 1.3 would include the Desktop and the other
items, correct?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Yes, Mr. Chair, that's correct.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. We have, the Chair's proposal includes the replacement of all of the
Mobile Data Terminals requested for the Police Department because it was noted that there
would be some issues with communication with their new software. So, we felt that was an
expense that we had to undertake. We have deleted the Network Technology Refresh. And
the next one down is, and basically the Chair's concern was there was no list and no real
explanation of what we were getting for that, and when we have a request for a total of
5.5 million just in new equipment, the Chair's feeling was that we needed to reduce that
significantly. To put it in perspective, the equipment request for the other two sister counties
were in the neighborhood of 4 and $500,000 for the year. For the KIVA Replacement, we
look forward to having a little more discussion on the time frame within which this will, this
process will roll out. I think we all support the need for the replacement of the KI'VA system,
but, again, our interest is in determining just how much cash is necessary. We've put in a
million of the 2.5 million since the process of identifying exactly what we're gonna need is
just beginning. With respect to Software Programs, Other Software Programs, we deleted the
Enterprise Architecture for Integrated Directory and Email services and for Email and
Recovery for End Users. Our thought there is that there is some things that we're just going
to have to push back to a later date and postpone for now. Any questions on those items?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Not yet.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. I'm sure there's going to be lively discussion.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Should be.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Will be.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Will be.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: You can count on that.
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CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Moving down to the bottom of Page 22, we're reducing Professional
Services by 30,000 in the Geographic Information Systems, and the reason for that, I believe,
is that they haven't spent much of that $35,000. And the other is Registration/Training Fees,
the same thing applies there, and so we've reduced it to a total of $500. And in the previous
two years, they've spent an average of about 5 or 6. And that does it for that area. On to the
Office of the Mayor. As you'll recall from my presentation, the Office of the Mayor runs a,
runs with, if you combine Economic Development, Management, and the Mayor's Office, it
runs with a combined staffing ratio of 491/2 positions. Oahu does the same functions with 28.
Kauai does it with 29, and the Big Island staffing is 33 positions. The Hawaii County
expense is approximately 2.6 million compared to the operation here on Maui costing about
4.6, so we're about 2 million, a little less than $2 million over the expense on the Big Island,
which, to me, is a very good comparison because they collect about the same amount of
property taxes and they have a land mass that's three and a half times the size of ours, which
I believe makes it comparable to a three-island county. The other thing that we need to keep
in perspective is that there's been a very significant growth in the staffing of this Department.
The current proposal from the Administration puts them at about 11 percent more staff than
when Charmaine Tavares left office and about a 20 percent increase in cost. In addition to
that, if you compare the current Administrative costs and staffing to when Mayor Arakawa
left office in 2007, his staffing level is up 72 percent and his salary costs are up 92 percent.
And as I pointed out in the presentation, the community that supports all of our taxes is not
growing at anywhere near that rate. In a study of, or a report on the operating statistics of
30 hotels, 30 largest hotels, their administrative costs over the same period have dropped by
9.4 percent. So for our, you know, for large employers to have to cut back their own
administrative costs and have the administration expanding at that rate, I think is, falls under
the category of unsustainable. So again, we're not looking at cutting any existing positions,
we're deleting a vacant position of an Administrative Assistant, we're deleting an expansion
request, and we're reducing some of the expenses in other areas to reflect the actual
expenditures. Any questions on that?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Guzman.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: What is the Telephone, right there, Delete Telephone? Where is
that in the detailed items? Do you know what page?
CHAIR WHITE: Let me see if I can find it.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Oh, there it is. I see it, 11-7.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, there was zero expenditure under that line.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah, I see that. Thank you, Chair.
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CHAIR WHITE: Okay, moving on down to. . .and the deletion of the Computer Software, that was a
one-time request for Mr. Baz for his computer software for projecting future costs, and so
I'm assuming that's done and not in need of a repeat there. Dropping down into Economic
Development Program, we've reduced Miscellaneous Other Costs by $11,000 and, basically,
it's been done, the same way we've done the other reductions. Then we've added a proviso
for $10,000 for the 4-H Upcountry Fair from the Agricultural Promotion budget of 110,000.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I have a question on that one.
CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And you know you had it, and I haven't said all day and I've
been very observant and you have 10,000 here and then under the Maui Farm Bureau you
also have another 25,000 for that organization for the Upcountry Fair.
CHAIR WHITE: Correct. We had that discussion. Ms. Balsa mentioned that the Farm Bureau has
always been giving 25, and then this past year we put in a proviso that's exactly the same as
this. So, basically, they're not getting any more than they got before.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
CHAIR WHITE: It's just that. we're proviso'ing, we're repeating the 10,000 proviso.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: But you're giving 'em 10,000 more?
CHAIR WHITE: No, they're not getting 10,000 more. They're getting the same thing they got. I
believe this proviso from the Agriculture Promotion Fund was in there, in last year's budget.
And so then, and they got 25,000 from the Farm Bureau, so we're just proviso'ing what they
got last year.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, I'll check into that. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh. Then we also gave them, the Farm Bureau, the 3 percent increase; same
with Maui Nui Botanical Gardens, Molokai Livestock Cooperative. And we've eliminating
the University of, the CTAHR grant, again, based on the loss of the TAT or the lack of full
removal or greater removal of the cap. Business Research Library and the East Maui
Cultural/Economic Development Fund, we increased. We've increased by 3 percent for
Friends of Old Maui High and Ka Ipu Kukui, and we've placed a proviso on the Lanai
Economic Developmental Cultural programs for Lanai Changes, which I believe was the
same proviso we had last year, and we increased that by 20,000. We deleted the increase and
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then provided the 3 percent increase for the Ma Ka Hana Ka Ike Building Program in Hana.
We've added an amount for the Maui Economic Development Board in line with the Chair's
concerns that we need to provide much more of an added focus on generating economic
improvements and this, the Chair's intention is to provide a proviso that these funds shall be
used for creation of new businesses and new jobs as opposed to, as you all know, MEDB
does a great job of doing this already, but they also have a variety of funds that are focused
on youth programs and the Women and Technology and the other training programs. So the
Chair's intent is simply to make it clear that this is not to be added to the Training Funds but
rather to the generation of new jobs and new businesses throughout the County. We also
deleted the $45,000 Maui High program since that is more of a State expense, so along with
the reduction, or the elimination of the CTAHR grant. And then the next change is the UH
Emerging Health Careers, we've deleted that amount, and I believe that was a deletion we
found in. . . Staff, remind me. . .1 believe that most Members cut that. And we've established a
Haiku-Makawao-Paia Economic Development & Cultural Programs to mirror that for Lanai,
Molokai and Hana in response to the elimination of the Small Town grants and planning that
these communities have been able to take advantage of in the past. Festivals of Aloha,
3 percent increase. Film Industry Promotion, we've not changed the Administration's
request. Staff and the Chair felt that that was a very worthwhile expansion, and we feel that
the Film Industry Promotion will have a lot to do with providing some economic stimulation.
So we feel that the increase there is well done. Hana Canoe Club, we've moved to the East
Maui Economic Development & Cultural Program's line. We've provided 3 percent increase
for Maui Arts & Cultural Center. We've reduced the capital request from 500,000 to
400,000, a reduction of 100,000, and we have provided the 3 percent increase for the Maui
Community Theater. The Maui High School Marching Band, we have increased the
allocation for that from the Mayor's proposal. We've added 75,000 to provide a total of
100,000 and the rationale for that is that this is a significant bit of exposure for Maui County.
Those kinds of expenditures are generally not made through the Maui Visitors Bureau, and
so the Chair's feeling is that it's appropriate for us to assist with that because of the
significant promotional value and the experience that the kids will certainly gain from, by
participating in the Rose Parade. The Soil/Water Districts, we have increased by the
3 percent.. .oh, no, that's not 3 percent. What was it? Do you recall what the purpose of that
was? Okay, we'll take a look at that. We have reduced the. . . I'll let Mr. Couch pronounce
this one.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Huh?
CHAIR WHITE: Just kidding. This is the Ke Ao I Ka Makani Ho'ehaili, and we've reduced that
from 75,000 in the Mayor's proposal to 25, and the purpose for that is that there's no specific
plan of how the monies will be utilized and our feeling is that when we've got volunteer
efforts that, you know, we're happy to provide the, some supporting funding but I don't
believe we've been provided a plan.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
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CHAIR WHITE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Just, real quick.
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: This.. .thank you. This is in reference to Kaehu Bay
yeah? That's what I have here.
MR. BAZ: Yes, that's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. We'll get more.. . .okay.
CHAIR WHITE: We've added, if you will recall, we had money in the OED budget for the Lanai
Watershed last year that was not utilized, and so we're replacing it with, we're reducing that
to, or no, from the Mayor's proposal, we're increasing it by 30,000, and the purpose of this is
to provide for funding for some oversight by the community on the, over the watershed.
With respect to Grants and Disbursements for the Visitor Industry, we have done the deletion
of the proposed increase and then added 3 percent, so there's a small change there. We have
reduced the Grants and Disbursements for Economic Development Initiatives by 25,000.
The reason for that is that the Boat Days for Lahaina came out of this fund before, it's now
its own line item, so we felt it was appropriate to reduce this by that amount, and we're
adding a proviso for $10,000 to be provided to Maui Nui Canoe Race. In the Parks and
Recreation. . . well, before we go on. . . any questions or concerns on the aforementioned grants
and things of that sort? Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Just quickly and thank you for your consideration on the Lanai
Watershed Management. So you're absolutely correct, Chair. This is an add from the
Mayor's proposed budget. This is $70,000 reduction from the current year appropriation.
So, for me, I'm looking at a reduction, not an add in this program. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh. Okay, going into Parks and Recreation. Delete the expansion positions
for Permanent Enforcement Program. Basically, all these four items are a deletion for the
Motor Vehicles, the Personnel, and the Equipment for those programs. The purpose of that is
that the Chair's feeling is that the, it's still not economically feasible for us to replace the
Security Contract with full-time employees. The numbers that we were provided by the
Parks Department did not include the fringe component of the pay, and once you include the
fringe, the amount of the, or the cost to switch is quite significant, and, in the Chair's view,
not appropriate at this time. And then the next changes are on the Aquatics Program, and
basically, this is the result of the move back to the Parks Department and the Aquatics
Program of the Ocean Safety Program, moving it back from Fire. And some of these
reductions are simply, again, reductions made because of the non-use of some of these funds.
The Park Maintenance Program, we reduced Park Caretaker by one-tenth of an EIP. We
reduced the Cellular Telephone in Parks Maintenance by 3,000. We increased Repairs and
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Maintenance to 500,000 and we'll be putting in a proviso that 1.5 million shall be used for
the continuation of the Restroom Facility Upgrade Program. As you'll recall, we put that
amount into the budget last year and they've spent a reasonable portion of it, but there's a lot
of money that remains there. This is so that we can continue to increase our upgrades of the
bathrooms. And dropping down to the Planning and Development--or, I'm sorry, there are
no changes in Planning and Development. Next changes are in Recreation and Support
Services Program. We deleted the expansion positions for the two Park Caretakers in East
Maui and those other positions as noted, one in, I guess, two in South Maui and so forth.
Then we have reduced Repairs and Maintenance, Central by 30,000, Operations in East Maui
and West Maui by the amount shown, 17,000 and 5,000. We've restored the Security
Contract amount of 152,244. We reduced Operations expense in South Maui, Maintenance
expense in Molokai, and we've deleted the 4x2 Pick-up Truck for Central, deleted the
15-passenger van in Hana and the ½ ton 4x2 Pick-up Truck. We have increased the budget
for the PALS Program by 200,000 in order to make more time available or more slots
available. It's our understanding that the majority of the locations where we have PALS
Programs, max out and are unable to take additional kids, and that seems like a fairly
minimal cost to improve our ability to take care of additional kids while their parents are
away at work. There was a vacant position at the golf course, which we had deleted. Going
to Department of Personnel Services, we've deleted expansion positions, the two Human
Resource Specialist Trainees, we've increased premium pay to account for having them work
some overtime, and as you'll recall, there was virtually no overtime to speak of in the
positions that would have needed to work overtime if there was as much of a demand as was
outlined to us. We've reduced Miscellaneous Supplies by 10,000, Professional Services by
46. We've deleted the Office Equipment and Office Furniture for the expansion positions.
And I'm just taking a look at Professional Services, and we've reduced it by 46,000. My
notes show that they have, of the 206,000, they have $74,000 left in the account. Could you
verify that, Michele? Pardon? I'm sorry, the Professional Services on Page 13-6.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thirteen dash six.
CHAIR WHITE: The budget for this fiscal year was 206,000, last year it was 42, the year before
that, it was 185, so the adjustment by 46,000 will bring it down to about 206,000 I believe.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair, on 13-6, Professional Services, there's a prior year encumbrance of
$66,751. The Fiscal Year '14 allotment was $206, $206,000, sorry. The year-to-date
expenditure is 97,576, with a current encumbrance of 101,048, and available balance is
74,127.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, thank you. Mr. Baz.
Thank you, Mr. Chair. That was one of those ones where the disencumbrance, the
66,751 was disencumbered, so the actual Fiscal Year 2013 expenditures were 122,281, just to
note.

MR. BAZ:
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CHAIR WHITE: Okay, good. Well then that, that would suggest that the 206,000 is, well, might
even be too high. We blew it on that one. Well, I think we should consider adjusting it a
little bit further down but we'll wait 'till the Department comes in for that. Okay,
Department of Planning. We have deleted the expansion position for the Operations, Office
Operations Assistant and reduced Operating Costs by 282,000. I believe one of, the majority
of that is the Formula-based Zoning Code Update. We have adjusted the Miscellaneous
Supplies from 4,000 to 2,000, we've adjusted Small Equipment to 1,000 from 4,000 because
they weren't spending anywhere near that amount, and we have reduced Advertisement to
18,000, and they've only spent 9,000 so far this year. Professional Services is where the
Formula-based County Zoning Code is and, I should say Form-based. Again the rationale for
that was that we just don't, it's something that's probably very nice to do but the question is
whether we should be spending that money while the community is still not quite back on its
feet. But, you know, the Committee can decide on that as we go through this process. And
we've adjusted R & M Services Contracts and we've reduced the--can you look up what was
spent on Airfare? The prior two years Airfare has been 46,000 and the amount for this year
was 130, and so we've adjusted that to 90. I don't believe the amount spent was even close
to the 130.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair, the expenditure to date is 40,837 and the available balance is
89,163.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, thank you. Okay, so if they've spent 40 something, then doubling the
amount for next year should be adequate. And I think that pretty much takes care of that
total in changes. Any questions on Planning? Comments?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Nope.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Going on to Department of Police. The first item is the deletion of the
Standard of Conduct Differential for Chief and Deputy Chief, pending an opinion from
Corporation Counsel. There's a question as to whether these two positions can be given
salaries in excess of what is identified by the, or given to them by the Salary Commission.
This is simply something that's going to have to, may have to just be moved to another line
because it's like a, like a vehicle. If they're given a new vehicle, that's part of their
compensation, but it's not part of their salary. So the Chair's feeling is this doesn't belong
here, it needs to go somewhere else so. We've reduced premium pay.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Just so that we're all clear since Mr. Ueoka can explain the difference
between salary and compensation, I'd like to have him put it on the record.
MR. UEOKA: I don't know if I can explain it.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I mean, because the Chair brings up a good point. Only Salary
Commission sets those positions' numbers.
MR. UEOKA: Yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: Well, just to give Mr. Ueoka a little bit of a break, we've asked for a
determination by Corp Counsel in writing so.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: We got it.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: They gave it -COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: We got it.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --...(inaudible)... Personnel.
CHAIR WHITE: I can't keep up with all of 'em, I'm glad you guys are.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: We got it.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, we got it. He punted it to Personnel.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: We got it.
CHAIR WHITE: Oh. Okay. Well, they'll probably punt it back to Police or Corp Counsel. Okay,
well, the Chair is comfortable I think in a decision to move it somewhere else, so that's what
we'll do and we're not suggesting that they're not entitled to it, it's just that it doesn't belong
in Salary since salary is set by the Salary Commission. We've reduced Criminal Intelligence,
actually it's a very small amount but.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, just one last question.
CHAIR WHITE: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: As compensation, you know, that's taxable and it impacts the
calculation of fringe benefits and retirement and health fund? I'm assuming it is. So I just
need to have it verified for me.
CHAIR WHITE: I'm, well, you go ahead, but I'm quite sure that it is. Mr. Baz.
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. From my understanding, the Auto Allowance would be a taxable
as far as their income is concerned. I'm not sure about the retirement or the, it would not
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affect the EUTF, but definitely I'm not sure about the retirement, but it's taxable income on
their taxes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, I mean, I just want to know if that's part of our calculation
requirements.
MR. BAZ: Yeah, I'm not sure about the retirement system.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: It's not, I don't need it now, but I would like to know the answer to it
later, when you have time.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, good question.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Michele, reduce Operations, Admin, that's the, that's a grouping of a whole bunch
of changes, isn't it?
MS. YOSHIMURA: . . .(inaudible)...
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Yeah. Thank you.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Okay. On the reduce Operations for the Administrative Costs, it's $50,000 to
Office Supplies, $39,000 for Professional Services, $750 reduction due to the expansion
positions for Gun Allowance, $10,000 for Moving Allowance, $10,000 for Publications and
Subscriptions and $56,000 for Uniform Allowance.
CHAIR WHITE: And all of those adjustments were made based on the same calculation that we've
had on the others.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Correct.
CHAIR WHITE: So we can through those individually if you choose, but that can wait 'till the
Department's here if they have concerns about it. Okay, moving into Investigative Services,
we've reduced premium pay--I believe our reduction was 10 percent--in the Police
Department, we reduced premium pay by 10 percent across the board. As you can see there,
those amounts simply relate to the, a 10 percent reduction. And in the Vice Operations.. .is
that one item or several?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair, Staff apologizes for not having an itemized breakdown on these
lists, but we are working on one and we will have one by the time we get to the Department
again. For Vice, it's a 7,000 reduction for Other Services, $5,000 reduction for Professional
Services, $6,000 reduction for R & M Services/Contracts and $30,000 reduction to the
Confidential Fund.
IBE
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CHAIR WHITE: Okay. And again, those are all based on, calculated on what had been spent and
what was likely needed for the next year. Then you can see the, we deleted Vehicles for
Vice, Criminal Investigation, Juvenile and the Special Response Group. And the vehicle
deletions are largely due to the ongoing practice of the Department buying the vehicles at the
very end of the fiscal year, so we feel rather than leaving the, leaving all that, those resources
in the Department, we should be using those elsewhere in the County in order to reduce
these, again, these pots of money sitting in various places. So while they stated that they're
purchasing the vehicles now, there's no encumbrance and so we felt that it was appropriate
for us to cut those at this time and then with next year's budget they can simply move up the
purchasing to the early part of the year so it'll be the early part of 2016 that they'll be buying
vehicles instead of the last couple months of 2015. So we're not really changing the time
frame within which the vehicles are acquired by more than a month or two, we're just simply
saying we don't to leave the money parked in one place, no pun intended with the vehicles.
Okay. Uniformed Patrol, we've deleted the expansion position for Dispatcher on Molokai,
deleted Public Safety Aid for Lahaina and the, these are all expansion positions for the
Traffic Sergeant and Public Safety Aid. We've reduced premium pay in each of the stations.
We have deleted hazardous pay for expansion positions. We've reduced premiums for traffic
at Kihei, reduced Operations, and we'll have that itemized list for you to outline the
breakdown of the 147,000, and we've deleted more vehicles here. I believe it's all vehicles
down to Mobile Video Camera and Recording for Central. We've deleted the Motorcycles
for Traffic and the related Radios for the motorcycles. And we've deleted the Patrol
Vehicles for Kihei, and we've deleted the Prisoner Van, Prisoner Transport Van for Kihei.
We feel that they can use the one from Central when it's appropriate or when the need arises.
We have deleted the Speed Monitoring and Message Trailer and the Mobile Video Camera
and Recording for Kihei. Under Technical Support Services, Technical and Support
Services, we deleted the Operations Assistant for the Radio Shop. We deleted the vacant
position of Service Station Attendant, I believe that was in Kihei. We've deleted expansion
position for Police Sergeant. We deleted two vacant positions, Building Repair. Those were
positions we gave them last year, and they've yet to be filled. We've deleted expansion
position for Facilities Services Manager of 31,600, and we have deleted premium pay for the
following list of areas. And again that's 10 percent reduction. And we have deleted
Miscellaneous Supplies, R & M Services/Contract we've reduced by 88,000, and in that
88,000 expense, is tied to the, to the maintenance for the landscaping and the building of the
Kihei Police Station. As you'll recall, we were told there would be no or various low cost
impact, and yet the carrying costs for that facility adds $592,000 a year, so we're simply
trying the reduce that expense a bit. And delete Plans, Training, and Research, I don't recall
what that was for. Oh, I'm sorry, 48,000. Can the Staff find that faster than me? The
deletion of Plans, Training and Research of 48,000 in Technical and Support Services
Program.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair, the $48,000 reduction is for the Tasers.
CHAIR WHITE: For the what?
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MS. YOSHIMURA: Tasers.
CHAIR WHITE: Tasers?
MS. YOSHIMURA: The Taser gun.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. What page is it on? I turned too far and I'm in Grant Revenue.
MS. YOSHIMURA: It is on 15-85, it's under Plans, Training, Research, $48,000 for the
replacement of 30 Tasers.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. I don't remember cutting that. So we'll discuss that later. Okay, moving
into the Department of Prosecuting Attorney, very small changes there. We just deleted the
two expansion positions and reduced premium pay on Page 34 of 72. And again, the Chair's
not making a statement that this is not an important position to fill, it's just that we looked to
the Administration to provide us with the kinds of changes in staffing in other areas that will
allow us to shift staffing to these positions if they're of that critical need. You know, well,
we'll get into it in Public Works. So we've reduced premium pay there. We've also reduced
premium pay in the Special Maintenance Program. . . oh, wait a second, turned too many
pages.. .okay, so, yeah, I'm sorry, we are in Public Works already. And we've reduced
Special Maintenance Program by reducing premium pay, reducing Operations for Veterans
Cemetery, County Garages on Molokai/Lanai and we're adding a Water Tank to the Lanai
Veterans Cemetery. And these reductions in premium pay and Operations are based on what
has been utilized in the past and what is likely to be used going forward. We have reduced
Professional Services in R & M Service Contracts for Development Services Administration
Program and we have reduced Operations Costs by 27,000 in the Highways Administration
Program. And that's a combination of expenses again, right? Okay. So we can provide the
details at a later date. We have deleted the expansion positions for the Pavement
Preservation Team and with those reductions, we've reduced Operations, we deleted one
Crew Cab Truck, we deleted Computer and Office Furniture for the expansion positions and
deleted Office Equipment. And then the reduction of Equipment was basically tied to the
request for the paving. We have added a Truck Tractor that Public Works needed for Lanai
and we've also added the Asphalt Zipper for Highway Repairs, that's the Small Highway
Repairs. Any questions on that section? Okay. Okay, moving along we have in Department
of Transportation, we have reduced the Grant Subsidy for the school buses by 200,000,
leaving 50,000 for refurbishment. That sounds like that might not, might not work. And
we've also reduced Transportation Services by 45,000. And the reason for the reduction of
45,000 is I believe the, we've gone with, for two years with no expense, so we've reduced
that to 5,000. The, in the Maui Economic Opportunity, Human Services Transportation, we
have deleted the proposed increase of 5 percent and replaced it with a 3 percent increase. In
the Highway Administration Program, we have deleted the requested County amount by
$400,000, which basically removes the matching funds. The question there is whether we
will remain an MPO or not based on the definition. Public Transit Highway Program, Public

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 29, 2014

Transit Program I should say, Highway fund, we've reduced Printing and Binding by
$40,000. We've deleted the increase for Public Transit, which was a 5 percent increase
requested, so that's a reduction of 361,500. And we've deleted the increase for the
Commuter Service by 74,500. Going into the Water Department. We have reduced
Operations. Okay, you've been provided with the breakdown of that $377,000 amount. And
I think, Staff, it might be more helpful, not for this one, but I think it would helpful if we
could provide the, well as we go through the explanation, we have reasons for each of these
adjustments to the Water Fund, not the Water Fund, but the Water Supply Expenses. But
they're consistent with the changes that we've made in other areas. With respect to Water
Operations Program, we've deleted expansion positions in the DWS Field Operations
Program and we will await some suggestions from the Administration on where we can pick
up some E/Ps. We've reduced Operations by 647,000 based on this sheet that you were just
provided, the bottom half of that sheet. Then the remainder of these equipment cuts are
basically things that we felt weren't needed at this time or we're purchasing part of what was
requested. So I'll let you take a look at those.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Just curious, on the reduced Operations for the Water, the
Administration Program, that's not what this list is we just got? For the Water
Administration is on top and then Water Operations is below?
CHAIR WHITE: . . .(Inaudible)
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: I'm sorry. I might have used the wrong term.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: But the $647,000 amount on Page 39 is the bottom portion of the -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: --sheet.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: And we initially had adjusted the Electricity Cost by taking away about
$2.2 million. We've put that back in just simply because it's so difficult to gauge. One of
the reasons the Chair is relatively comfortable with these other cuts is that we've never really
taken a look at the Water Department's expenditures. So these reductions reflect the same
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kind of analysis that we've done on the other departments. If they need, if the use all of the
$2.2 million in electricity, what we've left there that doesn't look like they're going to need,
then they've got plenty of money to cover this, all these cuts. So again we, as we look at
these adjustments, we are still providing increases in, increases over last year's budget for
every department, except Transportation, maybe we've cut Transportation a little bit too
much. But, again, we can't look at this just as cuts. We've got to look at it from the
perspective of what has been spent in the past and simply ask our Department heads to do
what managers do, and that is to figure out better ways and less expensive ways of getting the
job done. Okay, with that we've come to the end of our operating appropriations. What is
the Committee's desire? We, there's a meeting that Mr. Victorino would like to attend this
evening that starts at 6 o'clock. I'm more than happy to go until 6:00 and break then or we
can go until 5:00 if others have planned to leave at 5:00 and come back at 7:00.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: 5:30.
CHAIR WHITE: It doesn't make any difference to the Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: 5:30.
CHAIR WHITE: Pardon?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: 5:30.
CHAIR WHITE: 5:30? Everybody okay 'till 5:30?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Would that work for Mr. Victorino?
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, I believe he wants to go down and be there for a while and that would give
him--I believe the meeting starts at 6 o'clock.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: So that would work okay with you?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, we'll go to 5:30. And let me take a five-minute recess and talk to Staff and
we'll come back. ...(gavel)...
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

4:17 p.m.
4:34 p.m.

CHAIR WHITE: . . . (gavel). . . Okay, Members, we will go through the CIP changes and then
break so that people can attend the meeting, and we'll come back at 7:00 and we will bring
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Transportation back at 7:00 followed by Planning followed by Water. So that's the plan for
the rest of the evening. Transportation first, then Planning, and then Water. Okay. I'm
sorry. I didn't call it back to order. This meeting shall come back to order. Okay, moving
into the Capital Improvement Projects beginning on Page 41 of 72. We have deleted the
appropriation of $200,000 for the Hana-Keanae-Kailua Park Systems and as we go through
this, we've deleted each of the appropriations for the Parks and Recreation in each of the
Park System Districts and the reason for that is that we don't have a specific outline of what
is going to be done, and the Chair's feeling is that we need to have a little bit more detail
before we assign those funds. We have moved the Paani Mai Park Improvements to cash
from Bond. In the Paia-Haiku Community Plan Area we have $120,000 for, well there's no
change there, we've accepted the Mayor's note on that. In the Makawao-Pukalani-Kula
Community Plan Area, we have deleted the $1.1 million for Haiku-Makawao-Paia Park
System and...
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Who was that?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: I'm sorry.
CHAIR WHITE: Yes, Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Are you going on?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes, but you can...
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: I was wondering -CHAIR WHITE: Please feel free to stop me at any...
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: --wondering why.
CHAIR WHITE: As I just mentioned, in each of the
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: You still don't have enough information on any of these, all of them.
CHAIR WHITE: Right. The description was, we may use it for blah, blah, blah, blah, blah and it
was, basically the same description for each, each system area.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: It's kinda distressing because you know how much we need these
improvements in all of our parks.
CHAIR WHITE: Right. The Chair's concern is that the Parks Department is coming back together,
seems to have a new level of energy. I'm uncomfortable providing a significant amount of
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cash CIP when, with just the bathrooms, they were unable to spend the 1.5 million that we
gave them this year. So I'm concerned at giving them, I believe that all of these totaled come
to a little over 7 possibly approaching $8 million in funding. So the concern is that, I don't
remember how much of the 1.5 million that we gave them for the Bathroom Restoration
Projects was spent but my recollection is that it was somewhere in the neighborhood of 7 or
800,000. But we'll double-check that.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: And that's their inability to get the projects done?
CHAIR WHITE: I believe so. That was, they said that their challenge was the permitting process
and getting, you know, identifying what needed to be done and then getting it through the
permitting process.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Okay, well I'm sure we'll have a chance to see the, probably the
Deputy tomorrow.
CHAIR WHITE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Or tonight or whenever.
CHAIR WHITE: We've increased, we've left the million dollars in that was for the Restroom
Renovation Project in Repairs and Maintenance, Parks, Countywide. And we've increased
that in the operating budget by $500,000 to accommodate some of this amount and put in an
amount that we feel they can probably spend during the year.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: You know, that really surprises me because I think I commented
earlier that first time since I've been on the Council, the Deputy Director made an
appointment, and I think she did it with each one of us, and took it to our District place and
showed us all the improvements that they were talking about, and they didn't submit that to
you?
CHAIR WHITE: There were, there's not an identifiable list of expenditures in each area that I'm
aware of. And maybe this grey hair is indicating something that my memory is losing but.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Well, you know, it's really etched in my mind. I went there on a day
when it was pouring rain to Pukalani so that they could show me how they were going to
improve the bathrooms and what they were going to do in the park and it was all there.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Didn't you. . . I'm sure everybody had it too.
CHAIR WHITE: We just got it today.

IBM
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COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Oh, God, this was several months ago. Oh well.
CHAIR WHITE: Anyway.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: That's why I'm so surprised to see it coming out because I went to
this meeting and I thought -CHAIR WHITE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: --this is historic that somebody actually has a plan, you know.
CHAIR WHITE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay so we will take another look at that when Parks comes. The Upcountry
Skate Park, no change. We have added $200,000 for lighting in the Municipal Parking Lot in
Makawao due to safety concerns from the merchants there -COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: --and the community. We've moved the Eddie Tam Ball Field Lighting
Replacement Project from Bond to cash. And then going to the Wailuku-Kahului
Community Plan Area. No change in the Market Street (Off-Street) Parking. We have
deleted the Wailuku Baseyard Emergency Generator Replacement and the Wailuku
Municipal Lot [Resurfacing and Restriping]. The reason for that is that there have been
numerous plans to do something with that area and I think it would be appropriate for us to,
before we spend money repaving it, to have that item referred to either--I don't know who it
would go to--but to review what those plans are and I guess it would be Infrastructure
Management, but to take a look at whether we feel it's appropriate to spend that money
moving in another direction rather than repaving and restriping at this point. Kahului Parks
System, we've deleted 800,000, the same reasons we've deleted in each other place. The
Kanaha Beach Park Master Plan, no change. The Wailuku Community Center Expansion,
we've moved to Park Assessment Funds. The Wailuku Gym Improvements, we've moved to
the Bond Fund because the remainder of the project is already in the Bond Fund. The Park
System for Wailuku-Waihee-Waikapu is a deletion. We've added the Kahului Community
Center and amount for Planning and Design of 400,000. The South Maui Park Systems,
we've deleted the $2 million amount there and we'll revisit that, same with the Lanai Park
System and then Molokai, we've done the same with the Park System allocation and the
Duke Maliu Ballfield Lighting Replacement -MS. YOSHIMURA: Sorry, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: --is an add.
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MS. YOSHIMURA: That one's moving from the Bond Fund, sorry.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, I thought that was already in the proposal. Okay. So it's moving to cash
from Bond, right? Okay. Then moving down to General Fund: Countywide. Countywide
Facility Building Improvements have been reduced by 520,000 to 600,000. Countywide Fire
Facilities, we've deleted the entire amount. Countywide Police Facilities, we've deleted a
portion of that and leaving enough to, for them to redo the facility, the Police Housing
Projects. Under Other Projects, we've, we have moved and reduced the amount for Bus
Stops and Shelters. We've moved it from the Bond Fund to General Fund, and the same
thing with the Kula Ag Park Extension, moving it from the Bond Fund. Under
Wahikuli-Kahului Community Plan Area, the Waiko Road improvements...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You mean Wailuku.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Wahikuli? Wailuku.
CHAIR WHITE: Is that what I said?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, you said Wahikuli and like, I lost you right there.
CHAIR WHITE: Well, I almost caught up on my sleep last night.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That's a big district.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Ms. Cochran was wondering how did Wahikuli get all the way
across to Kahului.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Anyway, under that heading, Wailuku-Kahului, we have the Waiko Road
Improvements we've moved from the Highway Fund, and West Maui Community Plan Area
Road Improvements, we have moved the Front Street Breakwall Repair, moved from the
Bond plan, I'm sorry, Bond Fund and same thing with the Front Street Deck and Repair near
Lahainaluna Road. And the Highway Fund, we've increased the Countywide Road
Resurfacing and Pavement Preservation by 82,000 and that's basically where we feel we
should, as we find excess amounts of money, we feel that we should be putting it towards the
Countywide Repaving and Replacement so that's just a part of that. Moving to Bond Fund,
Parks and Recreation, Paani Mai, we've moved that amount to the General Fund. Makawao
Baseyard, we've deleted the $100,000 in Design and Parks and Recreation, we've moved-we just went through that--we moved the Eddie Tam Ball Field Lighting Replacement to
cash. Under Water Supply, and this is Bond Fund, Upcountry Reliable Capacity, we've
increased by 1.5 million, or we've added 1.5 million, I should say. Bond Fund,
Wailuku-Kahului, with the Waikapu Baseyards, we have deleted that and for Central Maui
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Regional Park, we have also deleted that. The Central Maui Regional Park, we have an item
in Committee for a budget amendment to provide design money, and the reason that I'm
comfortable deleting this is that we have, I believe they have $190,000 for design money for
the baseyards and the one, if I'm remembering it correctly, we have 190, they already have
190 for Design and Master Planning of the baseyards and we have one in the Committee for
the parks. So the Chair's preference is to pass that budget amendment so they can do those
two designs together because we're combining, or we're moving the allocation of the land
around to suit, you know, the needs of both the baseyard and the parks layout. So with that,
the Chair's preference is to have them come back to us with a master plan of how they're
going to utilize that area between baseyard use and park use before we get into spending a
½ million dollars on design for just one, just for the park. The Wailuku Gym Improvements
we've moved from the General Fund.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Just a question on, you know, high finance here. I noticed you
moved a lot of stuff out of Bond Fund, you know, amounts between, under a million dollars,
but then you moved this one in. Just out of curiosity, what...
CHAIR WHITE: There's no real science to it. The Wailuku Gym Improvements are a bonded
project so we're just keeping the money in the same place. The other moves are to reduce
our Bond indebtedness.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well that's what I figured, you wanted to reduce the Bond
indebtedness but you moved something out of cash into Bond. I was just confused.
CHAIR WHITE: It's a little bit of both, but we're moving more to cash than to Bond. I shouldn't
say we're moving more to cash than to Bond because we also have an increase in the Bond
for the Water and the Mainline Extension and Infrastructure Improvement for the, for water
users. Okay. The, we are deleting the Waiale Road Extension of $900,000 and, again, that is
tied to, waiting for a decision how the lands around that are going to be utilized between
parks and baseyard. Waiko Road Improvements, 400,000 is being moved to the Highway
Fund. Going down to Kihei-Makena Community Plan Area, we've increased the Planning
and Design in the amount of $350,000 to accommodate a relook at the design to see if it
makes sense for us to go to a more diverse use for that building rather than setting up just as a
gym. We think it would be helpful to have a review done to make, to see if expanding it to a
little bit larger facility that could accommodate different kinds of events and make it a
multi-purpose center and also be able to handle potentially the Invitational in a, in a larger
area.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Chair?
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CHAIR WHITE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Supposing it comes up with a new design and what have you,
would that mean authorized, more money for construction in your mind for this?
CHAIR WHITE: Not at this point because I think if we take another look at, you know, they can
come back with a budget amendment. Moving into Government Facilities. Lahaina
Baseyard Improvements, we are deleting the 600,000 as we did with the Molokai facility and
the Makawao facility. The Chair's feeling is that for now we need to be focusing our
investments on things that are going to generate revenue and generate improved facilities for,
you know, through Parks and so forth rather than focusing on facilities that are only focused
on our own employees. Road Improvements, Front Street Breakwall and Front Street Deck
and Rail Repair both moved to the Highway Fund. The Molokai Community Plan Area, the
Police Station request was for a million dollars. The Chair's concern there is that the
appraised value of the parcel that the Police are interested in is significantly lower than a
million dollars and the Chair doesn't want to get into another Launiopoko situation where we
are approving the purchase of a, or providing a flexibility to move ahead with the purchase of
a piece of property at greater than appraised value, and we took a look at whether there's
enough area around the Fire Station, but that doesn't look like it would work very well. So
again, the Chair's supportive of doing something on Molokai, but at this point I'm not in
favor of supporting the purchase at this amount. Molokai Baseyard, we've deleted. That was
discussed earlier. There's a remaining $3.6 million of land, of funds that will be
disencumbered when they cancel the contract. The Chair's feeling is that now we have the
land and that should be an adequate amount for them to provide for the construction, for the,
I think they've already gotten into some of the paving, or not the paving, but the grading.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: They've done a little.
CHAIR WHITE: Pardon?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Just a little, they had, and then the contract was cancelled.
CHAIR WHITE: Anyway, the Chair is comfortable with this because they've got $3.6 million with
which to provide for, you know, the Maintenance Garage and some office space in a
Butler-type building or something of that sort. So we'll take another look at it. In looking at,
we can make those plans available if anyone would like to take a look at them. The Chair's
concern is that the, the layout, not the layout, the size of the buildings is quite substantial for
the 16 people that work for Public Works on Molokai. The building that they're requesting
to construct just for the administrative area is about 40 feet by 80 feet. So it's, you know,
when you, looking at it there's space for five offices and a large meeting room, a conference
room and then a lunch room and, you know, this is something that I think is way in excess of
what's necessary for that operation. To put it in perspective, when I went to work as a 23 or
24-year old at Mauna Kea Beach Hotel, back then it was considered the third best hotel in the
world, and I was a dining room manager and we had a staff in food and beverage of a
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director, an assistant food and beverage director, a bar manager and three dining room
managers and we all shared an office that is about the size of our offices. So, you know,
there couldn't be more than three of us in there at any given time, and the concept that was
shared with me was your job is out on the floor, you're food and beverage service people,
you're managers that need to be out watching over the operation. I feel that same concept
really applies to this kind of a position. I don't believe Public Works should be needing five
offices when there's only 16 people working on Molokai. So again it's a little bit of an
overkill on the design and I don't think that it's necessary for the additional 7½ million to be
spent at this time. Again, if it's something that we all, that you all decide is important, then I
would ask that we phase it so that we're not paying for it all at this time. Parks and
Recreation, the Duke Maliu Balifield is moving to General Fund. Water Supply, Molokai
Reliable Capacity moved to Bond Fund of $200,000. Water Supply, Countywide Mainline &
Infrastructure Improvements of $8 million, that is the one that we discussed to some degree
this morning with Mr. Taylor. The purpose of this fund is to provide access to funds for
people who have been stymied from moving ahead with their construction of homes because
of the requirements for infrastructure on their street or in their neighborhood. As
Mr. Victorino pointed out very appropriately this morning, this and the other amounts and the
other area are not going to solve all the problem but it's a step in the right direction. This
amount is to help facilitate, along with hopefully some changes in the Fire Code, to allow
people to proceed with the construction of their homes by either with the, if the Fire Code
doesn't, can be changed so it doesn't require them to put in these huge infrastructure
improvements just to get the ability to build their house, then we may be able to spread this
8 million here and 1.5 million elsewhere in a way that we help the Mayor fulfill his promise
to move ahead with the water meter waiting list and we help the people, like the gal that
testified on Molokai that said she can't build her house unless she puts in some additional
line and fire hydrant in front of her property. So this is a Countywide Fund but of course the
people with the majority of the challenge are the folks Upcountry. The next project is the
Bus Stops and Shelters. We've moved the 1,400, oh I'm sorry, the 1.4 million to the General
Fund and then we reduced the amount by half. And in the Countywide Equipment, we've
moved, we've, we'll provide you a list of the equipment that we have moved into other, cash,
but I believe the reduction in the equipment list amounted to about 4 million something.
Anyway, we'll provide that to you. We approved most of the Environmental Management
requests but we felt that should move to, move to cash because it's more appropriate there.
In the Kula Ag Park Expansion, we've moved that allotment to General Fund. Park
Assessment, Waikapu Community Center Expansion, we've moved the monies from the
General Fund to, I'm sorry, yeah, moved from General Fund to Park Assessment and you'll
note that we are agreeing with the Mayor's request for the West Maui Park System since they
have the appropriate level of parks assessment fees so we will see what the Parks Department
can do with that $800,000. In the Waiko Road Subdivision Sewer System, we've deleted
that based on our concern that the community hasn't really been well informed as to exactly
what's going on and the fact that they'll be likely facing the expense of 3 to $15,000 per
homeowner. So, again, and the other rationale was that if we're going to expand the sewer
system, it's the Chair's feeling is that we should move, if we're going to spend monies to
design and expand the sewer system, we should be doing so in areas that are closer to the
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water and, because that's where we've got, I believe, more challenges with the septic tanks
and the cesspools. Napili, that's just a change in how it's listed. We've increased the
Countywide Environmental Protection Agency Consent Decree Compliance Projects, and I
don't recall why we did that. And Page 53 are just title changes. On Page 54 at the top,
Central Maui Fire Protection - Lower Baldwin Waterline Upsizing, we've deleted that
project in favor of conserving cash to be spent on the solving the Upcountry water meter
waiting list prior to expanding systems just for fire protection in that area. West Maui is just
a change in, or clarification of title. I believe the next one is just further identifying what is
going to be used, what the funds of $8.6 million will be used for. And the Upcountry
Reliability [sic] Capacity, 1.5 million has been moved to the Bond Fund and that's part of
what would be, will be funding the Mainline and Infrastructure. And the Molokai Reliable
Capacity has also been moved to the Bond Fund.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Those two projects were moved to the Bond Fund because they were the land
purchases.
CHAIR WHITE: Oh, thank you for reminding me of that. Yeah, and, yeah, the Upcountry Reliable
Capacity amount is for the purchase of land for the reservoir at the, to accommodate the
Kamole flow. So we've moved it to the Bond Fund and we're doing so because we'd like
the Administration come back to us for approval of that before moving ahead with the
purchase, so just so that we have a level of review on both of those projects. And then under
the Water (Unrestricted), we have added the County Mainline and Infrastructure
Improvements as we noted earlier. So a portion of that, roughly $10 million, 10.6, is in the
Non-Water Bond Fund and a portion is in, this $2.6 million, is available in the Unrestricted
Water Fund for those same type of improvements. And that brings us to the end of CIP and
we're a little ahead of schedule. I don't think there's any need, unless somebody wants to go
through the Grant Revenues. Pardon? Yeah. No. We normally don't go through that, and I
don't believe there's any changes to it, so.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes.
MS. YOSHIMURA: On Page 70, there's the Special Revenue Funds, or the Special Purpose, Part
II, Revolving/Special Funds.
CHAIR WHITE: What page?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Seven, seven zero.
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CHAIR WHITE: Oh, seven zero, that's right. Okay, if you go to the next page, 71, we have
changes there, and we have added that funds can be made available for vehicle and fuel for
Valley Isle Animal Rescue. And then the other one is the transfer that we talked about
earlier, moving the two Plan Review people in the Fire Prevention Program back into the
Special Fund.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Are there any dollars involved in that? There should be, yeah?
CHAIR WHITE: In the transfer?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: The transfer of the Fire Fighters.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, there should be.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: Michele? Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: And, hold on just a second. And then you'd note the adjustment to the Natural
Resources, Cultural Resource Preservation Fund, that reduction is due to the lower level of
property tax. Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. Back on Page 70 for the Highway Beautification
Fund, I wanted, I had a question for Corporation Counsel in regards to the usage of that
particular Fund for recycle programs, like the drop box or redemption centers. Would that
be, could we utilize these funds for such purposes? Or is that not for you, Mr. Ueoka? No, I
said Corporation Counsel.
CHAIR WHITE: I'm sorry, what was the question?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: The Highway Fund, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I was looking to see if we could utilize it for the recycle drop
box or, you know, the redemption centers, in particular West Maui, out of this Fund because
when people can put their trash in these tidy recycle bins then they won't end up spilling out
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onto our highways and things. So just wondering if it would be a proper use of these Funds
for such purposes? Just asking.
CHAIR WHITE: Corp Counsel?
MR. UEOKA: Thank you, Chair. The Code does restrict use of the Highway Beautification
Revolving Fund and there might be a State HRS restriction. So I guess it would truly depend
on how your project or program was written up. We'd have to review that, the proposed
write-up, and then compare it with what's allowed, but I guess it is possible, but it would all
depend on the write-up and what the program's going for exactly.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Well, you know, it's the drop boxes that we have currently, that
type of program.
MR. UEOKA: We'd have to review how it's proposed and -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
MR. UEOKA: --the project, the exact descriptions of it, to give you a definite, definitive answer.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. I'll look into it with Solid Waste or whoever, Recycle.
CHAIR WHITE: Good idea.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. I hope so.
CHAIR WHITE: Worth checking out.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, Members, the next item is on Page 72, and it is a proviso on the Open
Space as provided, that debt service shall be paid with Open Space, Natural Resource,
Cultural Resources and Scenic Views Preservation Fund for the retirement of the debt on the
purchase of Launiopoko. And the next one is an increase in the Emergency Fund
appropriation in the amount of 1 million 945. And then the next one down is the Affordable
Housing Fund, that $438,000 change is a reflection of the lower property taxes generating a
slightly lower amount for the Affordable Housing Fund. And the next is a change in the
wording on the proviso for Lanai Affordable Housing by the 1 million shall be for planning,
design and engineering of the Lanai Affordable Housing Project, Phase I with the amount
remaining the same, and we've also deleted the funding for the Kulamalu Affordable
Housing Project in the amount of 9,103,000. The reason for that is that, the Chair's concern
is that putting all of $9 million into one project may not be the best use of our Affordable
Housing Fund monies and that we would, we may want to evaluate the fact that we may be
able to spread our money further if we were to get partners involved in doing the projects.
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And this particular project has $31/2 million of State funding and the Chair's comfortable
adding any money to the pot but the fact that we have not received the Affordable Housing
Plan for this year, which is a requirement, we've gotten a letter but we've not received the
Affordable Housing Plan. So the Chair's interested in looking at other options and having
them come back, come to us with a plan. Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, I've, took it upon myself to talk to people in the Affordable
Housing Development community and I used this project as seed for thought -CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --regarding potential private and County partnerships. And there was
great interest, particularly if the County would be able to secure Federal tax credits, that there
was a sense that maybe at least four local affordable housing developers would be interested
in working with the County to do the project and that we wouldn't have to ante up the type of
request the Department is asking this Committee to consider. And so I would say I think
you're on the right track because there is interest out there.
CHAIR WHITE: Were these individuals you spoke to aware that this is a rental project, not one for
sale?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And that's why they still say the part of the formula to make it work
from the private side is the tax credit component.
CHAIR WHITE: Right.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And Mr. Ueoka is nodding 'cause he understands what I'm talking about
regarding those Federal credits. So there is interest, Chairman, and there are Affordable
Developers that willing to partner with the County. So it's something we should continue to
have discussion and that way possibly we can do even more projects.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah. Any comments or concerns, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes, Ms. Crivello.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: You know, I guess for me it's knowing that the Director from
our Department, from Housing and Human Concerns, the tax credit processes and what's
available are things that she talks about with Affordable Housing quite frequently. And, you
know, I think it's good to have this discussion with Ms. Ridao -VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I agree.
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --and her people just so that we can have understanding to what
process and how is it that they conclude that, this amount, why she justifies it, I think, most -CHAIR WHITE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --most of all, or the Department.
CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: I agree. Okay, Members, we are -VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Ten minutes till break.
CHAIR WHITE: --at a breaking point. So we will recess and be back here at 7 o'clock and we'll
start with Transportation followed by Planning followed by Water.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you all very much, and we are in recess. . . . (gavel).
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

5:18 p.m.
7:07 p.m.

CHAIR WHITE: ... (gavel)... The Budget and Finance Committee will reconvene. Thank you,
Ms. Winer, for being here to answer questions. And what page is Transportation?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Eighteen-one and 37.
CHAIR WHITE: Pardon?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Eighteen-one in Details and 37 of 72.
CHAIR WHITE: Thirty-seven, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I'm ready.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, Members, the Department of Transportation, the first change is the deletion
of the Grant Subsidy for the MEO school buses where we deleted the, about 200 or
80 percent of the funds with which to replace and/or to provide some funding for
refurbishing and any questions, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Chair?
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CHAIR WHITE: Yes, Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: I would ask the same questions, but since Ms. Winer was here in the
morning and we had the opportunity to talk to her, I think it's pretty clear how she feels
about it and I guess you know how I feel. I'd like to see that money put back, especially the
money for the two buses. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Any other questions, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Not question, I agree with Chair Baisa but that's all.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Ms. Winer, would you like to add anything more than you -MS. WINER: No, Ijust -CHAIR WHITE: --provided this morning?
MS. WINER: --no, I sent a, you know, more cohesive explanation of what I testified 'cause I was
skipping around this morning trying to keep my comments to within three minutes. But, no,
we support that and I think that, you know, looking at the shape of the buses, you know, it
really is prudent that we transport the children in those programs in safe vehicles.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, thank you. Is there anyone on the island that can provide us with any kind
of refurbishment quote? Have you evaluated that at all?
MS. WINER: I can only tell you from past experience in, when our bus was actually hit, No. 2706,
it was about $127,000 just to fix the damage to the rear end. So I don't think that bodes very
well and that was not, you know, it wasn't fixing, bodywork, or anything of that sort. I guess
my concern is mainly with the new safety mechanisms and some of the technology
improvements that have made, been made in the newer buses and to try to do that, I just don't
think it's doable, not for what you'd be better off paying for a new bus and at least getting it
under warranty.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. The Chair's concern is that the, that if this is the choice when something is
still mechanically sound and we've allowed it to rust out, you know, we need to do a lot
better in protecting our equipment and our facilities and so on. To have to completely
replace because we don't have the ability to refurbish is troubling, but, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes, Mr. Victorino.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: If I can ask, you know, questions specifically, you know. You
used the work mechanically sound and I know MEO said mechanically sound, okay. And
what is mechanically sound and how long is mechanically sound applicable in this kind of
situation? A year? Two? I don't know. You get something brand new, it's got warranty, it
should last 10 or 15 years, right? I mean, it's not just the rust part that bothers me, it's the
age. Mechanically sound is fine. I got no problem with it. I've got a 1999 Ford Taurus
that's mechanically sound but lot of things don't work anymore. Air conditioning doesn't
work, this doesn't work, that doesn't work, lights are starting to flicker. I mean, I'm having
all kinds of challenges but it gets me for the little things for me. I wouldn't take my
grandchildren in it, but I will take me to where I need to go. That's my question, Mr. Chair.
You know, you keep saying mechanically sound and I heard -CHAIR WHITE: No, I'm not, it's not my word.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no, I know, but
CHAIR WHITE: I'm just repeating the words that were shared with us this morning.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I know you repeating it so that's why I repeating what you're
repeating. But, you know, so, this is one of those cases where you talking the safety and
well-being of our children that we have entrusted with MEO to take to different areas. And
also
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. What I remember from this morning, was also stated that part of the
purpose for these buses was to add to the fleet so they can transport kids in one trip instead of
two or three. So -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's part of it.
CHAIR WHITE: --and that these buses are not going to be taken out of service.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Not for now.
CHAIR WHITE: But I'm...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So.
CHAIR WHITE: I don't know when they're going to be taken out of service. To me, it sounds like
they're partly additional -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: --just replacing.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: For now it may be additional until they can have more funding
to get a few more buses -CHAIR WHITE: It could be.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --till then, you know.
CHAIR WHITE: It could be. Ms. Winer, do you know the answer to that?
MS. WINER: You know, I can only speak to Public Transportation but basically we have a spare
ratio and if we exceed that, you know, it does not bode well for us. But when you are a
nonprofit, because their issue is very different, they're not getting standard funding from
FTA. That, they're going to probably, and I mean the option is, they may even want to
cannibalize some of the, if they have a good engine, if they have a good transmission, that's
what we have done with our Fixed Route buses. You know, we've cannibalized where we
can when we got the Gilligs from Oahu. Believe me, Roberts really used some creative
energy to make at least one reliable workable bus from three. So that's a possibility too, and
I know that MEO, they're trying to be as frugal as they can. So for a number of years, they
have not asked us for buses. So, I mean, when you're transporting kids, I just don't want to
see an incident reported like some of the incidents that I've seen on the mainland, you know,
where there've been tragic consequences. So I'd rather be safe than sorry.
CHAIR WHITE: I'm sure that MEO would not put a bus in a position, knowingly or any other way,
that would put them at risk. So, okay, I think we have enough of a discussion on it. Okay,
the next item is Reduce
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Wait, Chair, Chair, sorry.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Real quick.
CHAIR WHITE: I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: The 200...
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. This is for two buses? Are they saying -CHAIR WHITE: The original
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --they want 100,000 per, so that would be for two?
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CHAIR WHITE: No, the original request was for 250,000 for two buses so it's 125,000 per bus.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, and, we'll be, I know Ms. McNeff said if, I mean, if we
wanted to go above and beyond and buy something that's going to be longer lasting that
would be the fiberglass bodies at 152,000 each -CHAIR WHITE: Or 162, I think.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --which would be the ultimate I guess bus.
CHAIR WHITE: Fifty-two?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: One five two, I believe, she mentioned this morning, which
would obviously, the investment would be longer lasting due to the fiberglass, and the rusty
here is, metal and salt air that doesn't quite work well together. But, so, anyways, I was just
trying to get in my head -CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --the cost of the different vehicles and stuff. So thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: I thought the horse died. But anyway, I guess it didn't. One of the
reasons why we have this corrosion problem is everybody knows where the MEO bus yard
is. It's right across from the bay there. The ocean is right there. In fact, it had places in a
tsunami zone and every time there's some kind of alert, we all have to pack 'em up and drive
'em away. I think when it moves further up by HC&S, it'll be better because we won't be so
close to the salt air. I don't think it's going to solve the problem but be better, much, much
better. And so as far as maintenance, I can tell you, having run that operation, that we have a
tremendous garage and they do the very best they can to try and control costs, and I'm sure
that the mechanics at MEO, are making nothing compared to what people make on the
outside, they do a really good job. But I think there's a time and what I'm worried about is
we can talk about refurbishing but if you put it in some kind of refurbishment--and I don't
even know if that's a possibility--but if you do, it's like when you have a major breakdown
and the bus is out of service for a long time, Ms. Winer mentioned that we have a problem
with backup. I don't think that we have the, MEO has the capability, they don't have any
other buses like this that I know of. Do they? So there you go. They would be stuck and I
don't know what would happen to the kids. And it really is practical to have these big buses
because remember, personnel costs are our biggest cost. One driver on a big bus can handle
the load of two drivers, so you save big money.
CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh.
- 101 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 29, 2014

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, good point. Okay, moving to the reduction of Transportation Services of
45,000. Ms. Winer.
MS. WINER: Yes, Mr. Budget Chair. I was listening to your comments earlier and I wasn't sure if
you're referring to this section or the reduce Printing and Binding in the Public Transit but I
believe you mentioned that for two years we had not spent down that money. And we
checked in our shared drive, and I checked with Diane, who keeps our records, and she said
she does not know how that can be because we've spent it down both years.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, the line that I'm looking at is on Page 18-6 of the Details. It's the
Transportation Services under 6160 on that page. And there's a $50,000 amount adopted in
2014. No prior year expenditures in 2012 or '13 and.. .00ps, Michele's gone. Sandy, can
you look up what has been spent out of that account for this year?
MR. BAZ: Sure I can. But, Mr. Chair, one of the things that, to understand about that Index Code,
it's seems to be that it's all budgeted in Transportation Services sub-object code but if you
look at it, they do spend it in a variety of sub-object codes in that Index Code. So it looks
like they're, they're spending the money, it's just not spending it exactly as they're budgeting
it. But I'll definitely look it up, for sure.
CHAIR WHITE: Well then you need to also let us know where it's coming out of because if, you
know, if we're to believe that these expenditures are being budgeted one way and spent
another and untrackable, that's not terribly helpful.
MR. BAZ: No, Mr. Chair, they're right there on the page and you can see that they were tracked
very well. If you look at 917740 for on Page 18-6 you'll see 6221, Miscellaneous Other
Costs, 6223, Per Diem, 6222 Per Diem, 6201, Airfare, Transportation, Printing and Binding,
6130 and 6132 on Page 18-5. So it's all coming out of that index code, it's just not being
charged directly to that one sub-object code that they have for Transportation Services.
CHAIR WHITE: Well, that brings up, how many other departments do we have the same thing?
MR. BAZ: All of them.
CHAIR WHITE: Is that meant to confuse us or is it just confused to begin with?
MR. BAZ: As the, the budget is a program-based budget.
CHAIR WHITE: I understand it's a program-base, but you should be listing if you're gonna
MR. BAZ: The actual expenditures differ from the budgeted expenditures because the Department
Directors have the ability to spend where they see fit in their own programs by, so if this
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happened to be budgeted in Transportation Services but they need Printing and Binding and
Travel and some Other Miscellaneous Costs, whatever, finance wanted them to code it to,
that's what it gets coded to for the actual expenditures even though it's budgeted for that
area.
I understand your frustration in not being able to identify the exact
budget-to-expenditure for specific items, but that's not the way the County's budget is set up.
CHAIR WHITE: Well
MR. BAZ: Another example of that was in the Mayor's Office, when you pointed it out the $18,000
wasn't spent for Telephone Services but if you looked, the line right above that for Cellular
Telephone Services, it was a little over $18,000 in actual expenditures for Fiscal Year '13
and there was no budgeted amount for that sub-object code.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, good point. Okay, so what is the total of all the items that you mentioned,
what is the spent-to-date on all those items?
MR. BAZ: Okay, I'll look that up, hold on.
MS. WINER: And, Mr. Chair, one of the, you know, one of the things that we really try to do and of
course Diane's not here this evening, but many times we will have a camera that needs
replacement or we'll have a change that's unanticipated in our schedule, like when the rates
and fees changed, we didn't project that that would necessarily happen, so you have to
produce new schedules. Sometimes, you know, you have vandalism on your signs. We need
to have the ability to go and replace a sign. If a DVR goes down, you know, we use those
basically to help not just.
CHAIR WHITE: I'm not questioning the fact that you need monies to spend on certain unexpected
eventualities. I'm just trying to figure out where the heck the money that is listed here as
$50,000 under Transportation Services, I still don't have any clue where that money is being
spent and to what amount.
MR. BAZ: So, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: And if this is the case in every Department then this whole thing is screwed up.
And I don't know how the hell we're gonna make reasonable decisions 'cause then you guys
can come in and say whatever you want.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Go ahead.
MR. BAZ: So for year-to-date expenditures under 917740, they have expended $10,140 in
Miscellaneous Other Costs and $33,456 in Bus Transportation Equipment. So the total
expenditures to date are $43,596.
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CHAIR WHITE: Okay. What, I'm sorry, I got the Miscellaneous Costs. What were the other ones?
MR. BAZ: Bus Transportation Equipment.
CHAIR WHITE: That's not under, I don't see that under 740.
MR. BAZ: It's sub-object code 7045. It wouldn't show up in the details at that point because
CHAIR WHITE: So we don't even have that -MR. BAZ: It's Equipment.

CHAIR WHITE: --anywhere. Right?
MR. BAZ: You get that in your Finance Director's Quarterly Report and your Staff has the ability
to look up the detailed expenditures on the Departments, but it's not in the Details.
CHAIR WHITE: Well then I would request that next year when you present us the budget, you
provide us a little bit better, a road map, for where the heck these expenses are rolling up.
MR. BAZ: They're all in there, in the Budget Details. It's just the actual expenditures are what

they're coded to. For the actual expenditures, the budgeted items are where they're budgeted
and you're correct and they don't align and very few instances will you see it exactly line up
and that has a lot to do with our IFAS System, they're multiple sub-object codes for. . .gas,
for instance, has I think four or five different sub-object codes. Supplies, you could choose
probably 10 different sub-object codes for supplies. You're gonna have that. That's why
when we produce the budget, we try to do it by the object level, which is what's in the
program budget so that you can get at least a decent idea of how much we're spending totally
in supplies, how much we're spending totally in utilities and different things like that versus
the sub-object level, which is not an accurate reflection to, you can
CHAIR WHITE: Because you can move it to wherever you want to spend it, which I understand.
But when you tell me that the 745 line item doesn't even show up in the Details, that's when
I get a little perplexed.
MR. BAZ: 7045 is a equipment, and that, by default, is not shown in the Operating budget.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
MR. BAZ: It's a C account item.
CHAIR WHITE: Well in the future, would you please reflect prior year expenditures and
equipment?
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MR. BAZ: We can work on that.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: You know, I'm hearing your concern, your frustration, and I can
understand it, Chairman. So I would say, as the Body that makes the policy, that we should
be setting then the format we would like receive the documents so when we make the policy
and we put the resources to, that we believe is appropriate for the policy, then it'll make it
easier for the Administration to implement. But I think, you know, at times we've allowed
the departments to try and through the budget, dictate policy, that's our job.
CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And so I think we need to really get this structure process back
on track the right way, where we set the policy, we put the money, and we make them
implement and hopefully their administrative and directive managerial skills is good enough
to make the budget work. That is how it's supposed to be, Chairman, not the other way
, if you're concern is shared by the whole
around. And so I would say we should
Committee then let's make the appropriate adjustments to control ABC accounts and we'll
get the answers we need that you are requesting for next year. I think that's how we should
approach it. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh. Okay, moving along. Grant to MEO, proposed increase provided
174,770 instead of 291,284. Members, questions?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So what you did here and as you had mentioned earlier, you
deleted the original figure -CHAIR WHITE: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --and then put the 3 percent in? And that's based on the
original allocation or was it off the
CHAIR WHITE: No, the 291
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, no, I understand, you took that out.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So this 174 is coming off the 116 or the $6 million even?
CHAIR WHITE: No, the 174 is 3 percent of the 6,116,954.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, that was what I was
CHAIR WHITE: Oh, wait a minute, wait, wait, wait, wait.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: No.
CHAIR WHITE: No. Is that not right?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: No.
CHAIR WHITE: It's off of, it's off of the 6116 minus the 291 and then brought back up. So the
174 is based on the same original number . . .(inaudible)
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Five million, eight hundred twenty-five thousand from 2014?
Is that what you're basing it on? Last year's appropriation, the 3 percent off of that?
CHAIR WHITE: I believe that's correct. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, just so, so there's clarification because you know.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, so both of those numbers are based on the same number, the same base
number from last year.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: From last year? So in other words, when I want to figure
3 percent, I look at last year, whatever the appropriation for 2014?
CHAIR WHITE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you, Chair, for that clarification.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you for that clarification. Other questions or comments, Members? Seeing
none, the MPO related funds. Ms. Winer?
MS. WINER: Yes, Mr. Chair. As I wrote in my little, I guess, transmittal to the Committee, I
realize that, you know, we're not fully able to access funds right now because the
documentation that we would need to have signed between the Mayor, the Governor and the
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State Department of Transportation has not been executed. But I think that at least if the
Council, because we've invested substantial time in this requirement, which it is a
requirement under law right now, it's like any other report is required, this is something
that's required as well as the NTD reporting that I would respectfully ask that at least
$100,000, possibly 200,000 if, you know, if the Council sees fit, could be placed in that line
item because once we begin implementing, it will be very difficult to come back to the
Council, particularly if it's a short period of time after the budget passes. So, for us, it is
important to be able to demonstrate to the Federal agencies that we are seeking compliance.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Ms. Winer, if, you know, when would you have to submit this
report? What is the earliest? I guess that's what the question has been 'cause you've kinda
given us like, you know, what is your deadline to submit this report to get whatever MPO
funding that is available?
MS. WINER: Well it's not so much a report as it is, they want, at the Federal level, to have a
demonstration that we are working towards compliance. Actually the Urban Zone Area from
the 2010 census, I think almost two years ago -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
MS. WINER: --we were toying with the idea of not doing it. And so because we received very little
guidance from the Federal Government about what was required, what the implications were,
what the steps were, it took us a while and then when we ultimately told them we were not
going to be doing that, that's when they came down and said oh, well, alright, fine, if you're
not going to do it then all of the funds within the Urban Zone Area, including Public Works
monies for highway projects, for any roadway projects, as well as transit money that comes
through the central core, you will no longer have access to that. So when that was revealed
to the Administration, then we reversed our position and began working towards the MPO.
So all that this is doing right now is currently Marc, our executive director for the MPO.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh, uh-huh.
MS. WINER: Rowena Dagdag-Andaya is the second in command. That is acceptable as an
intra-measure for us to be able to at least begin going after money. Once all of these
agreements, basically, you know, and they're documents that you actually have to sign off,
and there will be at least one Council member that has to serve on this policy committee.
I've drafted all of it with the assistance of our Federal liaison, and, basically, it's ready to go.
I have it being examined right now. So once we're ready to go with that, it won't be long
before we will start being able to have the ability to access interim planning money to
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actually implement the Metropolitan Planning Organization, which would then be a staff,
separate from our staff, that would be largely paid for by the Feds with a match from us.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Limited term, right?
MS. WINER: No, it's forever. They continue to pay for
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no, no, for us it's limited term. We not hiring them
full-time, right? I guess that's the question I'd have for them is 'cause, again, what we've
had before is we've had programs, right, and then the rug's yanked from under us and then
we're stuck with those people.
MS. WINER: No, that's not the situation because these people serve outside at the pleasure of the
policy committee. They are compensated through the Federal Government. Actually, the
State draws all the checks for the Oahu MPO -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MS. WINER: --so they're separate.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MS. WINER: There's no contractual obligation for us to continue. If at some point in time -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MS. WINER: --we disband the MPO, they go. So all that we're contributing, at least on this
beginning portion, would be a financial contribution. At some point in time though, I would
say, I would prefer not to use actual dollars but use other means to satisfy the requirements
under the Federal guidelines. So if we do, like time invested, we have to track it, you know,
so there are other means. But initially for us going in, it was recommended from the people
at the Oahu MPO, that we approach it and just at least have some matching funds available.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Okay, Mr. Chair, thank you. I think I get the picture
and it has ramifications, just, not just Transportation but other parts of our Public Works and
other departments. So, you know, I would be willing to, you know, and I know what we put
in, we gotta go find someplace else to take out and all that. I understand that, but I think
100,000, you know, if we can find 200, you know, to get them started, but I took it out on my
side too, when I went through it because I didn't feel it was that important. But not knowing
those ramifications, you know, I think maybe now, some kind of means for Ms. Winer to do
this or at least have it ready to be done, so that we're not caught with our pants down and like
we have in the past, then we have some kind of negative reaction and lose funding for
something else. We just don't want to do that. We don't want to give the Feds any chance to
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take money away from us, like they already doing anyhow, without even asking us. So thank
you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh. Members, other questions regarding the MPO funding? Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, thank you. I can speak confidently that at the National, we
are working hard to in the reauthorization language to change the population minimums for
MPO consideration, as well as an appeal process and the ability of the local entity to be able
to make a decision not to, you know, but my concern hearing the Director this evening is that
they knew for years that this was a issue, and yet the Body that makes the policy decision, us,
has not received or been asked for what we think because as I understand it, the
intergovernmental agreements need Council approval. Until we buy in, doesn't matter what
the intergovernmental agreements say, it cannot be executed by the County. So, you know,
for me, it's interesting that something that's been two years, or more or less, has now come
before us with this, we're in a corner again. You folks all know how I feel about being put in
corners, especially when we had time to make an appropriate adjustment, that if we wanted
an area urbanized, it made sense to how our community is situated, our community plans are
situated, because I can tell you now, it still rubs me wrong that the Paia component is
considered Central Maui.
CHAIR WHITE: Right.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Part of the Urban core, okay. Only idiots from the District of Columbia
can make that kind of designation.
CHAIR WHITE: Well, they're enough of them there.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. So, you know, I don't have a problem to try and show
compliance but I can tell you, I don't support this at all, Chairman, at all. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: What is the likelihood that the definitions will be changed in such a way that we
don't need to comply?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, both House and Senate Committee staffs have asked us for
language and we have been submitting our versions and our languages for their
consideration. Senator Boxer is willing to do markups sooner than later, so I would say it's a
unique opportunity for NACo. We are now being asked not to support things, but to give
them the actual language, and so I would say we have a very good chance 'cause we're
presenting language that we believe is fair to the locals and to counties like ourselves. So at
this point, I think we have a good chance since we're being asked to submit the language -CHAIR WHITE: Right.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --or asking them to consider our language.
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CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Winer, to Mr. Victorino' s question, is there or what is the deadline by which
you need to submit something?
MS. WINER: Actually, as long as they know and we give them periodic reports that we've been
working on this, they're, you know, they're alright with that because, and I don't mean to,
you know, say anything disparaging about Corporation Counsel but because this language is
very much tied to the Federal Regulation, the CFR, we had a lot of difficulty understanding it
ourselves and understanding what was required, when it was required, and we have been told
by Mr. Matley, who's Region IX, that as long as we are progressing on it, the money that has
been allocated under the Urban Zone Area, it's good for four years. So that was, you know,
the premise that we were working on. Also
CHAIR WHITE: When did that four years started?
MS. WINER: The four years actually,I think, by the time they got all the documentation to us, that
was more than likely, what, in Federal Fiscal Year '12, I believe it was Federal Fiscal
Year '12. And then I believed what Councilmember Hokama had said, that it had to have
Council approval, and I was shocked when I was informed that because this is a Federal
Regulation, just at the State level, the way, it does not need State Legislation to enable it, it
does not need County Council approval, which was a shock to me. That's why, you know, I
guess, you know, I would express the same kind of confusion when I did my due diligence
on this, and it basically is something that we were advised by Federal Highways
Administration and it was corroborated by FTA that, no, this is like any other regulation, it is
a requirement. If you want to get a specific type of money, you know, get access to it in the
Urban Zone Area, this is what you need to do. So I'm new to this realm as well, and having
been a Council member I can totally understand why you're questioning, because I did not
get this message until very late, you know, from the individuals that we were working with
and when I finally understood what they were asking for, I said oh, you know, this is news to
us. And I think Public Works was equally as, you know, much in the dark and I think
Planning who's coming up next, all of us expressed dismay because this is just not the way
we do things.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, the, you mentioned four years. The four years would run out in 2016.
Does that mean that if we provide money in the 2016 budget, instead of this year's budget,
that we're okay?
MS. WINER: I do not know the answer to that question. All I know is that if we do not implement
or begin the implementation for the MEO, if we don't show evidence to the Federal
Government, that we are at least trying to implement, then any monies that already exist in
the Federal budget, like 5307, which we could use for bus purchase, we will not be able to
access that, but we would be doing that in a departmental situation as a direct recipient, it
means we would not be going through the State. That's why they need these agreements in
place. So -110-
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CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
MS. WINER: --I don't know what to tell you other than what we've been told, and it is my
understanding that there have been movements to increase that threshold. I know that
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, I think we got that. Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And, you know, we've been talking about
this and different pieces, parts, for several months now. Is there, can we get through your
Committee an official item for the Policy Committee and let's get this hashed out in a
meeting at some time and figure out which way we want to go with this and actually, hey,
let's set policy, instead of the Feds telling us what our policy will be.
CHAIR WHITE: All those in favor of referral to the Planning Committee? Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Sounds like a plan to me. One of things that Ms. Winer said most
recently that really grabbed me was, then we would be able to go after our own money and
not have it go through the State. You know, when I was in the position of dealing with these
Federal Transportation Grants, it's a nightmare. We would get grants and repayments years
later. All of a sudden there'd be this check and we couldn't even remember what it was for
because it was so old, and I think it would be much, much better if we could do it directly. I
know exactly what you're talking about, Ms. Winer. It's a mess, dealing through State DOT.
Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh. Members, any further discussion? Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I know you want to move on. I know we have more to do but,
Chairman, under the current Map-21, the problem with the MPOs is that, with the
compression and locals losing 30 percent of the dollar that we previously had under the
previous authorization, the State now further has greater control over the Counties on how to
disburse those Federal dollars. And that's why, morally, the State wants us to agree to this
MPO thing because they get to control more of our projects and not necessarily mean it's
going to be given to us. You know, I think we got our, the wool pulled over our eyes on this
Map-21 initial authorization, but we lost a lot and the States have learned that they got more
power over us. And this is another tool because the STIPS is still controlled by the State,
Chairman.
CHAIR WHITE: Right.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: The MPO is going to be controlled by the State. Where is our thing?
You know, I know Ms. Winer say, but trust me I know how the Feds work, and I know how
this works in other areas, okay. So, to me, we going get the short end in our okole sooner
than later.
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CHAIR WHITE: Yeah. Okay, another horse.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: Down.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Done.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, Printing and Binding.
MS. WINER: That's the other one.
CHAIR WHITE: Forty Thousand -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We haven't decided
CHAIR WHITE: --I assume that's another one like the other one where it was spent somewhere
else.
MS. WINER: Yes, it is, but this one, I believe, is the one that we are, we may have, and again
because I don't have Diane here, we actually held back on spending some of the money in
here, so there may still be money because when we were looking for money for the
Short-Range Transit Plan, we actually felt that it was critical in order for our Department to
move forward, and rather than come forward and ask the Council for a budget amendment
for a specific line item, we kind of moved money around and then our match, I believe in
this, is 32,000, and we're right in the process. In fact, tomorrow is the final day for the
individuals to submit their proposals. So, we, I know for a fact that there's at least 32,000
left in this Fund currently that we have yet to encumber and we're going to work really hard
with Corporation Counsel to see that that happens.
CHAIR WHITE: So what has been spent out of this so far, 'cause we have it cut by, cut down to
10,000?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, Mr. Baz.
MR. BAZ: Nine one seven seven two nine, they have spent $32,526 in Miscellaneous Other Costs.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, so
MR. BAZ: Yeah, they, excuse me, Mr. Chair. Sorry, they did have, looking, they did have a prior
year encumbrance of 38,694, and they have a current encumbrance of 11,402.
-112-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 29, 2014

CHAIR WHITE: In addition to the 32,000 spent?
MR. BAZ: Yes. No, no, no, so the way to read these reports is the prior encumbrance, plus the, or
minus the year, or plus the amended budget, minus the year-to-date expenditures, minus the
current encumbrance.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, what's the balance?
MR. BAZ: Thirty, no excuse me, 40, I have to combine two numbers, I apologize. So it's going to
be around 45,000, 44,766.
CHAIR WHITE: So that's the remaining balance, so that's why we cut it to 10 because we are
giving you double what the amount of expenditure seemed to be.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, just, can I make a note that the balance available includes encumbrances
which are allocated for purposes already. So it's hard to define what exactly they spent out
of this year's budget by sub-object code level because that balance available number is a
CHAIR WHITE: You know, I would appreciate it if you would give us a way to decipher what the
facts are in the Details that don't seem to contain a large number of facts. So, you know,
Members, I know the Administration doesn't like us going line by line. I don't like going
line by line either, but maybe what we need to do is just simply propose a total percentage
reduction in each of these departments. But this is annoying, that we're not provided a level
of information that we can make sound decisions with. So, okay, we'll move on to delete
increase for Public Transit, 361,500. Basically that's deleting a 5 percent increase on the
Public Transportation Services.
MS. WINER: Yes, Mr. Chair, and because, you know, Roberts Hawaii, actually they have gone
above and beyond. In fact, in my transmittal to you, they took on the Gillig buses, which
they had to refurbish, they, that it was not in their contract that they take on buses that were
that old. They actually rebuilt, with a little bit help from another body company that
straightened out the frame for Bus 2706. They have replaced engines because the bodies
were good in, you know, unlike MEO, where they had a crumbling frame, we have,
basically, vehicles that, you know, of course they're substantially more costly, you know,
from 4 to $500,000 per bus. So it's worth it for us to replace the engines, but all of that takes
labor and a lot of that is not necessarily covered within, if you read literally the Roberts'
Contract, and that was why I felt that they had earned at least a minimum of 3 percent for the
other work that they've done. And I think they've really tried, you know, to do a good job
and, just as MEO, they have expenses that were unanticipated, so I would just ask that you
reconsider that.
CHAIR WHITE: What is the contract amount? How does it compare to what's here in the adopted
budget for 2014?
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MS. WINER: I'm not sure I understand your question.
CHAIR WHITE: The amount adopted for 2014 is $6,850,000. How does the cost of the Roberts'
contract compare to that amount?
MS. WINER: That's the contract amount.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
MS. WINER: And that it has a clause -CHAIR WHITE: How does that -MS. WINER: --that we could give
CHAIR WHITE: --how does that contract amount, is that static for five years?
MS. WINER: No, because our route amendments oftentimes take place. There is a 5 percent clause,
subject to the approval of the Council, you know, because there is no fuel escalation clause
within those contracts. There are other unanticipated expenses. They are trying to
implement a GPS system that would go above and beyond by allowing riders to have access
on their smart phones to know where their bus actually is. That has been about 75 percent of
our complaints, is that people don't know where their bus is. They don't know whether it's
coming, they don't whether it just left, at least on the Fixed Route side.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. If the, if we followed the contract strictly, what amendments to routes and
things of that sort, what impact has there been with those amendments to this, this amount?
MS. WINER: Not, we haven't made any amendments because we only just entered the contract July
of 2014 or '13 rather. So there have been no other amendments . . .(inaudible)...
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, so the contracted amount for this upcoming fiscal year is the 6850?
MS. WINER: As best I can tell without having the figure in front of me.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
MS. WINER: I'll let Marc
MR. TAKAMORI: The, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, go ahead.
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MR. TAKAMORI: The -CHAIR WHITE: Don't have to ask for permission. Thank you.
MR. TAKAMORI: --the 6850 was the, the lowest bid that came in when we started the contract
and, I guess, for this fiscal year, we're finishing up year one. The continuation request is the
5 percent that is, that comes from the contract, from within the contract. So really the only
change from this year to next year is a 5 percent increase and that, that's then shown by the
7,211,500.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. And Roberts, and the contract states that that's at the discretion of the
?
Council, or is that a contract
MR. TAKAMORI: Yes, subject to funding availability.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
MR. TAKAMORI: Yes, standard language.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Thank you. Members? Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And in looking at the whole Page 18-, oh I
can't tell, 17, it looks like there was minus 875,000 from the line below the one we were
looking at, and some of that was moved to the Transportation Services, which is the 361,500,
then some to Bus Commuter Service and the other from Transportation and Shelter Cleaning,
and still after that, all those additions, there's still $400,000 less than last year. So I'm not
quite sure why, what the issue is. They did reduce, and they just spread it into two different
areas, including a $400,000 deficit, I mean, a decrease from last year.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: If I'm reading it right. I'm not sure what the
CHAIR WHITE: Well they also bought 11 8-passenger vans with the money that was saved off of
that contract, but those are two separate contracts.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, but the monies were split, moved. It doesn't look like there
is really an increase. In fact, it looks like there's a decrease.
CHAIR WHITE: I'm not on the line with respect to the $875,000 decrease. We're still on the -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right, right, but that -CHAIR WHITE: --line above that.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --but the line above that, that 361 came from that 875 decrease.
CHAIR WHITE: No, it didn't.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That's what it says right here in the, in that line. It says
budget transferred to the line above.
CHAIR WHITE: Does that mean that we've already paid them that $361,000 increase this fiscal
year?
MR. TAKAMORI: No, that, basically, that's how we're planning to spend the funds next, next
fiscal year. The reason why there was a decrease in Paratransit going forward next year was
that when we first went out to bid for these services, we had to, we already to submit our
budget for this fiscal year and when the vendor, MEO, won for Paratransit at a lower rate and
at the current service hours they provide, going forward that basically decreased the funds
needed to move forward next year.
CHAIR WHITE: Right. So I understand that they transferred it, but that's still a 5 percent increase
that is at our discretion, as I see it and as I hear it so. Anyway. Any other questions on that
or comments? Okay, Transportation Services. I don't think we touched that one.
MR. TAKAMORI: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes, go ahead.
MR. TAKAMORI: I guess if you're moving on to the Commuter Service, we just wanted to point
out that we believe that you wanted to delete the increase for Commuter Service of 47,500.
If you actually decrease it by 74,500, that actually cuts into our contract amount.
CHAIR WHITE: That's a typo.
MR. TAKAMORI: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: We're just looking at decreasing.
MR. TAKAMORI: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you for pointing that out. Okay, Members, questions about the Commuter
Service? Okay, seeing none, that brings us to the end of our list for Transportation. Any
other questions, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: CEP?
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CHAIR WHITE: Pardon?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Are we doing CIP?
CHAIR WHITE: Oh, I guess we can. What page is it?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Forty-four.
CHAIR WHITE: Forty-four, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Page?
CHAIR WHITE: Forty-four. And that is the Bus Stops and Shelters. The original amount was
1.4 million and the proposal is to reduce that to 700. Questions, Members? I think we heard
Ms. Winer mention some things.. .Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, I kinda read her comments, but I'm also want to hear, it
seems like you've got a contract already with the vendor for the 1.4 million?
MS. WINER: No, we don't have a contract for the 1.4 million, but what we do is, because this is a
project that was done over a period of time, the one vendor who bid on the shelters
themselves agreed, because we never knew, we couldn't do the project all at one time, it
would be impossible to manage, so they agreed to, if we order the eight shelters at one time,
that they would keep the price structure the same. The only thing that we had to pay for,
which would increase, would be any shipping costs. We were able to get them to agree to
this, but if we can't move forward, you know, with $700,000, and go forward with the site
preparation as well as the shelters themselves, we just can't do that. So what we would do is
take the 700,000 and put it all towards design. It takes about a year for, you know,
everything to begin ramping up again. Our engineer can explain it much better than I, but he
has a sequence where this will cause significant disruption. I did ask him what the minimum
is in order to keep the current price structure alive with our vendor, and he said that he could
manage between design and also construction with probably 1.2 million, although it would
be one less shelter.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It's kinda confusing.
MS. WINER: It's confusing to me as well.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That's an unusual way to do, that we've done stuff.
CHAIR WHITE: My understanding is, not so much the design of the shelter, it's the design of the -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: The ADA.
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CHAIR WHITE:

--

it's going to be put. Is that correct?

MS. WINER: Yes, it's the site. Each site has to, and if it's in a Special Management Area, that has
to be reviewed. Planning has assisted, so we've born some of the costs in-house with
training of our engineer and he's gone through with Michele's help, you know, in actually
doing some of this. So we have cut down on some of the design costs, but if things continue
as they are, we should be through with the core of our shelters in two years and then that will
complete the principal shelter project and then we're going to begin what
Councilmember Hokama had mentioned the other day, which is specific improvements that
don't necessarily involve a shelter but that will provide seating and other amenities based on
sites.
CHAIR WHITE: Members, other questions? Mr. Couch, did you have another question?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I'm good. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Other questions? So my recollection is that you have completed--it might
have been some other project--about 24 out of 48.
MS. WINER: Yes, that's correct.
CHAIR WHITE: Is that completed or they're in the works, 24?
MS. WINER: Yeah, and actually I think we're just completing Pukalani right now. I haven't been
out there to inspect it but -COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yes.
MS. WINER: --we have Pukalani, and I think that was the last one in this batch and then we were
working on the Salvation Army site . . .(inaudible)...
CHAIR WHITE: But the total was 24 if I recall -MS. WINER: I believe so.
CHAIR WHITE: --correctly.
MS. WINER: Yes, Marc is nodding yes.
CHAIR WHITE: And what is the average cost of the 24?
MS. WINER: It just, are you looking at the shelter site?
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CHAIR WHITE: What have we spent so far on shelters? I'm just trying to get a sense of what, how
far along we are and what it's costing us.
MS. WINER: Do you have that, Marc? I'm going to let Marc answer.
MR. TAKAMORI: Basically in terms of design monies, with an allocation of 200,000, that is
basically cutting it really small in terms of getting the design of eight shelters.
CHAIR WHITE: No, what I'm asking is, how much have we spent to complete the 24 shelters?
What's the total that we spent for the 24 shelters, if you have it, if you don't, we'll move on?
MR. TAKAMORI: I can probably pull, I can probably give you, if the average is around, let's see

CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Baz, do you recall how much we've spent over the last couple years on
shelters?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, it'll take me a little bit to look it up because there was County money and I

believe some Federal money spent as well, so it'd be a number of different index codes that I
have to identify.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, don't worry about it.
MR. TAKAMORI: I probably can give you a rough estimate. Basically if installation, after design,
keeping design separate, construction may be on average, could be around between 47,000 to
60,000 per site. So if you take the average of that, times it by 24 shelters, that would give
you around I think 1,144,000.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, about 1.2 million.
MR. TAKAMORI: Yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: So just so that we can understand the 1.4 completes the 48? One point four
million that you asked for, does that complete the 48? The 24 additional?
MR. TAKAMORI: The request that we're going in for would be to do, I think that's, the 1.4 we're
asking for would be 400 for design, so that would be a million and that would probably make
around 10, 10 shelters.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I thought these were $25,000 shelters, not $100,000 shelters.
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MR. TAKAMORI: It's, the site, the site work is what is making up a lot of the cost. Based on what
we did when we went out to bid on our Wailuku shelter, 25,500 was just for the shelter itself
but then you still have clearing of the grounds, pavement, erosion, grading, curbs, curbs and
gutters, concrete ramps, bollards, you know, drainage, grassing, landscape, signs and posts. I
mean, it all adds up.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Wow.
CHAIR WHITE: I used to stand in the rain, and I lived through it.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well I've seen places that have just these wood, you know, pieces
of plywood. I know it looks bad but wow, a hundred thousand bucks for a shelter. You'd
build a small affordable home with that almost.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Not really.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Almost.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Not really. I don't think so. Anyhow.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, I think we have -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Can we -CHAIR WHITE: --enough -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --can we -CHAIR WHITE: --information -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: -beat this horse already -CHAIR WHITE: on that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --and let's move on.
CHAIR WHITE: And, just one final thing, that, does, is there any Federal funding available for the
shelters at this point or is that, has that horse already left the corral?
MS. WINER: We had Federal funding for the shelters -CHAIR WHITE: In the beginning.
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MS. WINER: --that we're just completing now, but because they haven't announced another round
of funds available, at least for those types of projects. We try, whenever we have a match in
there, we just can't guarantee that they're going to be authorizing more monies. So rather
than stop the whole project, you know, we just prefer to continue on. But I have to say, in
my opinion, the Federal Government makes it very unattractive to apply for monies.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So how much Federal Funds do we get for the 1.2, the last
24 shelters? And we spent 1.2 million and then some Federal funds?
MS. WINER: We got 800,000 from -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That's 2 million total that was spent then?
MS. WINER: Yeah. The rest is like, you know, if you take 800,000 out of that, that's what we got
from the Feds. But they will not pay for any design. They will not. It's only capital.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So it cost 2 million for the 24 shelters then? Is that what you're
saying?
MS. WINER: Yeah, irrespective of design, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right, irrespective of design.
CHAIR WHITE: What is it with design?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Don't ask.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yeah, don't ask. We don't want to know.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, there's a point at which this gets a little bit cuckoo.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes.
CHAIR WHITE: But we're good at cuckoo.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We live in a cuckoo world.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: It's only government . . .(inaudible)...
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Members, I think we've run out of horses. So I want to thank you for
coming in this evening.
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MS. WINER: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: . . .(inaudible)...
MS. WINER: I hope I haven't confused you too much. It's not easy. I've sat on both sides and
neither is very attractive.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Really?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Amen.
MS. WINER: I have to be honest.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, with that
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Real quick, sorry -CHAIR WHITE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --before the horse runs away.
CHAIR WHITE: Wait, wait, wait, wait.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Before the -CHAIR WHITE: Let me know if -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --not, not -CHAIR WHITE: --we need to call in a veterinarian.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --calling the Department a horse. Was, were these funds to
assist in building some shelters in West Maui?
MS. WINER: Actually, they, I believe that the monies that we allocated last time were County
funds that help with the design, but I believe the Capital Improvements that we're asking for
this time are for the West Maui shelters.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Boy, she's good.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
MS. WINER: No, it's true.
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CHAIR WHITE: She knows what it's like to sit over there. Oh, yeah, everything is in your District.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well you know that's . . .(inaudible)...
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: She's been on both sides, remember?
MS. WINER: Sad but true.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Sad by true, okay. Okeydokey.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Ms. Winer.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, let's move on to Planning.
MS. WINER: Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you very much.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I think Will Spence went, Will went home, I think.
CHAIR WHITE: No, they're right there, right behind you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: He wanted to go home and said that was it. Yeah, I know,
Will, if you can pull that trick off, let me know.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, Members. Mr. Spence or Ms. McLean, would you like to make any
opening remarks?
MR. SPENCE: Yes, thank you, Mr. Chairman and Members. I don't think I have a whole lot else to
say other than, you know, what we talked about in our testimony this morning. You know
we're hoping for that one expansion position to relieve some of the workload off of the single
clerical within Zoning and Enforcement and, you know, hoping to do some other planning
work that, involving revising our what, 40-year-old Zoning Code and all of the things that go
along with that in implementing portions of the Maui Island Plan. I don't
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, thank you. Members, questions? Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Mr. Spence, you kinda touched on what I
was going to ask. I know in my Committee we discussed Form-based Code quite extensively
and we, I believe we determined that that's something we were looking forward to doing
during all the community plans is to figure out if we can fit Form-based Code in those new
community plans. I'm not sure if that's, was just something I was thinking or if we actually
mentioned it, but isn't that where most of this would be used, is in the formation of the
community plans?
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MR. SPENCE: The, no the, well I'll just say that our current community plans, the ones that are
already, you know, however many years old, there's a number of things in those Plans that
call for revisions to our Code, you know, our Zoning Code, things that we've never gotten to,
and it would fit, a Form-based Code would fit very nicely into a lot of those things. And
then, of course, Planning and, you know, doing the community plans and doing a Form-based
Code, it's sort of chicken and the egg. It's, you know, you really need to, you don't wanna,
we don't want to go through 10 years of community plans and then start on a Form-based
Code.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right. That's kinda what I'm trying to get at is that we want to
have an idea of the Form-based Code and to see if we're going to be able to do it in a specific
community or all the community plans or something like that.
MR. SPENCE: I think if we have a tool like this, it'll make our community plans just that much
more meaningful.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Members, other questions, questions regarding the reduction in operating costs?
MS. McLEAN: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes.
MS. McLEAN: If I could just review the testimony that I gave this morning, looking at our
Operating Costs. Our proposed Personnel Costs are about $3.6 million and then what we call
Operations is about $1.5 million. If you subtract out our Office Rent from that, that's nearly
600,000 and you subtract the Form-based Codes, which is a 150,000 and you subtract the Sea
Grant, the Certified Local Government, and one more, oh the HABS/HAER Project, that
leaves us with about a half a million dollars to work with, and the proposed additional cut
beyond the Form-based Codes is about 132,000. So cutting a 132,000 from 500,000 is a
pretty significant reduction. And as I said this morning, the biggest contributors to that are
our Travel Costs and our Professional Services Costs and those are somewhat estimated costs
but then there also is a little bit of a cushion in that because we can't always anticipate what
are Travel needs are going to be and what our Professional Services needs are going to be.
Professional Services include hearings officers and court reporters. The Travel budget can
change depending on how many of our eight Boards and Commissions want to travel
interisland, what conferences and task forces we're asked to serve on and participate in. So
that's why those items, while in previous years may seem underspent, we still budget
additional funding just in anticipation of having to travel interisland more or having
interventions and contested cases where hearings officers and court reporters might be
needed. Thank you, Chair.
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CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. Members, questions? Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Just wanted to refer to the page that was just handed to us.
CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: This is, one section Mayor proposed, then proposed reduction,
then last is balance, you're showing us what the balance is in these different areas right,
current -CHAIR WHITE: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --as we sit? This is the balances

?

CHAIR WHITE: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --that are in these.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's what
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Or after your reduction, then this is what you're proposing,
that's the balance? Okay. Just wanted to get clarification. Yes?
CHAIR WHITE: Sorry, I may not have heard the question properly.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Who...
CHAIR WHITE: Do you have anything to add? Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Just so I'm reading this correctly.
CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Is that what I'm reading?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, plus, minus, equal.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Alright, 'cause you've been asking a lot about well what
is currently in the balances -CHAIR WHITE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --and so I was thinking that's what these numbers were.
CHAIR WHITE: No, this is not the balance of what has been, what remains in the account for this
year.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: This is the balance of what -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: After your proposals -CHAIR WHITE: --after the -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: --proposed cuts.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, got it.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes, Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, and I'm sorry, you know, I guess, there's three areas
that I wanna get clarification from you, Michele or Will or both and how this impacts, you
know, I'm starting from the bottom, working my way up but I'm going to, right away to
Planning, Airfare and Transportation. In light of what has happened, you know, now I
believe most of us are or most of our County employees are taking commercial airlines to
whatever meetings -MR. SPENCE: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --we need to go to, right? And being that airfares are very
cyclical and in many cases depending on fuel and other issues, can be very expense. Going
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here, if you can't get a direct flight to Lanai, you gotta go Honolulu and back, gets expensive.
Molokai, same thing. Do you feel this reduction of 40,000, based upon, and I know, you're
not really sure how many meetings you're going to have. I know you have some idea. You
got Lanai Planning Commission, you got Molokai Planning Commission, but there's other
specialties that, special issues that may come and you're called upon. Do you feel 90,000
would be appropriate and adequate enough? It's getting late, yeah, I'm getting hard time just
getting the words out. You know, and I know you might have some carryovers so, you
know, that, I don't have that figure in front of me, but, realistically, that's what I'm asking.
MR. SPENCE: And before Deputy Director McLean answers that, I would also point out, we do
have a special project coming up. We're going to start the Molokai Community Plan. So
we're going to be sending staff back and forth. We're not sure, will they be staying the
night -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MR. SPENCE: --or not? Currently when we do the Lanai Community Plan meetings, people are
staying the night, and we'd prefer to go to Hotel Lanai but sometimes that's not possible so,
you know, they go to Koele. It's, so a hotel -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Is very expensive.
MR. SPENCE: --is going to factor in to this as well. It's not just airfare.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: When we were there, it's like $400 or something like that a
night. I mean, it's gotten ridiculous.
MR. SPENCE: Yeah, we got the government rate of 399 or
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, something like that. And try to stay at the Lodge, oh,
never mind, never mind, never mind. The same question I have is, you know, on the 4-10
[sic] Planning, Planning Administration Professional Services, 200,000, more than half was
cut out. 'What was, what are those professional services that is listed there? 'What do they
provide? What do they provide to you or to us in the sense of the County of Maui?
MR. SPENCE: Some of that may be, as the Deputy explained, Professional Services may be hiring
a mediator or in, I mean, in some of our discretionary permits you have people who intervene
and, you know, I think the Council members are familiar with that, it makes, usually makes
front page news.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
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MR. SPENCE: If it goes full blown contested case, it could take six months, eight months, in which
you're paying for a hearings officer, billing out at--I forget how much they bill out these
days--you're paying an attorney -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MR. SPENCE: --to sit and listen to all the evidence and all that. Some years we have, and so it runs
into some pretty big bucks. Some years we have times where there's no contested cases,
other times we'll get a whole flurry of controversial projects like the, like -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Don't get specific 'cause we'll leave it alone.
MR. SPENCE: --the bar in Paia.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR, SPENCE: I know that's kinda -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's Mr. White's District.
MR. SPENCE: --manini but that, you know, that took a lot of time and everything.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, yeah.
MR. SPENCE: So even insignificant projects can take on a life of their own.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. SPENCE: And it
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And, I guess, the last question, you know, you've
reduced R & M, you know, down to 5,000 and I don't know what R & M Service Contracts
'cause that's the last one I would ask on. The rest I pretty much understand and I guess your
position may not come to fruition but who, you know, who knows yet. But what is the
R & M, you know, so that the public understands because that was another big reduction
from 30,000 to just 5,000, 25,000?
MS. McLEAN: R & M is Repair and Maintenance. So when we have things in the office that need
to be fixed, especially now with our move to One Main, when there are things that are the
tenant responsibility rather than the landlord's responsibility.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And I wish Mr. Baz was here 'cause I would ask him
the question, how much did they spend this year?
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CHAIR WHITE: My recollection is not very much.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, alright.
CHAIR WHITE: But I, maybe they have the number.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Do you have any idea how much you spent this year?
MS. McLEAN: This year to date, no. In prior years I could tell you but
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Give me last year then.
MS. McLEAN: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Just because you
CHAIR WHITE: It's the Chair's -MS. McLEAN: Just because I offered?
CHAIR WHITE: --thought that when they were in Kalana Pukui, they may have had more
responsibilities for repairs and maintenance than they do at One Main Plaza.
MS. McLEAN: In FY '12, we spent 24,534.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MS. McLEAN: In FY '13, we spent 3,099.
CHAIR WHITE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Three thousand?
MS. McLEAN: Three thousand ninety-nine.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, so rollercoaster?
MS. McLEAN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Alright, Mr. Chair, thank you.
MS. McLEAN: And if I could say, we would certainly be willing to find in Operating Costs, the
savings in order to have that expansion position. So if the reason for the expansion position
is the cost of it, that, having that additional personnel is very important to us and we could
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offset the cost of that salary in any of these line items where you have reductions in order to
have that one person.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Again, since you brought that subject up, are you willing to,
and again this is the question we've asked a number of other department, make it a limited
term? See, that, okay, you went sh. I got that, Will. I got that but, you know, every time,
and I agree with Mr. White, we had somebody full-time, whoops, here we go again, you
know, and so that's why I think we into this modem of, unless that person can prove their
worth, why not put 'em limited term until we can see some value? I don't know, maybe I'm
wrong in saying that but
CHAIR WHITE: Well, as the Chair has stated before, I'm not, by not including the expansion
position, I'm making no determination on whether it's valuable or not. I'm simply -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, I understand.
CHAIR WHITE: --stating that as an Administration, they have a responsibility to go and look
elsewhere before we just simply add another employee. So, and I know they've done that to
some degree but I believe we need to get more creative. For your information,
Mr. Victorino, the amount spent on Repairs and Maintenance thus far this year is $880, so...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Chair, for that information.
MR. SPENCE: Mr. Chairman?
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
MR. SPENCE: If I could just again comment on this expansion position. You know, we have, we
have these different divisions within the Planning Department. Zoning and Enforcement is
one of the largest ones. There's, right now there's 18 total people. There's one clerical
person. This clerical person is supposed to be assigned to the Planning Program
Administrator. She does very little of that because she's so busy doing the other things.
--in contrast, we have four, four clerical
When, in contrast--how many do we have in
within the Current Division. They're the people that handle all the SMA permits and Special
Uses and all that. It's a very busy office and with those four people, there is currently a
backlog of getting out approval letters and those kinds of things that we've been approving
overtime to help get caught up on that. But, so here in Zoning, you have 18 total people, and,
including four Planners, they were reviewing, you know, parking plans and subdivisions and
all that stuff and trying to get letters out to the applicants. We have four Plans Checkers that
often, you know, they need to get letters out to send to applicants to say we need more
information or we need revisions, whatever, like that. We have two Zoning Clerks. They
often don't have letters that need to go out but that clerical person does handle, you know, all
their phone calls, and then on top of that I know a couple years ago the Council wanted to
see, we currently have four Zoning Inspectors, the Council wanted to see us have six total.
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So we're, and it's been hard trying to find good, qualified people that we're satisfied with as
Zoning Inspectors. Okay with those two new positions, there's going to be a lot of new
letters go out, there's gonna be new phone calls, all those things. This one clerical person is
handling all that and she is the receptionist. She's handling all the calls and, you know, it's,
just to be really honest, it's very stressful on this particular individual with the workload she
carries. She does it with a smile but, you know, it's, this is a long-time need. This isn't
something that we just thought it'd be a good idea to have an additional person within the
Zoning Division.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
MR. SPENCE: So, my comments on that.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, thank you. Mr. Guzman.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair. I just wanted to ask a few questions from the
Department. When was the last time you had a expansion position in terms of a clerical
position?
MS. McLEAN: It would've been before our time. So more than three years.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: More than three years ago?
MS. McLEAN: And actually, looking back, I believe the two years prior to our coming in was a flat
budget as well. So five years, anyway.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: And then subsequent to that, you had hired or, I guess, got
expansion positions for Inspectors is my understanding.
MS. McLEAN: Those were the positions that Will was referring to, were vacant positions that we
were planning on filling and Council wanted those to be moved from what they had been,
Planners or whatever those were, to be Inspectors. So they weren't expansion positions, they
were vacant -COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Vacant.
MS. McLEAN: --and we were intending to fill them.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: But then they eventually got filled?
MS. McLEAN: Actually it's been very, very hard to find, initially we advertised, or personnel
advertised, for Zoning Inspector Is, and there were no qualified candidates. So then we
re-described the positions to Zoning Inspector Trainees and advertised for those, got a very
small applicant pool, interviewed, offered positions to the few candidates that we felt were
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qualified and they had, they turned the position down. So we had to wait for the list to
expire.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: So basically, the vacant positions have not been filled?
MS. McLEAN: Those, those, correct.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay. I was under the impression that they were filled and that
the clerical staff was doing double work because of the new -MS. McLEAN: We're desperate to fill them.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --vacant
MS. McLEAN: We wish that we had been able to fill them and we're still trying to fill them. And
when they do come on board then that's when the workload -COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay.
MS. McLEAN: --will increase.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: I guess, Will, if you have a comment.
MR. SPENCE: No, I was just going to say it's a difficult position, Zoning Inspectors, because
you're telling people no. And I'm sure all the Council members get calls about, you know,
this guy was out telling me I can't do this and I can't do that. We get those calls from the
Mayor's Office and they call me directly, et cetera. It's a hard, you're, the interaction with
the public is usually not a really positive experience because you're saying, you know, you
can't have this sign or, you know, you can't operate this business out of your house or
whatever the case may be. So we're looking for people who can handle that kind of stress
and do it with a positive attitude and it's just -COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: You know, I guess -MR. S PENCE: --hard to find.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --I mean, there's no doubt that, I mean, what I was trying to get
at was, I was under the assumption that you needed the extra expansion position, the clerical
position, because you had had, I guess, filled those positions, the Inspector positions, because
you mentioned that there are more inspectors and there's more work but then it sounds like
you haven't had those positions filled, so where is this extra work coming from?
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MR. SPENCE: Yeah, we've, well the workload is there without the extra inspectors. We've offered
one position and we're reconsidering another candidate. So we're just, we think we're pretty
close to filling those.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: And I guess I would, the Chair keeps mentioning that the
Department should start being more creative but it's difficult 'cause I came from that, you
know, that, Prosecutor's Department where it was all, everybody's doing multiple things and
how do you find the creativity to find, I guess I have to ask the Chair, what exactly are you
looking for in terms of the Departments being more creative in finding a position or, I don't
know what -CHAIR WHITE: They can either find -COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --they need to be doing.
CHAIR WHITE: --something. They can either re-describe something within their own list of
vacancies or they can, or the Administration can take the leadership and look other places
from which to pull E/Ps. We have vacancies throughout the County Government, and we
can, you know, we can make that call if they, if you guys wanna go there, but I would rather
that the Administration show the leadership and as the Mayor said yesterday, let's get
creative. Well, this is his opportunity to get creative. And, you know, I, as I said earlier, I
don't doubt the need for the additional staff, but one of the questions it brings up is how
much overtime has been incurred because of the lack of clerical help?
MS. McLEAN: It seems that you have access to year-to-date information that we don't have access
to, so I can't say.
CHAIR WHITE: I don't have access to that.
MS. McLEAN: And -CHAIR WHITE: Well, maybe we do.
MS. McLEAN: --very little overtime is created by night meetings. We encourage staff to use a flex
schedule when we have night meetings. So when we have overtime, it's because of
workload, and we do have workload issues in all of our Divisions because of vacancies. So
we actually really appreciate our staff being willing to put in extra hours to get through their
extra work until we can get these vacancies filled. So the vast majority of our overtime is
spent compensating for vacancies, and I guess Sandy has a number for you.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Mr. Baz.
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MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, the overtime, strictly 5205 overtime expended in the Planning Administration
budget is, actual year-to-date, $58,695. That's out of their premium pay budget of 36,000, so
they've almost doubled their expenditures.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Thank you.
MR. SPENCE: I would also add, we've been in creative mode, and we've been there quite a while.
I mean, just, you know, you've, I think all the Council members have, aware, once upon a
time I was a consultant and, you know, and you go in and you're processing permits for
applicants and you go, why do we do it this way? You know, well that's the way we've
always been doing it. So coming in as Director, what we've been doing as Director and
Deputy is asking, you know, why are we doing it this way, and then we have the opportunity
to help change some of those things. So, in that sense, we have been in creative mode in
terms of, if we can find a way to do the job, protect the environment or follow whatever
regulations we're supposed to be doing but not generate more paperwork and more files and,
you know, relieve people of a workload just because, you know, it's traditionally the way the
Department's been operating, we've been looking into that. That's almost like a, it's a daily
consideration, why are we doing something this way, and we're trying to reduce the
workload both for the sake of staff but, you know, for applicants, et cetera. So we've, we're
constantly looking for opportunities to reduce workload for everybody and make permitting
faster, et cetera.
CHAIR WHITE: We do appreciate the efforts that you all have made in that direction. And they're,
I think, well recognized. Members, other questions? Ms. Crivello.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you. Thank you for being here. Computer Software
with the reduction of 10,000, but I'm just wondering, I heard you, I listened to you earlier in
your testimony that your PC or your computer is like 10 years old.
MR. SPENCE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: You have software that would be compatible to that? Well, I
guess I get concerned. Do you know if you're ready for a replacement with our IT people?
MR. SPENCE: Yes, for, I mean, software's another thing. One of our largest expense, one of our
larger software expenses is our GIS software -COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah.
MR. SPENCE: --and that has to be updated, et cetera. It's really sophisticated and, you know, when
new releases come out, you know, we pretty much have to keep up with that. The computer
replacement, yes, I think most of the Department is ready for replacement of computers.
The, I mean, I testified about my own computer but I'll also say, you know, the maps that
were generated for the proposed Service Center purchase that, you know, came before the
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Council, I sat there and I watched the GIS tech try to make a PDF and we sat there and
watched this computer do nothing, or seemingly do nothing, for at least 10 minutes and he
goes, ah, look at that, something moved. I mean, we're waiting for just basic things, basic
operations. He said this is what I do, all day, this will happen five times during a day where I
have to sit here and do nothing and wait for my computer to do its work. One of our
Program Administrators, for whatever reason, his computer cannot have an Acrobat file open
and do payroll at the same time. His computer will crash and that's, it's just because, you
know, this is how old his computer is.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, but that doesn't come out of your budget though.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No, I realize that.
MR. SPENCE: But we are talking about replacing and it's, I could tell you stories across the board.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, you need the program called Grab.
MR. SPENCE: Grab?
CHAIR WHITE: Well, at least I have it on my Mac. Well -MR. SPENCE: Oh, okay.
CHAIR WHITE: --I'm sure there's a
MR. SPENCE: Sure, if we want to go to Mac.
CHAIR WHITE: I can just take a screen, basically a screen print of whatever part of the screen I
want copied. So, anyway, you know, I think we all feel for you and we all realize that the
GIS programs are very, very, require very hefty hard drives and processors.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I have another question, if I may.
CHAIR WHITE: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Form-based Code that we talked about in Planning Committee,
is that something you foresee implementing this fiscal or, and if so, will that add additional
cost, the operations, or
CHAIR WHITE: To replace our Zoning Code would be a multi-year project. So this, the 150 is
something we would start with this year, and I would expect next year, coming back to this
Committee and saying okay, this is the progress that we've made, you know, and probably
the first part of the Project would be community input on what do they need. And I'm sure
as the Council has gone out and heard testimony, we, you know, the community is saying we
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need something better than what we have now. So part of it would be community outreach,
part of it would be analysis of our own Code and then probably making a proposal on what,
in what way should we replace our Code, making a recommendation as to, okay it should be
a full Form-based, it should be a hybrid, which keeps the best elements of what we have now
but adds this other dimension of design. It is a very long process, and because you're talking
about people's legal entitlements to their property, it, you know, it'll involve attorneys and

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Is that part of your operation costs for you to do step one or step
two?
MR. SPENCE: No.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: You have it as a
MR. SPENCE: Not a part of operating. Well technically -COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --or is it, I'm wondering, is it
CHAIR WHITE: Well technically it is because it's, the expense is in your operating cost -MR. SPENCE: Right.
CHAIR WHITE: --and in order to facilitate it, you're going to require staff time that's going to take
away from other items so.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay. That, so, okay, which is fine.
CHAIR WHITE: And I think, you know, part of the Chair's concern was that we were having a
hard time understanding the concept earlier, and the concern that I have is that we may need
to have more discussion in Mr. Couch's Committee to better understand how it's doing
elsewhere before we just go and spend $150,000 to start the process. I'd like a better idea of
where it's been implemented and what the impact is and how it's received by the public and
by developers. I'm just, you know, we've got layers of complexity to what we do around
here and I'd like additional assurances that it's, that we're headed in the right direction before
I simply put $150,000 out there. So that's the Chair's concern.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Other questions? Ms. Cochran followed by Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair, and thank you, Department, for being here
this evening along with this morning. And so I am hearing over and over, I think you're
number one ask is that clerical position, I think above all, right? And then the discussion
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now we're having about the Form-based Codes and I know, I think it was Mr. Spence
mentioned KIVA and Computer Replacement. I guess the KIVA program extends to several
Departments though, right? Collectively you were saying earlier, or was it Ms. McLean, that
that is very important and it sort of, you know, crosses over many departments as a whole,
and also I think Ms. McLean earlier in regards to MRA and the lao Square was a highlight, I
think, in your testimony this morning. So if I can get a little bit more elaboration on those? If
I'm correct of what I heard earlier and you're here this evening again maybe to reiterate, I
just kinda want to get your top
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, if you don't mind, I'd like to not have her respond on KIVA -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: --because the issue -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: That's fine.
CHAIR WHITE: --the Chair's issue with KIVA is not one, of whether it's necessary or not, it's
necessary. The Chair's issue is just the phasing of the expenditure.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: So I don't think we need to hear from them again that -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So it's not having
CHAIR WHITE: --it's important because it is. It's critical to the operation of-COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: --any department so.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Well, that's good.
CHAIR WHITE: But you, but feel free to answer Ms. Cochran's other inquiry.
MS. McLEAN: Yes, the expansion position is, I think that was our number one priority when we
submitted our expansion requests, and the number two priority was the Form-based Code. I
understand the Chair's concern about wanting to understand it better and I think part of what
that 150,000 would be spent on isn't going to try to find a cookie cutter from one
municipality and try to stamp it in Maui County. It's looking at our Zoning Code and how it
works and how it doesn't work and figuring out what we can change to that would work here
'cause all of you, I'm sure, as we have on a regular basis, seen situations where, why can't
this person do this use here, all these other things are allowed here, why not this other use,
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and it's just, it's common sense that this other use has no greater impacts, no this or that, why
can't it be done there? So a Form-based Code looks more at impacts and design rather than
this strict list of uses. I mean that's a real general way of describing it, but that was our
second expansion request. The other cuts to the line items, they go pretty far. We could
certainly live with some reductions. We don't need to go line by line, but some reductions
we can certainly handle 'cause as I, as we explained, some of these have cushions in them.
And with the MRA, it's really the MRA members who are pushing for those two projects, for
Tao Square and for the Clean and Safe Program. The Tao Square project is in the Public
Works budget, just for the paving component, not for the plaza component And the paving
component is absolutely, definitely needed, and I don't believe that that's been affected by
the Chair's proposal. And what the MRA is requesting is to add the additional funding to
create the plaza at the street level on Market Street. It would just be a real amenity for the
town and, you know, move forward in the revitalization of Wailuku.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, alright. Well thank you, Ms. McLean, for that.
MS. McLEAN: Thanks.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh. Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I'm sorry we're doing a little bit of a retro
thing here. You were talking about, you know, getting creative and finding positions here
and there. I was going to ask, wondering if I could ask Mr. Baz, you know, we've talked
about this for, what, three years now, or two or three years now, what might be the holdup
with that?
CHAIR WHITE: Hold up with what?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: With actually doing, you know, getting positions from one
Department, putting it into another. I know we tried at one time with reassigning and that
was a horrendous process but.
CHAIR WHITE: Well it's, there's been mixed reports. I mean, they're, we managed to move a
9th floor relatively easily. So
couple of people up into the CIP Coordinator's Office on the
there are situations in which it's not all that complicated and others that it is. My recollection
from earlier comments, and I don't remember whether they were from Mr. Baz or not, but
the comment was that it would be easier for us to simply -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
CHAIR WHITE: --eliminate a position in one Department and create one in another rather than to
try to transfer or re-describe or reallocate or whatever the heck the term is.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Correct. And that's why I was wondering why we haven't been
doing that yet. Is that something we have to initiate or they have to initiate?
CHAIR WHITE: Well, the Chair would prefer that the Administration take the leadership on it, but
if the Members feel that they want to go down that road and make our own determinations,
then you're welcome to make recommendations as to where we can pull E/Ps from and
where to put them.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Can I hear from -CHAIR WHITE: Oh, sure.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH:

--

CHAIR WHITE: I'm sorry, I didn't mean to, he looked up like, what the heck did you just say? I
think he was looking something else up and didn't quite hear your question. Go ahead,
Mr. Baz.
MR. BAZ: I think I understood the question, and Mr. Couch is correct that we had, I personally was

involved in trying to move a number of positions over. We theoretically got one position
moved over this year. Previous year, I think there was one position that moved over, you're
correct, into the CIP. That was a kind of an easier one because it was an existing position
that was an existing classification that was vacant, that it was just easy to transfer over. No,
that one had an incumbent in it. We had to go through union consultation and different
things like that. The process for the Administration to move positions is very different than
the process that the Council goes through to delete or, sorry, provide E/P counts for the
different programs. You're doing that in a legislative fashion, where you are just basically
assigning the number of Equivalent Personnel that can be afforded to each different program,
you are not creating or abolishing or transferring positions necessarily, you're just creating or
deleting E/Ps. That is a very simple process as compared to what the Administration has to
go through when we have to move a created position from one Department to another, which
is what, the Mayor has the ability to transfer positions. Mayor cannot create or abolish
positions that haven't been, that the E/P count doesn't, so, you know, he can't abolish a
position in one program and create it in another program and go forward from that. That's
not allowed according to what I've been told from Personnel, but that's something that you
guys can do.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: But, Mr. Chair, I guess the question is, I mean, yeah, we could do
that but we don't know, would it, are you guys allowed to say, hey, if you did this, took this
position, deleted this position here and added this position here, that would help us out or is
that crossing some sort of line? 'Cause that's what we're looking for is, I'm guessing, what
the Chair is looking for is guidance to say, look, we've got these positions over here, delete
those and then add some over here and we're good to go. If you have us do it, we're just
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going to say, hey, okay, this one looks good, boot it. You know what I mean? I guess that's
the, where we're stuck.
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Baisa. Oh, I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: He didn't answer.
CHAIR WHITE: I'm sorry. I thought that was a statement, not a question.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, no, you know, I would think that they could do that or if it is
something that they can't do because of the way the rules work, either with unions or
whatever, then I'd like to know. Otherwise we're, I'd love to see a list so we can, especially
during this process, here's a list of positions you can delete so that we can add these positions
that we really need, if that's possible.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Baz.
MR. BAZ: I guess, and thank you for trying to save me, Mr. Chair. I really don't know the correct
way to respond to that at this point. The Mayor, in his proposed budget, works very hard at
trying to define the positions that are currently funded and appropriated and what needs to be
funded and appropriated in the future to meet the needs that the community desires to fulfill
the requirements that we see fit. Something different than that, I would have to go back and
evaluate, you know, how we would approach that. I don't think directors would voluntarily
say, hey, yeah, you can cut my five positions over here, and it would be something that, as a
management -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
MR. BAZ: --level, we would have to
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
MR. BAZ: --evaluate, definitely. But at this point, the ability that we have to do that is restricted
because we can't transfer positions without, I mean, we can only transfer existing positions,
we can't create and abolish positions between programs. We can create and abolish all the
positions we want to in its own program and we did abolish quite a few positions this year,
recently, that hopefully will clean up your guys' vacancy report. But it's an incredible
challenge that I would need to evaluate with Personnel Services, Mayor, to be able to,
probably Corporation Counsel as well, to be able to figure out how to answer that question.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. So it's a little bit more complicated than it seems, just off
the top of the
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CHAIR WHITE: The Administration is willing to provide us guidance in so many ways. I can't
imagine this is one way that they're unable to. Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Well, my thought is this. I think that our area of responsibility is to
authorize the positions or to not authorize the positions, but I don't see us getting involved in
deciding who should be moved from where because that's really managing. And I would
hope that the managers in these departments can make preferences about what they need and
what they don't need, but I wouldn't feel that it was our responsibility or even our area to go
into a department and say, okay we're going to take your clerk and we're going to put her in
some other department. I'm not, well I guess it's okay, but, you know, I'm getting worried
about, are we getting to the border of, I don't know what the limits are in how much we can
do with telling directors what to do. Outside of handling their money or not giving them
money, I'm getting worried about that. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: I think that's a valid concern, and I don't think this gets to the point of telling
them what to do, it's just a matter of, you know, allocation of resources and it's, that's our
job. Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, sorry.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: Oh, I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair, I think it kinda speaks to the whole transferring of those
positions from Solid Waste to the newly, wanting to newly form the Environmental
Protection and Sustainability Program, because they take existing and trying to create this
new Division within Environmental Management. So it's kinda like -UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: That's different.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --they're not, I don't know if it's a re-description, but it's
existing, moving 'em into a different type of responsibility, I guess. So it's sort of a, same
E/P'd accounts, I believe, but just transferring into another area.
CHAIR WHITE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So, it's done, or trying to be done anyways.
CHAIR WHITE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So, something like that. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Hokama.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I would just ask the Director Baz, my understanding of the Charter is
that he can, the Mayor can make a temporary transfer, like this current fiscal year, and then
come and ask us next fiscal year as a permanent. So, to me, that type of transfer is allowed
by the Charter and is doable. So, is that something that you guys have considered?
MR. BAZ: Yes, Mr. Chair, and yes, Member Hokama, you're very correct, and that's what we have
tried to do. The, when the Administration does a temporary transfer -VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
MR. BAZ: --of a position, it does have to go through union consultation. The Department of
Personnel Services will review the organizational structure of the department that the
position's going into to -VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
MR. BAZ: --to make sure it's a valid transfer. If it's a Special Fund that funded the position then
the money cannot move with the position, so the department that we're moving it into would
have to identify other sources of funds to be able to fund that position. It, yeah, but, yes,
you're correct, the Charter, that's correct.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And, you know, this Chairman has been very accommodating with the
budget amendments and requests, so I can say that I wouldn't find it so hard to make the
adjustments with the financial requirements either. But, Chairman, you know, I'm with
Ms. Balsa. I have my same concerns. We don't get paid to manage and direct. That's why
we have directors, division heads. It is their job to manage and implement the budget, not
our job. If they want it, then we should go back to the Board of Supervisor days, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That's where we came from. But if they want what I'm hearing, then
we gotta go back to the Board days and we can make those operational decisions. Thank
you.
CHAIR WHITE: Any further questions for Planning? Mr. Spence.
MR. SPENCE: Another Deputy wants to go home. Just one, maybe one, and maybe the better place
to discuss the Form Project is in, is in the Planning Committee. I just wanted to bring up, I
mean, because there's question on, oh where else has this been used, and I quick pulled up a,
the Form-based website in just a few places: Arlington County, Virginia; Benicia, California;
Denver, Colorado; Farmer's Branch, Texas; Flagstaff, Arizona; Fort Myers Beach, Florida;
Fort Worth; Gulfport, Mississippi; Havana, Cuba--of all places, that's what you saw Michele
and I giggling over here about Hercules, California; Leander, Texas; Lee County, Florida;
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Livermore, California; Miami--with the Miami 21 Project; that was a really big awardwinning thing--I could go on, Peoria, Illinois; Petaluma; Santa Ana, California, you know,
and I just pulled up a selection. It's something that is becoming more common, and basically
what, the difference between what we have is a Euclidean Code, which the emphasis is on
the separation of uses. You have your commercial over here, your industrial over there, your
housing over here and they don't mix. The Form-based Code is about the human interaction
with the built environment. So how does, not a separation of, you know, you live over here
and you work over there, but how do you interact with the place that you live. And that's
where the Form part comes in, and it's much more about a mixture of uses and I could go
through all the stuff in the General Plan and the Maui Island Plan that calls for something
like this but I'm happy to e-mail it to you or whatever. So that's my last pitch on this. Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR WHITE: Well, no one can say you didn't give it your best shot.
MR. SPENCE: Yes, and I'm willing to talk about it some more. We really want to do something
tailored specific to Maui's need. What works in Denver or Peoria -VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
MR. SPENCE: --isn't going to work here.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Correct.
MR. SPENCE: That's number one on my list.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: You want the poi dog version.
MR. SPENCE: Yeah, yeah, we gotta do what works here for, you know, our growing cities, our old
towns, you know, it's gotta work for Maui so.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Thank you very much. Members, I want to give Director Taylor wonderful
credit and lots of kudos for hanging out with us. You all haven't seen him sitting back there
but I believe we will conclude this evening's exercises and then take care of Water in the, at
9 o'clock in the morning.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Hallelujah.
CHAIR WHITE: Earlier I told everybody that we would be done by 9:00 -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, I didn't hear that.
CHAIR WHITE: --and we've gone beyond that. So we will adjourn and start up with Water in the
morning. . . . (gavel)...
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ACTION: DEFER pending further discussion.
ADJOURN: 9:10p.m.

APPROVED:

MIKE WHITE, Chair
Budget and Finance Committee
Transcribed by: Annette L. Perkett
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